THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect of this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should
consult a licensed securities dealer or registered institution in securities, bank manager, solicitor,
professional accountant or other professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings
Limited, you should at once hand this circular to the purchaser, the transferee or to the bank, licensed
securities dealer or registered institution in securities or other agent through whom the sale or transfer
was effected for transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no
responsibility for the contents of this circular, make no representation as to its accuracy or
completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or
in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this circular.

\

\\IWS
Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited
GEEREREEBARLQF

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 923)

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION
ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN THE TARGET COMPANY LISTED ON THE NEEQ
AND
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

Capitalised terms used in this cover have the same meanings as those defined in this circular.

A letter from the Board is set out on pages 1 to 14 of this circular. The notice convening the EGM
to be held as an electronic meeting on Thursday, 14 December 2023 at 2:00 p.m. is set out on pages
EGM-1 to EGM-3 of this circular. Whether or not you are able to attend the EGM, please complete
and sign the enclosed form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon and return it
to the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong or submit electronically
through the Tricor e-Meeting System (https://spot-emeeting.tricor.hk) as soon as possible but in any
event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the EGM or any adjournment
thereof. Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude Shareholders from attending and
voting in person at the meeting or any adjourned meeting (as the case may be) if they so wish.

27 November 2023



CONTENTS

Page
Guidance for attending the EGM online. . . ... ...... ... ... .. ... ... .. .. ... .... i
Definitions . . . . . ... iii
Letter from the Board . . . . ... ... .. . . .. 1
Appendix I — Financial Information of the Group .. ...................... I-1
Appendix IT — Financial Information of the Target Group .................. II-1
Appendix III — Management Discussion and Analysis....................... III-1
Appendix IV — Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Information of the Enlarged
Group . . ... e V-1
Appendix V — Valuation Report ............. . ... .. . . . . . ... V-1
Appendix VI — General Information .. ....... ... ... ... ... .. .. .. ...... VI-1

Notice of EGM . . . . . . EGM-1



GUIDANCE FOR ATTENDING THE EGM ONLINE

The EGM will be held as an electronic meeting through the Tricor e-Meeting System.
Shareholders who join the EGM online will be able to view the live broadcast, participate in voting,
call to raise questions and submit questions in written form via their mobile phones, tablets or
computers.

Tricor e-Meeting System will be open for the registered Shareholders and non-registered
Shareholders (see below for login details and arrangement) to log in from 1:30 p.m. on Thursday, 14
December 2023 (i.e. approximately 30 minutes prior to the commencement of the EGM). Shareholders
should allow ample time to check into Tricor e-Meeting System to complete the related procedures.
Please refer to the Online Meeting User Guide in relation to the procedures of the online meeting at
https://spot-emeeting.tricor.hk.

LOGIN DETAILS FOR REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS

Login details for accessing Tricor e-Meeting System are included in the Company’s notification
letter to registered Shareholders for the EGM (the “Shareholder Notification”) sent together with
this circular.

LOGIN DETAILS FOR NON-REGISTERED SHAREHOLDERS

Non-registered Shareholders whose Shares are held through a bank, a broker or a custodian or
registered in the name of their nominees (together, the “Intermediary”) and who wish to attend and
vote at the EGM using Tricor e-Meeting System should (1) contact and instruct their Intermediary to
appoint themselves as proxy or corporate representative to attend the EGM; and (2) provide their
email address to their Intermediary before the time limit required by the relevant Intermediary. Details
regarding the EGM arrangements including login details to access Tricor e-Meeting System will be
sent by the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, to the email address of the non-registered Shareholders provided by the
Intermediary. Any non-registered Shareholder who has provided an email address through the relevant
Intermediary for this purpose but has not received the login details by email by 4:00 p.m. on
Wednesday, 13 December 2023 should reach out to the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong for assistance. Without the login details, non-registered Shareholders will not be able to
participate and vote using Tricor e-Meeting System. Non-registered Shareholders should therefore
give clear and specific instructions to their Intermediary in respect of both (1) and (2) above.

LOGIN DETAILS FOR PROXIES OR CORPORATE REPRESENTATIVES

Login details for accessing Tricor e-Meeting System will be sent by Tricor Investor Services
Limited to the email of the proxies provided to it in the relevant form of proxy.

Shareholders should note that only one device is allowed per login. Please also keep the
login details in safe custody for use at the EGM and do not disclose them to anyone else. Neither
the Company nor its share registrar assume any obligation or liability whatsoever in connection
with the transmission of the login details or any use of the login details for voting or otherwise.

VOTING AT THE EGM

Shareholders can cast their vote through the Tricor e-Meeting System. For online voting at the
EGM, Shareholders «can refer to the Online Meeting User Guide by visiting
https://spot-emeeting.tricor.hk for details. The submission of vote through the Tricor e-Meeting
System using the login details will be conclusive evidence that the vote was cast by you as a
Shareholder.
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QUESTIONS AT THE EGM

Shareholders attending the EGM using Tricor e-Meeting System will be able to submit questions
relevant to the proposed resolution online during the EGM. The Company will endeavour to address
these questions at the EGM, if time permits.

APPOINTMENT OF PROXY IN ADVANCE OF THE EGM

Registered Shareholders who wish to appoint a proxy to attend and vote at the EGM shall
complete and return a form of proxy in accordance with instructions therein. Registered Shareholders
who wish their proxy to attend the EGM online MUST provide their proxy’s email address in the space
provided in the form of proxy. Return of a completed form of proxy shall not preclude Shareholders
from attending and voting at the EGM or any adjourned meeting thereof if they so wish.

In addition to the physical deposit of the proxy form, registered Shareholders have the option to
submit their proxy appointment electronically through the Tricor e-Meeting System not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the EGM or any adjournment thereof.

CONTACT DETAILS OF THE COMPANY’S BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG

If Shareholders have any queries relating to the EGM, please contact the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong as follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre

16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333 (From 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday to Friday,
excluding Hong Kong public holidays)

Email: is-enquiries @hk.tricorglobal.com

- i1 -



DEFINITIONS

In this circular, the following expressions have the meanings set out below unless the context

requires otherwise:

“Acquisition”

“Agreement”

“Board”

“Business Day”

“CASBE”
“close associate(s)”

“Company”

“Completion”

“Completion Date”

“connected person(s)”

“Consideration”

“controlling shareholder(s)”

“CSRC”

“Director(s)”

“EGM”

the acquisition by IWS Services (subsequently through IWS
Investment) from the Vendor of the Sale Shares

the conditional share transfer agreement dated 5 October
2023 between the Vendor and IWS Services in relation to,
among others, the Acquisition (as supplemented and revised
from time to time)

the board of Directors

a day (other than a Saturday) on which licensed banks are
open for general business in the PRC

China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise
has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited, (stock
code: 923), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

completion of the Acquisition in accordance with the terms of
the Agreement

the date on which Completion in respect of all the Sale Shares
have taken place in accordance with the terms of the
Agreement

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$54,000,000), being the total consideration to be paid by
IWS Investment to the Vendor for the Acquisition

has the meaning as ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

the China Securities Regulatory Commission ([ & 75 B &
EHEEE)

director(s) of the Company

the extraordinary general meeting of the Company to be held
as an electronic meeting on Thursday, 14 December 2023 at
2:00 p.m. to consider and, if appropriate, to approve, among
others, the Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder (including the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal), or
any adjournment thereof

— il —



DEFINITIONS

“Enlarged Group”

“First Supplemental Agreement”

“GI‘Oup”
“HK$”

“Hong Kong”

“Independent Third Party”

“IWS Investment”

“IWS Services”

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Longstop Date”

“NEEQ”

“PRC”

“RMB 29

“Sale Shares”

the Group as enlarged by the Acquisition

the supplemental agreement to the Agreement dated 24
October 2023 between the Vendor, IWS Services and IWS
Investment, whereby IWS Investment has taken up all the
rights, and assumed all obligations, of IWS Services under
the Agreement as from the time of signing of the Agreement

the Company and its subsidiaries
Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China

a third party independent of the Company and its connected
persons, and “Independent Third Parties” shall be construed
accordingly

AAIRBE R E) AR /ARIWS  Investment  (Zhuhai
Hengqin) Company Limited*), a limited liability company
established in the PRC and an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company

Integrated Waste Solutions Services Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

21 November 2023, being the latest practicable date prior to
the printing of this circular for ascertaining certain
information contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

22 December 2023 or such later date as may be agreed in
writing between the Vendor and IWS Services (or IWS
Investment, as the case may be)

the National Equities Exchange And Quotations (4] H1/M i
ER A R T

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this
circular, excludes Hong Kong, the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China and
Taiwan

renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

5,605,263 shares of the Target Company, being part of the
shares of the Target Company owned by the Vendor

— iv —



DEFINITIONS

“Second Supplemental
Agreement”

“SFO”

“Share(s)”

“Shareholder(s)”
“Stock Exchange”

“Target Company”

“Target Group”
“Vendor”

“Vendor’s Right of First Refusal”

“%”

the second supplemental agreement to the Agreement dated
13 November 2023 between the Vendor and IWS Investment
for amending certain provisions of the Agreement relating to,
among others, Completion

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong)

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of the
Company

holder(s) of Share(s)
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (J# % % 4 {It ffE pi
B A R/ F]), a company established in the PRC as a
joint stock company with limited liability and the shares of
which are listed on the NEEQ (NEEQ: 870009)

collectively, the Target Company and its subsidiaries
Zhang Yan (9 5f)

the right of the Vendor granted by IWS Services
(subsequently replaced by IWS Investment) under the
Agreement to acquire from IWS Investment any shares of the
Target Company (in whole or in part) which IWS Investment
may propose to dispose of after Completion to a third party
purchaser upon the same terms that IWS Investment may
offer to the third party purchaser

per cent.

In this circular, for the purpose of illustration only, amounts quoted in RMB have been converted
into HK$ at the rate of RMB1.00 to HK$1.08, and vice versa. Such exchange rate has been used,
where applicable, for the purposes of illustration only and does not constitute a representation that

any amounts were or may have been exchanged at such rate or any other rates or at all.

* For identification purposes only
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To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

VERY SUBSTANTIAL ACQUISITION
ACQUISITION OF SHARES IN THE TARGET COMPANY LISTED ON THE NEEQ
AND
NOTICE OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING

INTRODUCTION

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 5 October 2023, 24 October 2023
and 14 November 2023, respectively, in relation to, among others, the Acquisition. On 5 October
2023, IWS Services, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the Agreement with the
Vendor, pursuant to which the Vendor has conditionally agreed to sell, and IWS Services has
conditionally agreed to purchase, the Sale Shares representing approximately 13.16% of the total
number of shares of the Target Company at the Consideration of RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$54,000,000) in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Agreement.
Following the due establishment of IWS Investment and on 24 October 2023, the Vendor, IWS
Services and IWS Investment entered into the First Supplemental Agreement, whereby IWS
Investment has taken up all the rights, and assumed all obligations, of IWS Services under the
Agreement as from the time of signing of the Agreement. On 13 November 2023, the Vendor and IWS
Investment entered into the Second Supplemental Agreement to amend certain provisions of the
Agreement relating to, among others, Completion.



LETTER FROM THE BOARD

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with, among others, (i) further details of the
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Vendor’s Right of First
Refusal); (ii) financial information and other information of the Group; (iii) financial information and
other information of the Target Group; (iv) unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged
Group; (v) management discussion and analysis of the Target Group; and (vi) valuation report on the
Target Company.

AGREEMENT
The major terms of the Agreement are set out below:
Date: 5 October 2023
Parties: (i) the Vendor, as vendor

(i1)) IWS Investment, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, as purchaser

As at 5 October 2023 (being the date of the Agreement), IWS Services was in the process of
establishing IWS Investment in the PRC as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise to be directly 100%
held by IWS Services. After its due establishment, IWS Investment has replaced IWS Services as the
purchaser under the Agreement for the acquisition and holding of the Sale Shares through the entering
into of the First Supplemental Agreement on 24 October 2023 between the Vendor, IWS Services and
IWS Investment. On 13 November 2023, the Vendor and IWS Investment entered into the Second
Supplemental Agreement to amend certain provisions of the Agreement relating to, among others,
Completion.

To the best knowledge, information and belief of the Directors after making reasonable
enquiries, the Vendor is an Independent Third Party.

Subject matters

The Sale Shares held by the Vendor, representing approximately 13.16% of the total number of
shares of the Target Company, free from all encumbrances and together with all rights attaching
thereto as from the date of transfer of the Sale Shares, including but not limited to all dividends paid,
declared or made the record date for the entitlement of which falls on or after the date of transfer of
the Sale Shares.

The Sale Shares rank pari passu in all respects among themselves and with the other existing
shares of the Target Company.

Consideration

The Consideration is RMB50,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$54,000,000), which
shall be paid by IWS Investment to the Vendor in cash.

The Consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the Vendor and IWS
Services with reference to, among other things, (i) the preliminary valuation of the fair value of 100%
equity interests of the Target Company of approximately RMB439,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$474,120,000) as at 31 August 2023 by an independent valuer based on market
approach using guideline public company method where the public companies selected are those
mainly engaged in the provision of freight logistics and related services in the PRC; (ii) the recent
financial performance of the Target Group; and (iii) the business development and the prospects of the
Target Group.
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According to the valuation report on the Target Company as set out in Appendix V to this
circular, the valuation of the fair value of 100% equity interests of the Target Company as at 31 August
2023 is RMB438,925,000. Based on the aforesaid valuation, the value of the Sale Shares is
approximately RMB57,753,000. The Consideration represents a discount of approximately 13.4% to
the valuation of the Sale Shares.

The Directors have noted that while the shares of the Target Company are listed on the NEEQ,
trading of the shares of the Target Company on the NEEQ has been illiquid, where shares were not
traded on daily basis, and has been of negligible trading volume. As an example, there had been no
trading in the whole of September 2023, while less than 20,000 shares were traded in the whole of
August 2023. Consequently, no significant emphasis on the traded share prices of the Target Company
has been placed in the determination of the Consideration.

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider that the
Consideration is fair and reasonable, taking into account, among others, that the Consideration is at
a discount to the valuation of the Sale Shares.

The Consideration will be funded partly by an unsecured, interest-bearing loan in the principal
amount of HK$50 million (equivalent to approximately RMB42,296,000) to be advanced to the Group
by Chow Tai Fook Nominee Limited, being a controlling shareholder of the Company, and partly by
internal resources of the Group. The loan constitutes a connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules but is fully exempt under Rule 14A.90 of the Listing Rules as the
loan will be on normal commercial terms or better and will be unsecured. The Company expects its
share of profit from the Target Company as an associated company to be higher than the finance cost
of the loan (before taking into account potential capital gains on the Group’s investment in the Target
Company which the Company expects). The return on investment of the Acquisition is therefore
justified and it is beneficial to the Group.

Conditions Precedent
Completion is conditional upon the satisfaction (or, where applicable, waiver) of the following:

(1) the approval by the Shareholders in general meeting for the Acquisition and the matters
relating to the entering into, execution and performance of the Agreement by IWS Services
and IWS Investment being obtained in accordance with the relevant requirements of the
Listing Rules;

(2) IWS Investment having been lawfully established, with the powers to execute and perform
the purchaser’s duties and obligations under the Agreement and the First Supplemental
Agreement; IWS Services completing in compliance with the requirements of the PRC laws
and regulations the relevant foreign investment compliance procedures (including those
relating to commerce and foreign exchange) in relation to the establishment of IWS
Investment; and the exchange of foreign fund and its usage being in compliance with the
requirements of the foreign exchange regulatory authority of the PRC;

(3) the Vendor, IWS Services and IWS Investment executing the First Supplemental
Agreement;

(4) the respective board of directors and (if required) the shareholders of IWS Services and
IWS Investment approving the entering into, execution and performance of the Agreement;

(5) all requisite consents, approvals, waivers and authorisations from any relevant government
departments or authorities (including but not limited to the NEEQ), regulatory authorities
or other relevant third parties (whether in Hong Kong, the PRC or elsewhere) having been
obtained by the Vendor and (if required) the Target Company;
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(6) all requisite consents, approvals, waivers and authorisations from any relevant government
departments or authorities, regulatory authorities (including but not limited to the Stock
Exchange) or other relevant third parties (whether in Hong Kong, the PRC or elsewhere)
having been obtained by IWS Investment;

(7) TIWS Services (or IWS Investment, as the case may be) being satisfied, as indicated in
writing, with the results of the due diligence exercise (whether legal, accounting, financial,
business, operation and other aspects that IWS Services (or IWS Investment, as the case
may be) considers necessary) conducted against the Target Group and its business, assets,
liability, activities, operations, prospects and other status which IWS Services (or IWS
Investment, as the case may be) considers reasonable, necessary and appropriate;

(8) the shares of the Target Company remaining listed and being traded on the NEEQ after the
date of the Agreement up to Completion, and neither the CSRC nor the NEEQ indicating
at any time before Completion that the listing of the shares of the Target Company on the
NEEQ will be or may be cancelled or objected;

(9) the total bank borrowings of the Target Group not exceeding RMB50,000,000;

(10) no event occurring which constitutes a material and adverse effect (or change) on the
financial position, business, prospect or results of operations of the Target Group as a
whole;

(11) the Vendor not having breached the provisions of the Agreement (including but not limited
to undertakings); and

(12) the representations and warranties by the Vendor under the Agreement remaining to be true,
accurate and not misleading in all respects.

The Vendor shall use her best endeavours to satisfy all the conditions precedent set out above
(other than those under sub-paragraphs (1), (2), (4), (6) and (7) above). IWS Services (or IWS
Investment, as the case may be) shall use its best endeavours to satisfy the conditions precedent set
out in sub-paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (6) and (7) above.

IWS Services (or IWS Investment, as the case may be) may at any time waive in writing any of
the conditions precedent set out in sub-paragraphs (9), (10), (11) and (12) above. Save as aforesaid,
none of the conditions precedent may be waived.

If all the conditions precedent shall not have been fulfilled (or, where applicable, waived) on or
before the Longstop Date, the Agreement shall automatically terminate immediately, and no party to
the Agreement shall have any claim against the other, save in respect of any antecedent breaches.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the conditions precedent set out in sub-paragraphs (3) and (4)
had been fulfilled.

Completion

After the approval of the Shareholders as described under sub-paragraph (1) in the paragraph
headed “Conditions precedent” above has been obtained, the Vendor shall as soon as possible pay her
personal income tax payable in relation to the transfer of the Sale Shares under the Acquisition, obtain
the relevant certificate (the “Tax Payment Certificate”) of payment of such tax and deliver a copy
of the Tax Payment Certificate to IWS Investment.
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Subject to the fulfilment (or, where applicable, waiver) of all conditions precedent set out in the
paragraph headed “Conditions precedent” above and the Vendor having obtained the Tax Payment
Certificate, Completion will take place in the following manner:

(1) on or before the Longstop Date (or such later date as the Vendor and IWS Investment may
agree, but in any event not after the period stipulated in the compliance confirmation as
referred to in sub-paragraph (2) below), the Vendor shall transfer all the Sale Shares to IWS

Investment through China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited (71 [ #
R AT A REAEATR) (“CSDC”); and

(2) within one Business Day after the issue of the compliance confirmation by CSDC in
relation to the transfer of all the Sale Shares, IWS Investment shall instruct its bank to pay
the Consideration to the bank account designated by the Vendor.

Upon Completion, the Target Company will be treated as an associate of the Group and equity
accounting will be adopted in the Group’s financial statements by virtue of the Group’s substantial
influence on the daily management and operations of the Target Company. The Company’s auditors
concur with the assessment of the Company’s management that the Company will have significant
influence on the Target Company and therefore treat the Target Company as an associate. As at the
Latest Practicable Date, the Target Company had five directors. The Target Company will have six
directors (including the one to be appointed as nominated by IWS Investment), assuming there will
be no other change in the number of directors.

Undertakings from the Vendor

The Vendor has undertaken in favour of IWS Investment, which are subject to Completion
having taken place, to fulfil, or to procure the Target Company to fulfil, the following:

(1) During the period when IWS Investment shall hold not less than 8% of all the shares of the
Target Company:

(a) IWS Investment shall have the right to nominate one person to be appointed as a
director of the Target Company;

(b) during the period from the Completion Date to the date of appointment of the director
of the Target Company nominated by IWS Investment as mentioned in sub-paragraph
(a) above, the board of directors of the Target Company shall not approve any of the
reserved matters as set out below. Further, as from the date of appointment of the
director of the Target Company nominated by IWS Investment as mentioned in
sub-paragraph (a) above, unless unanimously resolved by all the directors of the
Target Company present at the meeting, the board of directors of the Target Company
shall not approve any of the reserved matters as set out below. The reserved matters
are:

(i) increase or decrease its registered capital (including but not limited to issuing
or agreeing to issue any share capital, capital, loan capital, or granting or
agreeing to grant any share options or warrants, or taking any action that results
in a reduction or increase in the Vendor’s shareholding and/or shareholding ratio
in the Target Company);

(i1) conduct division, merger, dissolution and liquidation or change its company
form;

(iii) amend its articles of association;
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(2)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(iv) purchase or sell its major assets or provide new guarantee (whether single or
cumulative guaranteed amount), which exceeds 50% of the latest audited total
assets of the Target Company;

(v) adopt any form of share incentive scheme, or grant any share options or share
awards under any form of share incentive scheme already adopted before the
date of the Agreement;

(vi) adopt annual budget, or modify the annual budget adopted before the date of the
Agreement;

(vii) revise dividend policy;

(viii) (taking the Target Group as a whole) enter into loan agreement(s) or other
agreement(s) with bank(s) or other financial institution(s) to borrow funds
exceeding RMB10 million in total; and

(ix) enter into any related person transactions with its related natural persons with a
transaction amount exceeding RMB500,000, or any related person transactions
with its related legal persons with a transaction amount accounting for more than
0.50% of the latest audited total assets of the relevant Target Group Company;

within the first 21 days of the first month of each quarter, provide IWS Investment
with the consolidated financial statements of the Target Group and the individual
financial statements of each of the other members of the Target Group for the
immediate preceding quarter;

IWS Investment shall have the right to designate one person to participate and attend
the day-to-day and regular management meetings of the Target Company;

upon IWS Investment’s demand from time to time, the Target Company shall issue to
IWS Investment a written confirmation that IWS Investment has substantial influence
on the daily management and operations of the Target Group Companies but it is not
involved in their daily management and operations; and

the total dividends declared and paid to the shareholders of the Target Company for
every year shall not be less than 30% of the audited net profits after tax of the Target
Company for that year.

The Vendor shall, and shall procure the Target Group to, reduce the bank borrowings of the
Target Group through the following means:

(a)

(b)

(c)

before Completion, the total bank borrowings shall be reduced to not more than
RMB50,000,000;

within 7 Business Days after the Completion Date, the Target Company shall repay
bank borrowings in the amount of RMB20,000,000, for the purpose of which the
Vendor shall extend a loan to the Target Company in the same amount from the
proceeds from the Acquisition she received from IWS Investment. Such loan may bear
interest at a rate charged by banks in the PRC at that time for short-term borrowings
of similar amount; and

in the event that the Proposed New Issue (as defined below) is proceeded with, within
7 Business Days after completion of the Proposed New Issue, the Target Company
shall apply 20% of the net proceeds from the Proposed New Issue to repay bank
borrowings in the same amount.
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(3) In the event that the Target Company conducts a new issue (the “Proposed New Issue”) of
shares after Completion:

(a) should the valuation of the Target Company after completion of the Proposed New
Issue be less than RMB450,000,000, the Vendor shall compensate IWS Investment by
paying a sum of RMB5,000,000 in cash within 7 Business Days from completion of
the Proposed New Issue;

(b) if the Proposed New Issue shall complete within 6 months from the Completion Date,
provided that IWS Investment shall not have reduced its shareholding in the Target
Company during the said 6-month period, IWS Investment shall have a right (but not
an obligation) to purchase from the Vendor additional shares of the Target Company
on the same price determination basis as the Sale Shares, to the extent that the
percentage shareholding of IWS Investment in the Target Company shall be restored
to 13.16%; and

(c) save and except for any new issue of shares by the Target Company that may occur
upon its new listing on a stock exchange (other than the NEEQ) acceptable to IWS
Investment, the Target Company shall not issue any new shares within 6 months from
completion of the Proposed New Issue.

(4) Should the Vendor intend to dispose of shares of the Target Company to a proposed
purchaser, IWS Investment shall have a tag-along right to sell to the proposed purchaser
such number of shares of the Target Company forming part of the number of shares
proposed to be acquired by the proposed purchaser from the Vendor based on the then
shareholding proportion in the Target Company as between the Vendor and IWS Investment
and upon the same terms.

Right of first refusal

Each of the Vendor and IWS Investment shall have the right of first refusal to acquire from the
other party any shares of the Target Company (in whole or in part) which the other party may after
Completion propose to dispose of to a third party purchaser. Such acquisition shall be on the same
terms that the other party offers to the third party purchaser.

The grant of the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal by IWS Investment to the Vendor, and the
reciprocal right of first refusal granted by the Vendor to IWS Investment (the “IWS Right of First
Refusal”), are mutual arrangements between IWS Investment and the Vendor in favour of each other.
In other words, IWS Investment grants the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal in return for the IWS Right
of First Refusal.

From the perspective of IWS Investment, the IWS Right of First Refusal is important as it gives
IWS Investment the opportunity to acquire from the Vendor any share of the Target Company which
the Vendor may propose to dispose of after Completion, which ensures that IWS Investment has the
flexibility and control in future ownership structure and, hence endeavours in the Target Group.

Given the importance of the IWS Right of First Refusal to the Company, the Board is of the view
that the inclusion of the right of first refusal clause (which encompass the mutual granting of the IWS
Right of First Refusal and the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal) is fair and reasonable and in the
interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

If and when IWS Investment proposes to dispose of the shares in the Target Company after
Completion which triggers the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal, the Company will compute the
relevant size tests to see whether the proposed disposal will constitute a notifiable transaction under
Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and (if applicable) comply with the relevant requirements thereunder.
The Company will also comply with any applicable requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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Exclusivity period

During the period commencing from the date of the Agreement and ending on 31 October 2023
(both dates inclusive), unless having obtained the prior written consent from IWS Services (or IWS
Investment, as the case may be), the Vendor shall not: (a) directly or indirectly engage in negotiations
and discussions with any person other than IWS Services (or IWS Investment, as the case may be) in
relation to the acquisition of any shares of the Target Company held by the Vendor, any transaction
similar or identical to those contemplated under the Agreement, or any matter having similar or
identical effect to the transactions contemplated under the Agreement; (b) contact any such person in
relation thereto; (c) allow any such person to conduct due diligence exercise in relation thereto; and
(d) reach any agreement or arrangement in relation thereto.

REASONS FOR AND BENEFITS OF ENTERING INTO THE AGREEMENT

The Group is principally engaged in the trading of recovered paper and materials, provision of
confidential materials destruction services, manufacturing of recycling plastic pellets, and provision
of logistics services in Hong Kong. The Group also has indirect shareholding interests in hazardous
waste treatment operations in Lianyungang City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and Kaifeng, Henan
Province, the PRC.

Contemporaneous with the Group’s goal of transforming into a high value-added integrated
waste solutions providers in Hong Kong and the PRC, its strategy is to proactively seek opportunities
to enhance shareholders’ return in its core business areas. Noting its vast market size and potential
but cognizant of the industry’s intense competition, the Group’s focus has been on companies
operating in the PRC market with unique competitive edge and serving growing industries.

The Directors believe an investment in the Target Company suits the above criteria where (i) the
Target Company’s area of business is encouraged under the PRC national policies; (ii) the Target
Company is an established operator in the PRC which, in particular, holds relevant licenses to
transport chemical hazardous items and such services are in high demand from the fast growing new
energy sectors; and (iii) the Target Company has profitable track record and can immediately
contribute to the Group’s profitability. One of the Target Group’s business areas of transportation of
hazardous waste matches with the Group’s line of businesses and is consistent with the Group’s
corporate goals of making positive impact on the environment.

The Group, through Dugong IWS HAZ Limited, has interest in the fully operational treatment
plant projects in Lianyugang, Jiangsu Province, the PRC and Kaifeng, Henan Province, the PRC,
which offer comprehensive hazardous waste treatment services. The Group, as investors (directly or
indirectly) in both the Target Company and the aforesaid projects, intends to introduce the Target
Company to the hazardous waste treatment projects for potential cooperation. For example, the Group
could potentially benefit if the Target Company can provide the hazardous waste treatment projects
with lower cost and/or higher quality services. At the same time, the Target Company would benefit
from more business opportunities which in turn will benefit the Group as an investor. Therefore, the
Acquisition can bring about potential synergies and benefits to the Group.

Based on the above, the Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) consider
that the terms of the Agreement (including those of the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal) are fair and
reasonable and the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Vendor’s
Right of First Refusal) are on normal commercial terms and in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.
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INFORMATION ON THE VENDOR

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Vendor was the legal representative, a director and the
majority shareholder of the Target Company and held approximately 63.04% of the shares of the
Target Company.

INFORMATION ON THE TARGET GROUP

The Target Company is a company established in the PRC as a joint stock company with limited
liability and the shares of which are listed on the NEEQ. The principal activities of the Target Group
are the provisions of integrated supply chain solutions, including comprehensive logistics and
warehousing services and transportation of chemical hazardous goods. The Target Company is one of
the leading operators in Guangdong Province, the PRC and, in particular, possesses specific licenses
to transport and handle chemical hazardous items which include lithium-ion batteries and related raw
materials used in its production in the fast-growing new energy sectors. Another business scope of the
Target Group is transportation of hazardous waste. Operating out of Jiangmen City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC, its customers are mainly manufacturing and fast moving consumer goods
companies.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

Set out below is a summary of the audited consolidated financial information of the Target Group
for the two years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022 and the unaudited consolidated financial
information of the Target Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023, prepared based on CASBE
and as extracted from the Target Company’s publicly published annual report for the year ended 31
December 2022 and interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2023:

For the For the

year ended year ended For the six

31 December 31 December months ended

2021 2022 30 June 2023

(audited) (audited) (unaudited)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

approximately  approximately — approximately

Revenue 238,021 313,029 144,592

Profit before taxation 25,128 38,427 15,907
Profit after taxation attributable to

shareholders 22,077 33,851 14,019

As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 30 June

2021 2022 2023

(audited) (audited) (unaudited)

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

approximately  approximately  approximately

Net assets 93,925 121,146 125,214
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IMPLICATION UNDER THE LISTING RULES

As one of the applicable percentage ratios as calculated under Rule 14.07 of the Listing Rules
in respect of the Acquisition exceeds 100%, the Acquisition constitutes a very substantial acquisition
for the Company under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules and is therefore subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements thereunder.

Further, pursuant to Rule 14.72 of the Listing Rules, the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal
constitutes an option granted by the Group to the Vendor. As its exercise is not at the discretion of
the Group, the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal will be classified at the time of grant as if it had been
exercised. Since the exercise price of the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal and the value of the
underlying shares of the Target Company cannot be determined until IWS Investment proposes to
dispose of any shares of the Target Company, the grant of the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal will be
classified as at least a major transaction for the Company pursuant to Rule 14.76(1) of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the grant of the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal is subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

WAIVER FROM STRICT COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 14.69(4)(a)(i) and 14.69(7) OF THE
LISTING RULES

Rule 14.69(4)(a)(i) of the Listing Rules requires this circular to contain, among others, an
accountants’ report (the “Target Accountants’ Report”) on the Target Company in accordance with
Chapter 4 of the Listing Rules.

Further, pursuant to Rule 14.69(7) of the Listing Rules, the Company is required to include in
this circular a discussion and analysis of results of the Target Company covering all those matters set
out in paragraph 32 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules for the period reported in the Target
Accountants’ Report.

Waiver sought

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for waiver from strict compliance with Rules
14.69(4)(a)(i) and 14.69(7) of the Listing Rules on the following grounds:

1. The Acquisition is a transaction solely between the Vendor and IWS Investment, which is
governed by the Agreement to which only the Vendor and IWS Investment are privy.
Although its shares are the subject matter of the Acquisition, the Target Company is not
obligated to assist the Company in preparing the Target Accountants’ Report. Without the
assistance of the Target Company, neither the Vendor (in her capacity as a shareholder of
the Target Company) nor the Company (which to the Target Company is an unrelated third
party) can legally have access to the Target Company’s books and records for the purpose
of preparing the Target Accountants’ Report. This is notwithstanding the capacity of the
Vendor as a director of the Target Company. In this respect, the Company’s request, made
through the Vendor to the Target Company, to gain access to the financial information
necessary for the purpose of preparing the Target Accountants’ Report was not entertained
by the Target Company. For these reasons, strict compliance by the Company with the
requirements under Rule 14.69(4)(a)(i) of the Listing Rules to prepare the Target
Accountants’ Report is impracticable and unduly burdensome to the Company.

2. Under the Acquisition, the Group will acquire only approximately 13.16% of the shares of
the Target Company as at the Latest Practicable Date. Upon Completion, the Target
Company will be treated as an associate of the Group. That is to say, the Target Company
will not become a subsidiary of the Company upon Completion and its financial results will
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not be consolidated into the financial statements of the Group. Given the aforesaid
accounting treatment, it is submitted that the time and costs that may have to be incurred
by the Company is disproportionate to the extent of how the Acquisition will be accounted
for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements after Completion.

The Target Company is a company established in the PRC as a joint stock company with
limited liability, the shares of which have been listed on the NEEQ since December 2016.
The Target Company is required to publish its audited annual financial results and
unaudited interim results on the website of the NEEQ (www.neeq.com.cn) and such
information is therefore publicly available. Disclosures of the Target Group’s financial
information are subject to supervision by the NEEQ and must comply with the Rules for
Information Disclosures of Companies listed on the National Equities Exchange and
Quotations.

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for the three years ended
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively and the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Target Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 have been published
in the manner described in sub-paragraph 3 above. The said audited consolidated financial
statements were audited by WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP
(KRG & 51HRTE 25 BT (FR R % 5 5%)) (“Daxin”) and all the said consolidated financial
statements (whether audited or unaudited) were prepared in accordance with CASBE,
which are expressly recognised by the Listing Rules in the case of a PRC issuer under Rule
4.11(c) of the Listing Rules.

Furthermore, as advised by PKF Hong Kong Limited (“PKF”), the reporting accountants
of the Company in relation to this circular, assuming that the Company is able to gain
access to the necessary books and records of the Target Group, the management of the
Company will have to prepare the Target Group’s financial information for the three years
ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively and the six months ended 30 June
2022 and 2023 respectively in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRS”), being the accounting standards adopted by the Company, and PKF will then
conduct an audit on such financial information for the three years ended 31 December
2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively and the six months ended 30 June 2023 in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and a review on financial information for the six
months ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with “International Standard on Review
Engagements 2400”. It would therefore be unduly burdensome for the Company to prepare
the financial information of the Target Group based on IFRS (if at all feasible) and for PKF
to audit or review (as the case may be) the same. Converting the financial information of
the Target Group from CASBE to IFRS may not provide any additional material
information when compared to the publicly published financial statements of the Target
Group based on CASBE.

While Daxin is not registered under the Professional Accountants Ordinance (Chapter 50
of the Laws of Hong Kong), it is registered with the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“CICPA”) and the Ministry of Finance of the PRC (the “MOF”). As
announced by the CICPA in September 2023, Daxin ranks thirteenth in the comprehensive
appraisal ranking of the top 100 accounting firms for the year 2022 (20224 £ & 51 fifi 555
T 45 A FTAE B K PE4). Its clients include more than 30 major PRC state-owned enterprises
such as China State Shipbuilding Corporation Limited, State Power Investment
Corporation Limited, China National Nuclear Corporation and Aviation Industry
Corporation of China, Ltd., financial institutions as well as over 190 listed companies
(including A-share, B-share and H-share companies). Daxin is a reputable accounting firm
subject to regulatory supervision by the MOF and CICPA.
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Daxin is regulated by the MOF and the CICPA. The CICPA on its own, or based on the
request from the CSRC, can make investigations concerning violations attributed to
auditors. The CSRC, which is a signatory to the Multilateral Memorandum of
Understanding Concerning Consultation and Cooperation and the Exchange of Information
developed by the International Organization of Securities Commissions, is responsible for
regulating standards in financial markets and has the power to take enforcement action
against relevant individuals and firms.

Daxin is independent of both the Target Group and of any other company concerned as
required under the Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants, and is committed to maintaining its independence
both in fact and in perception and its policies are designed in compliance with local laws
and ethical principles.

Given the reasons stated above, the Company is unable to prepare the discussion and
analysis of results of the Target Company as required under Rule 14.69(7) of the Listing
Rules based solely on the publicly disclosed financial information of the Target Group. In
addition, the Company is not in a position to express any view as to the truth, accuracy or
completeness on the discussion and analysis of the results of the Target Company as set out
in its publicly published information.

Alternative disclosures

To facilitate the Shareholders and potential investors of the Company to evaluate the Acquisition
and to assess the Target Group’s activities and financial position, the Company has included in this
circular the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

the audited consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for the three years ended
31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively prepared in accordance with CASBE as
extracted from the publicly published documents of the Target Company, on which Daxin
has not issued any audit qualifications, as set out in Appendix II to this circular;

the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for the six months
ended 30 June 2023 prepared in accordance with CASBE as extracted from the publicly
published documents of the Target Company, as set out in Appendix II to this circular;

a line-by-line reconciliation for the Target Group’s financial information, reviewed by PKF
under “Hong Kong Standard of Assurance Engagements 3000”, which primarily consists of
(i) comparison of the unadjusted financial information of the Target Group for the three
years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively and for the six months ended
30 June 2023 (the “Relevant Periods”) set out in the reconciliation with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for the three years ended 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 respectively and the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Target Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023 in accordance with
the Target Group’s accounting policies under CASBE; (ii) consideration on the adjustments
made and evidence supporting the adjustments made in arriving at the adjusted financial
information under the Company’s accounting policies, which includes examining the
differences between the Target Company’s accounting policies under CASBE and the
Company’s accounting policies under IFRS; and (iii) checking of the arithmetic accuracy
of the computation of the adjusted financial information under the Company’s accounting
policies, as set out in Appendix II to this circular;

additional information which is required for an accountants’ report under the Listing Rules

but not disclosed in the Target Company’s publicly published financial statements, as set
out in Appendix II to this circular; and
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(e) a discussion and analysis of the results of the Target Company for the Relevant Periods as
extracted from the publicly published documents of the Target Company, as set out in
Appendix III to this circular.

Based on the information provided by the Company and the alternative disclosures mentioned
above, the Stock Exchange has granted the waiver from strict compliance with Rules 14.69(4)(a)(i)
and 14.69(7) of the Listing Rules.

EGM

The notice of the EGM is set out on pages EGM-1 to EGM-3 of this circular. At the EGM, an
ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve, among others, the Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder (including the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal).

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be taken by
poll, except where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates purely to
a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of hands. Accordingly, the proposed
resolution will be put to vote by way of poll at the EGM. An announcement on the poll results will
be made by the Company after the EGM in the manner prescribed under Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing
Rules.

A form of proxy for use at the EGM is enclosed with this circular and such form of proxy is also
published on the Company’s website (www.iwsgh.com) and the designated website of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) respectively. Whether or not you are able to attend the EGM in person
online, please (i) complete and sign the accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the
instructions printed thereon and return it, together with the power of attorney or other authority (if
any) under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power of attorney or authority, to
the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong; or (ii) submit the form of
proxy electronically through the Tricor e-Meeting System (https://spot-emeeting.tricor.hk) as soon as
possible but in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the EGM or any
adjournment thereof. Completion and delivery of the form of proxy will not preclude you from
attending and voting at the EGM or any adjourned meeting thereof if you so wish. In such event, your
proxy form shall be deemed to be revoked.

As at the Latest Practicable Date, to the best knowledge of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, no Shareholder had a material interest in the Agreement and would be required
to abstain from voting on the ordinary resolution to be proposed at the EGM in respect of the
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder.

RECOMMENDATION

The Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors) believe that the Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including the Vendor’s Right of First Refusal) are in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole and are fair and reasonable so far as
the Shareholders are concerned. Accordingly, the Directors (including the independent non-executive
Directors) recommend the Shareholders to vote in favour of the ordinary resolution to be proposed at
the EGM to approve the Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder (including the
Vendor’s Right of First Refusal).
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Your attention is drawn to the additional information set out in the appendices to this circular.

Yours faithfully
On behalf of the Board
Integrated Waste Solutions Group Holdings Limited
Cheng Chi Ming, Brian
Chairman
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1. THREE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

Details of the financial information of the Group for the three years ended 31 March 2021, 2022
and 2023, respectively, have been set out in the Company’s annual reports for the year ended 31 March
2021 (from pages 53 to 136), the year ended 31 March 2022 (from pages 53 to 136) and the year ended
31 March 2023 (from pages 51 to 128).

All annual reports of the Company have been posted on the websites of the Company
(www.iwsgh.com) and of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

2. INDEBTEDNESS STATEMENT

As at the close of business on 31 October 2023, being the latest practicable date for the purpose
of ascertaining the indebtedness of the Group prior to the printing of this circular, the Group had:

Loan from non-controlling interests shareholder

As at 31 October 2023, the Group had an interest-bearing loan due to non-controlling interests
shareholder of approximately HK$392,000, with no security nor pledge.

Save as aforesaid, and apart from intra-group liabilities, at the close of business on 31 October
2023, the Group did not have any debt securities issued and outstanding or agreed to be issued, bank
overdrafts, loans or other similar indebtedness, liabilities under acceptances or acceptance credits,
debentures, mortgages, charges, hire purchases commitments, guarantees or other material contingent
liabilities.

3.  WORKING CAPITAL SUFFICIENCY OF THE GROUP

The Directors are of the opinion that, after taking into account the Acquisition, the working
capital available to the Group is sufficient for the Group’s requirements for at least the next 12 months
from the date of this circular in the absence of any unforeseen circumstances.

4. FINANCIAL AND TRADING PROSPECT OF THE GROUP

As mentioned under the paragraph headed “Letter from the Board — Reasons for and benefits
of entering into the Agreement” in this circular, the Directors have been proactively seeking
opportunities to enhance shareholders’ return in its core business areas. The Directors believe an
investment in the Target Company, which has profitable track record, can immediately contribute to
the Group’s profitability. Furthermore, one of the Target Group’s business areas of transportation of
hazardous waste matches with the Group’s line of businesses and is consistent with the Group’s
corporate goals of making positive impact on the environment. There is also potential synergistic
cooperation between the Target Group and the hazardous waste treatment projects in the PRC in which
the Group has indirectly invested.

Although the Directors expect there are still risks and uncertainties which would hinder the
global economic recovery, they are cautiously optimistic towards the overall outlook of the Group.
The Directors will continue to explore and identify suitable investment opportunities to sustain
long-term growth and strive to enhance our capabilities and competitive edge to improve
Shareholders’ return.

5. MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGE
As at the Latest Practicable Date, the Directors were not aware of any material adverse change

in the financial or trading position of the Group since 31 March 2023, being the date to which the
latest published audited consolidated financial statements of the Group were made up.

- 11 -



APPENDIX I FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

6. EFFECTS OF THE ACQUISITION ON THE EARNINGS AND ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES OF THE GROUP

Following Completion, the Company will own 13.16% equity interest in the Target Company.
The Target Company will become an associate of the Group, and the financial results of the Target
Group will be equity accounted for in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

As referred to in the unaudited pro forma financial information of the Enlarged Group as set out
in Appendix IV to this circular, on the basis of the notes set out therein for the purposes of illustrating
the effects of the Acquisition, the financial effects of the Acquisition on the Group as if the
Acquisition had taken place and had been completed on 31 March 2023 would be as follows:

(a) As for assets and liabilities of the Group, the total assets will increase by approximately
HK$50 million while cash and cash equivalent will decrease by approximately HK$8.5
million upon the completion of the Acquisition. Total liabilities will increase by HK$50
million subsequent to the drawdown of the loan from the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

(b) It is expected that, subject to audit, there will be no financial effect to the revenue of the

Group after Completion as the income of the Target Group will not be consolidated into that
of the Group.
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A. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP FOR EACH OF THE THREE
YEARS ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020, 2021 AND 2022 AND THE SIX MONTHS ENDED
30 JUNE 2023

For the purpose of this section only, unless the context requires otherwise, references to the
“Company” are to the Target Company and references to the “Group” are to the Target Group, and

LT IT3

references to “we”, “us” and “our” shall be construed accordingly.

The following is an extract of the audited consolidated financial statements of the Target Group
for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 and the unaudited consolidated financial
statements of the Target Group for the six months ended 30 June 2023, which were prepared in
accordance with China Accounting Standards for Business Enterprise (“CAS”), as extracted from the
respective annual reports/interim report and consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for
the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 and the six months ended 30 June 2023. These
financial statements were issued in Chinese and the English translated version is provided for
information purposes only. In case of discrepancies between the two versions, the Chinese version
shall prevail.

The annual reports/interm report and consolidated financial statements of the Target Group for
the three years ended 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022 and the six months ended 30 June 2023 are
available at the website of the National Equities Exchange And Quotations Exchange
(http://www.neeq.com.cn).

The Directors wish to emphasise that the extracts reproduced below are not prepared for
incorporation into this circular and the Company has not participated in their preparation. As such,
the Directors do not express any view as to their truth, accuracy or completeness, and the shareholders
and investors should exercise caution and should not place undue reliance on such information.
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SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

I. AUDITOR’S REPORT

Audited or not Yes
Auditor’s opinion Unmodified opinion
VNil

oEmphasized matter paragraph
oOther matters paragraph

oGoing concern material uncertainty paragraph
gOther information paragraph containing explanations
on uncorrected material misstatement of other

Special paragraphs in the auditor’s report

information
Auditor’s report number Da Xin Shen Zi [2021] No. 22-10010
Name of audit institution WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP
Address of audit institution Room 1504, Xueyuan International Tower, No. 1 Zhichun Road,
Haidian District, Beijing
Date of the auditor’s report 30 April 2021
Xia Ling (E¥#) Gong Fuguo (ZEHED
Name of the certified public accountant who
signed and consecutive years of signing 1 year 3 years
Any change in the accounting firm No

Consecutive service years of the accounting firm | 4 years

Audit remuneration for the accounting firm RMB150,000

AUDITOR’S REPORT
Da Xin Shen Zi [2021] No. 22-10010

To all the members of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.:

1. Auditor’s Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet of the
parent company as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated income statement and income statement of
the parent company, the consolidated cash flow statement and cash flow statement of the parent company,
and the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’
equity of the parent company for the year 2020, and the notes to these financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in all material aspects, give a fair view of the Company’s consolidated
financial position and financial position of the parent company as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
operating results and cash flows of the parent company for the year 2020.

I1. Basis for the Auditor’s Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for PRC Certified Public
Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Certified Public
Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of the auditor’s report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for audit opinion.

46
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I1I. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

(I) Revenue recognition

1.Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (XXV) to the financial statements of the Company, in 2020, the Company
recognised revenue from principal activities of RMB192,190,801.37, which was mainly attributable to
revenue from the provision of transportation and storage and logistics services. We identified revenue from
principal activities as a key audit matter because the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the
recognition of revenue from principal activities has a greater impact on the Company's profit, and
considering that revenue is one of the Company's key performance indicators, which results in the inherent
risk that revenue may be recognized in an incorrect period or be manipulated to achieve target or expected
levels.

2. Audit response

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue included: 1. obtaining an understanding of and
assessing the design and operating effectiveness of management’s key internal controls relating to revenue
recognition; 2. inspecting service contracts on a sample basis, identifying contract terms and conditions and
assessing whether the timing of revenue recognition was in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises; 3. selecting samples of service revenue transactions recorded during the year,
checking invoices, contracts, receipt records and reconciliation records, and evaluating whether the related
revenue recognition was in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies for revenue recognition; 4.
selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded before and after the balance sheet date, checking the
confirmation documents for the provision of services and other supporting documents to evaluate whether the
revenue was recorded in the appropriate accounting period; 5. issuing confirmations to major customers to verify
whether the operating income was true and recorded in the correct period.

(IT) Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable

1.Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (III) to the financial statements of the Company, as of 31 December 2020, the book
balance of the Company’s accounts receivable was RMBS59,518,534.58 with provision for bad debts of
RMB2,005,716.91 and carrying amount of RMB57,512,817.67. We identified the provision for bad debts of
accounts receivable as a key audit matter due to the significant accounting estimates and judgements involved in
the determination of provision for bad debts by the management and the significance of the provision for bad
debts of accounts receivable to the financial statements.

2. Audit response

The main audit procedures we implemented for the provision for bad debts of receivables included: 1.
obtaining an understanding of the key internal controls related to the impairment of accounts receivable, evaluating
the design of these controls, determining whether they have been implemented, and testing the effectiveness of the
operation of relevant internal controls; 2. reviewing the relevant consideration and objective evidence of the
management’s credit risk assessment or impairment test on accounts receivable, and evaluating whether the
management appropriately identified the credit risk characteristics of accounts receivable or impaired accounts
receivable; 3. for accounts receivable with expected credit losses measured on a collective basis, evaluating the
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rationality of the management’s grouping based on credit risk characteristics; evaluating the reasonableness of the
comparison table of the ageing of accounts receivable against the expected credit loss rates determined by the
management based on historical credit loss experience and forward-looking estimates; testing the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by management and the accuracy of the calculation of the provision for bad debts; 4.
selecting samples to confirm the large accounts receivable or a portion of accounts receivable with small amount
but with large occurrences at the end of the period; 5. checking whether the information related to the impairment of
accounts receivable has been properly presented in the financial statements.

IV. Other Information

The management of the Company (the “Management™) are responsible for the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the 2020 annual report of the Company, other than the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read other information and, in
doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work so performed, we shall report any material misstatement as contained in other information
that we ascertain. In this aspect, we have no such matter to be reported.

V. Responsibilities of the Management and Governing Bodies for the Financial
Statements

The Management is responsible for preparing and presenting fairly the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, as well as designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and use the going concern
assumption unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The governing bodies are responsible for supervising the financial reporting processes of the Company.

VI. Certified Public Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we performed the following tasks:
(I) identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence
48
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that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. As fraud could involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omission, false statements or overriding internal controls, thus risks of inability to discover
major misrepresentation are more severe than risks of inability to spot misrepresentation due to mistake.

(IT) understanding the audit related internal controls in order to design appropriate audit procedures, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the internal control’s effectiveness.

(IIT) evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

(IV) concluding on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern assumption. And
based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required by the Auditing Standards to draw attention to users of
financial statements in our auditor’s report on the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the information obtained up to the
date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

(V) evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a fair manner.

(VI) obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidences regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express audit opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit and remain solely responsibility for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the governing bodies regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including deficiencies worth of attention in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the governing bodies with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the governing bodies, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or regulations prohibited public disclosure about the matter
or when, in rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditor’s report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP PRC certified public accountant: Xia Ling
(Engagement Partner)
China - Beijing PRC certified public accountant: Gong Fuguo
30 April 2021
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I1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(I) Consolidated Balance Sheet

Unit: RMB

Item

Note

31 December 2020

1 January 2020

Current assets:

Monetary funds

V(D)

22,145,301.57

16,616,994.59

Settlement reserve

Placements with financial institutions

Financial assets held for trading

vdn

7,800,000.00

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

0

0

Trade receivables

V(III)

57,512,817.67

26,302,711.30

Receivables financing

Prepayments

V(V)

3,654,261.41

3,292,176.63

Premium receivables

Reinsurance accounts receivable

Reserves for reinsurance contract
receivable

Other receivables

V(V)

5,980,716.01

8,019,884.02

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell

Inventories

Contract assets

Assets held for sales

Non-current assets due within one
year

Other current assets

V(VD

27,466.78

647,662.58

Total current assets

89,320,563.44

62,679,429.12

Non-current assets:

Loans and advances to customers

Debt investment

Other debt investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

Other equity instrument investments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties

0

0

Fixed assets

V(VID)

11,842,546.67

8,665,872.32

Construction in progress

V(VIII)

20,996,342.98

4,429,841.33

Productive biological assets

Oil and gas assets
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Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

V(IX)

22,310,711.46

23,148,336.87

Development expenses

Goodwill

V(X)

0

14,361.58

Long-term deferred expenses

V(XI)

54,870.82

78,386.86

Deferred income tax assets

V(XII)

610,286.11

196,625.46

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

55,814,758.04

36,533,424.42

Total assets

145,135,321.48

99,212,853.54

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

V(XIII)

17,019,833.33

5,500,000.00

Borrowings from central bank

Placements from financial institutions

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Trade payables

V(XIV)

39,415,780.19

10,433,576.00

Advance receipts

Contract liabilities

Financial assets sold under agreements
to repurchase

Deposits from customers and others

Brokerage for securities trading

Brokerage for underwriting securities

Employee benefits payable

V(XV)

1,271,013.18

1,437,926.69

Taxes payable

V(XVI)

1,863,209.74

330,476.16

Other payables

V(XVID)

3,832,244.12

1,297,942.35

Including: Interest payable

V(XVII)

31,782.30

Dividend payable

Fees and commissions payable

Reinsurance accounts payable

Liabilities held for sales

Non-current liabilities due within one
year

V(XVIII)

3,720,000.00

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

63,402,080.56

22,719,921.20

Non-current liabilities:

Reserves for insurance contracts

Long-term borrowings

V(XIX)

2,051,818.42

9,560,000.00

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

Long-term employee remuneration
payables

51

- 107 -




APPENDIX II

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

Estimated liabilities
Deferred income V(XX) 7,509,042.41 1,263,350.60
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities 9,560,860.83 10,823,350.60

Total liabilities 72,962,941.39 33,543,271.80
Owners’ equity (or shareholders’
equity):
Share capital V(XXI) 42,600,000.00 42,600,000.00
Other equity instruments
Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves V(XXII) 3,143,108.23 3,143,108.23
Less: Treasury shares
Other comprehensive income
Special reserves
Surplus reserves V(XXIII) 5,459,863.32 3,806,036.48
General risk provisions
Retained earnings V(XXIV) 20,969,408.54 16,120,437.03
Total owners’ equity attributable to 72,172,380.09 65,669,581.74
the parent company
Minority interest

Total owners’ equity 72,172,380.09 65,669,581.74

Total liabilities and owners’ 145,135,321.48 99,212,853.54
equity

Legal representative: Zhang Yan
Head of accounting department: Zhao

Principal in charge of accounting: Jia Liping

Shufen

(II) Parent Company Balance Sheet

Unit: RMB
Item Note 31 December 2020 1 January 2020

Current assets:
Monetary funds 19,645,632.07 16,493,680.04
Financial assets held for trading 5,500,000.00
Derivative financial assets
Bill receivables
Trade receivables XII(T) 56,617,508.84 25,361,197.30
Receivables financing
Prepayments 3,596,890.75 3,247,504.63
Other receivables XII(IT) 5,915,456.60 7,947,418.01
Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable
Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell
Inventories
Contract assets
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Assets held for sales

Non-current assets due within one
year

Other current assets

547,871.51

Total current assets

85,775,488.26

59,097,671.49

Non-current assets:

Debt investment

Other debt investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments XII(IIT) 268,000.00 268,000.00
Other equity instrument investments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties

Fixed assets 11,713,749.96 8,530,791.60
Construction in progress 20,996,342.98 4,429,841.33

Productive biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

22,310,711.46

23,148,336.87

Development expenses

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

54,870.82

78,386.86

Deferred income tax assets

594,684.78

180,638.22

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

55,938,360.00

36,635,994.88

Total assets

141,713,848.26

95,733,666.37

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

17,019,833.33

5,500,000.00

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Accounts payable

38,181,407.63

9,619,411.98

Advance receipts

Financial assets sold under
agreements to repurchase

Employee remuneration payable

1,246,241.58

1,322,566.53

Taxes payable

1,862,909.08

330,311.65

Other payables

3,719,150.24

1,034,848.47

Including: Interest payable

31,782.30

Dividend payable

Contract liabilities

Liabilities held for sales

Non-current liabilities due within one
year

3,720,000.00

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

62,029,541.86

21,527,138.63
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Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

2,051,818.42

9,560,000.00

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

Long-term employee remuneration
payables

Estimated liabilities

Deferred revenue

7,509,042.41

1,263,350.60

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

9,560,860.83

10,823,350.60

Total liabilities

71,590,402.69

32,350,489.23

Owners’ equity

Share capital

42,600,000.00

42,600,000.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

Less: Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

5,459,863.32

3,806,036.48

General risk provisions

Retained earnings

18,920,474.02

13,834,032.43

Total owners’ equity

70,123,445.57

63,383,177.14

Total liabilities and owners’ equity

141,713,848.26

95,733,666.37

(IIT) Consolidated Income Statement

Unit: RMB
Item Note 2020 2019

I. Total operating income 192,882,744.98 147,428,803.08
Including: Operating income V(XXV) 192,882,744.98 147,428,803.08

Interest income

Premiums earned

Fee and commission income
T ol ot i G 172,467,153.57 137,402,899.80
Including: Operating costs V(XXV) 157,474,757.98 124,739,912.74
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Interest expense

Fee and commission expenses

Surrender payment

Net expenses of claim settlement

Net provision for insurance contracts

Expenditures for policy dividend

Reinsurance expenditures

- II-11 -

Tax and surcharges V(XXVI) 305,753.15 226,710.48
Selling expenses V(XXVII) 1,284,608.63 1,272,754.60
Administrative expenses V(XXVIII) 4,416,023.89 4,211,507.85
R&D expenses V(XXIX) 8,143,590.17 5,747,403.59
Financial expenses V(XXX) 842,419.75 1,204,610.54
Including: Interest expenses V(XXX) 849,740.22 1,215,057.37
Interest income V(XXX) 12,576.06 25,879.41
Add: Other revenue V(XXXI) 354,308.19 391,451.04
Investment income (loss represented by V(XXXII) 237,566.82 222,601.61
‘5_”)
Including: Gains from investment in
associates and joint ventures
Gains on derecognition of financial
assets at amortized cost (loss represented
by 5‘_”)
Exchange gain (loss represented by “-) 0.00 0.00
Net exposure hedging income (loss
represented by “-)
Gains on changes in fair value (loss 0.00 0.00
repregepted by “)
Credit impairment losses (loss V(XXXII) -2,758,766.76 915,832.61
represented by “-)
Assets impairment losses (loss V(XXXIV) -14,361.58 0.00
represented by “-”)
Gains on disposals of assets (loss 0.00 0.00
represented by “-)
II1. Operating profit (loss represented by “-”) 18,234,338.08 11,555,788.54
Add: Non-operating income V(XXXV) 4,546.76 452,800.00
Less: Non-operating expenses V(XXXVI) 76,094.55 118,700.00
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IV. Total profit (total loss represented by “-”

18,162,790.29

11,889,888.54

Less: Income tax expense

V(XXXVII)

1,861,991.94

1,063,525.86

V. Net profit (net loss represented by “-”)

16,300,798.35

10,826,362.68

Including: Net profit achieved by the acquiree prior
to the acquisition

(I) By continuity of operations:

1. Net profit from continuing operations (net loss
represented by “-”)

16,300,798.35

10,826,362.68

2. Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss
represented by “-”)

(II) By ownership:

1. Profits or losses attributable to minority
shareholders (net loss represented by “-”)

2. Net profit attributable to owners of the parent
company (net loss represented by “-”’)

16,300,798.35

10,826,362.68

VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(T) Other comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the parent company, net of tax

1. Other comprehensive income that may not be
reclassified to profit or loss

(1) Changes arising from the re-measurement of
defined benefit plan

(2) Other comprehensive income that may not be
reclassified to profit or loss under the equity
method

(3) Change in fair value of investments in other
equity istruments

(4) Change in fair value of corporate credit risk

(5) Others

2. Other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

(1) Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss under the equity
method

(2) Changes in fair value of other debt
mvestments

(3) Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

(4) Provision for credit impairment of other debt
mvestments

(5) Cash flow hedge reserve

%6) Exchange differences on translation of
inancial statements in foreign currency

(7) Others

(II) Other comprehensive income attributable to
minority shareholders, net of tax

VII. Total comprehensive income

16,300,798.35

10,826,362.68

(I) Total comprehensive income attributable to
owners of the parent company

16,300,798.35

10,826,362.68

(IT) Total comprehensive income attributable to
minority sharcholders

VIII. Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)

0.38

0.25

(IT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)

0.38

0.25

Legal representative: Zhang Yan
Head of accounting department: Zhao Shufen

Principal in charge of accounting:
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(IV) Parent Company Income Statement

Unit: RMB
Item Note 2020 2019
I. Operating Income XII(IV) 188,930,364.94 | 137,053,729.81
Less: Operating costs XII(IV) 153,443,991.95 | 114,940,248.18
Tax and surcharges 303,776.75 217,655.28
Selling expenses 1,118,381.16 1,019,015.33
Administrative expenses 4,410,363.49 4,210,515.93
R&D expenses 8,143,590.17 5,747,403.59
Financial expenses 839,475.77 1,201,769.30
Including: Interest expenses 849,740.22 1,215,057.37
Interest income 11,323.84 24,519.19
Add: Other gains 354,308.19 391,451.04
Investment income (loss represented by “-”) XIL(V) 205,182.95 174,646.55
Including: Gains from investment in associates and
Jjoint ventures
Gains on derecanition of financial assets at
amortized cost (loss represented by “-)
Exchange gain (loss represented by “-”)
}%et exposure hedging income (loss represented by “-
%ains on changes in fair value (loss represented by “-
Credit impairment losses (loss represented by “-”) -2,760,310.41 880,120.71

Assets impairment losses (loss represented by “-)

Gains on disposals of assets (loss represented by “-)

II. Operating profit (loss represented by “-’)

18,469,966.38

11,163,340.50

Add: Non-operating income 3,002.63 452,800.00
Less: Non-operating expenses 73,094.55 115,700.00
I11. Total profit (total loss represented by “-” 18,399,874.46 11,500,440.50
Less: Income tax expense 1,861,606.03 1,043,306.44

IV. Net profit (net loss represented by “-”

16,538,268.43

10,457,134.06

(I) Net profit from continuing operations (net loss
represented by “-””)

16,538,268.43

10,457,134.06

(IT) Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss
represented by “-”

V. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(I) Other comprehensive income that may not be
reclassified to profit or loss

1. Changes arising from the re-measurement of defined
benefit plan

2. Other comprehensive income that may not be
reclassified to profit or loss under the equity method

3. Change in fair value of investments in other equity
instruments
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4. Change in fair value of corporate credit risk

5. Others

(II) Other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income that may be
reclassified to profit or loss under the equity
method

2. Changes in fair value of other debt
investments

3. Financial assets reclassified into other
comprehensive income

4. Provision for credit impairment of other debt
imvestments

5. Cash flow hedge reserve

6. Exchange differences on translation of
financial statements in foreign currency

7. Others

VI. Total comprehensive income

16,538,268.43

10,457,134.06

VII. Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)

(IT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)

(V) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Unit: RMB

Item

Note

2020

2019

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of
services

177,463,757.19

188,057,516.88

Net increase in deposits from customer and interbank

Net increase in borrowings from central bank

Net increase in placements from other financial
mstitutions

Cash received from premiums under original insurance
contracts

Net cash received from reinsurance business

Net increase in deposits and investments from
policyholders

Cash received from interest, fee and commission

Net increase in placements

Net increase in capital from repurchase business

Net cash from brokerage for trading securities

Refund of taxes and surcharges

Cash received from other operation related activities

V(XXXVIII)

12,313,110.87

11,784,416.07

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating
activities

189,776,868.06

199,841,932.95

Cash paid for purchase of goods and receipt of services

134,266,362.48

139,836,964.14

Net increase in loans and advances to customers

Net increase in deposits with central bank and other
banks

Cash paid for compensation payments under original
insurance contracts

Net increase in financial assets held for trading

Net increase in placements with banks
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Cash paid for interest, fee and commission

Cash paid for policyholder dividends

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

16,856,858.48

18,814,711.61

Tax and charges paid 2,532,731.71 3,384,123.54
Cash paid for other operation related activities V(XXXVII) 7,585,592.42 | 13,907,702.01
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 161,241,545.09 |175,943,501.30
Net cash flows from operating activities V(XXXIX) 28,535,322.97 | 23,838,431.65
II. Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash received from disposal of investments 59,700,000.00 [102,300,000.00
Cash received from investment income 237,566.82 222,601.61
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units
Cash received from other investment related activities
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 59,937,566.82 |102,522,601.61
Cash paid for purchasing and constructing fixed assets, 20,656,712.04 5,380,372.50
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investment 51,900,000.00 [110,100,000.00
Net increase in pledged loans
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business
units
Cash paid for other investment related activities
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 72,556,712.04 |115,480,372.50
Net cash flows from investing activities -12,619,145.22 | -12,957,770.89
II1. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from capital contribution
Including: Cash received from capital contributions by
minority shareholders of subsidiaries
Cash received from borrowings 19,180,000.00 5,500,000.00
Cash received from issuance of bonds
Cash received from other financing related activities V(XXXVII) 850,000.00 600,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 20,030,000.00 |  6,100,000.00
Cash repayments of borrowings 18,910,800.00 @ 16,762,314.11
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, profits or 10,657,070.77 6,295,275.07
interest expenses
Including: Cash payments for dividends or profit to
minority shareholders of subsidiaries
Cash paid for other financing related activities VXXXVII) 550,000.00
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities 29,567,870.77 | 23,607,589.18
Net cash flows from financing activities -9,537,870.77 | -17,507,589.18
1V. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash
and cash equivalents
. . . 6,378,306.98 | -6,566,928.42
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
V(XXXIX) 15,766,994.59 | 22,333,923.01

Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the
beginning of the period
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VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of
the period

V(XXXIX)

22,145,301.57

15,766,994.59

Legal representative: Zhang Yan
Head of accounting department: Zhao Shufen

(VI) Cash Flows Statement of the Parent Company

Principal in charge of accounting: Jia Liping

Unit: RMB

Item

Note

2020

2019

I. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services

173,108,028.76

174,519,274.46

Refund of taxes and surcharges

Cash received from other operation related activities

12,052,993.28

9,498,286.26

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities

185,161,022.04

184,017,560.72

Cash paid for purchase of goods and receipt of services

130,937,456.79

126,130,309.79

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

16,126,784.07

17,842,255.91

Tax and charges paid

2,530,911.51

3,132,476.06

Cash paid for other operation related activities

7,168,117.78

12,477,113.34

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities

156,763,270.15

159,582,155.10

Net cash flows from operating activities

28,397,751.89

24,435,405.62

I1. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments

48,100,000.00

87,800,000.00

Cash received from investment income

205,182.95

174,646.55

Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible
assets and other long-term assets

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units

Cash received from other investment related activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities

48,305,182.95

87,974,646.55

Cash paid for purchasing and constructing fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

20,563,112.04

5,380,372.50

Cash paid for investment

42,600,000.00

93,300,000.00

Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business units

Cash paid for other investment related activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities

63,163,112.04

98,680,372.50

Net cash flows from investing activities

-14,857,929.09

-10,705,725.95

II1. Cash flows from financing activities:

Cash received from capital contribution

Cash received from borrowings 19,180,000.00 5,500,000.00
Cash received from issuance of bonds
Cash received from other financing related activities 850,000.00 600,000.00
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Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 20,030,000.00 6,100,000.00
Cash repayments of borrowings 18,910,800.00 16,762,314.11
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, profits or 10,657,070.77 6,295,275.07
interest expenses
Cash paid for other financing related activities 550,000.00

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities

29,567,870.77

23,607,589.18

Net cash flows from financing activities

-9,537,870.77

-17,507,589.18

IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents

V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

4,001,952.03

-3,777,909.51

Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period

15,643,680.04

19,421,589.55

VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

19,645,632.07

15,643,680.04
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III. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Notes to Financial Statements of
An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.

(Expressed in RMB in these notes, unless otherwise stated)

I. Basic Corporate Information

(I) Place of registration, type of organization and address of headquarter.

An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (the "Company") was established on 17 June 2016 after
the completion of the financial restructuring of Jiangmen An Jie Logistics Co., Ltd. and has obtained the
business licence from Jiangmen City Industrial and Commercial Administrative Bureau. The Company’s
Uniform Social Credit Code is 91440703760601562R.

Form of the corporate organisation: joint stock company.

Registered address: Room 202, No.13 Jiantang Road, Tangxia Town, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen
City; No0.98 Hongxing Road, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen City.

(IT) The business nature of the Company and its main business activities.

The industry in which the Company operates: roads and transportation businesses.

Scope of business of the Company: dangerous cargo transport, general cargo transport (operating
with valid “road transport operation licences”); warehouse management, transit, division or merge of
cargo in container, warehousing and delivery, uploading and unloading of cargo; domestic airline sales
agency; sales of motorcycle components; development and sales of software. (The items that requires
approval by law can only be dealt in after being approved by the relevant departments.)

(ITI) Approver of the financial report and the date of approval.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 30 April 2021.

(IV) The scope of consolidation of the Company’s financial statements for the year

As of 31 December 2020, the scope of consolidation of the Company’s financial statements covers
An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd., Jiangmen Jiasijie Coating Engineering Co., Ltd. (YLI"]5% 8
FEUREE TFEA PR F]), Zhuhai Ruiyuan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (B T8y BAE 5 2 TR
/yil), Jiangmen Xinglian International Logistics Co., Ltd. (Y1172 B E Rt A B2 7)) and Sichuan
Dingjie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (VU1 535EAERNFE5 FEARR A 7). For changes in the scope of
consolidation during the reporting period and the Company’s interests in other entities, please refer to Notes
"VI. Change in Scope of Consolidation" and "VII. Interest in Other Entities", respectively.

I1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(I) Basis of Preparation: The Company prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis,
based on actual transactions and events, in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises - Basic Standards and specific accounting standards issued by the Ministry of Finance

(collectively the "ASBEs"), and on the basis of the significant accounting policies and accounting
estimates described below.
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(IT) Going Concern: The Company has had the ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months
from the end of the reporting period.

III. Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates
(I) Statement of compliance with corporate accounting standards

The financial statements prepared by the Company conform to the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and reflect truthfully and completely the Company's financial
position as at 31 December 2020, and operating results and cash flows in 2020, as well as other relevant
information.

(IT) Accounting period
The accounting year of the Company is the calendar year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 December.
(III) Operating cycle

The Company takes one year or 12 months as its normal operating cycle that serves as the
division standard for the liquidity of assets and liabilities.
(IV) Reporting currency

The Company uses Renminbi as its reporting currency.

(V) Business combinations
1. Business combination under common control

For long-term equity investments resulting from a business combination under common control
where the acquirer pays cash, transfers non-cash assets or assumes debts as consideration for the
combination, the Company's share of the carrying value of the acquiree’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party acquired at the date of the combination is used
as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment. In case the acquirer pays the
consideration for the combination by issuing equity instruments, the aggregate nominal value of
shares issued will be recognised as share capital. The difference between the initial investment cost
of long-term equity investments and the carrying amount of combination consideration (or aggregate
nominal value of shares issued) shall be adjusted under capital reserve; or against the retained
earnings of the Company in case of insufficient capital reserve.

2. Business combination not under common control

For a business combination not under common control, the combination cost is the aggregate fair
value of assets paid, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity securities issued by the acquirer in
exchange for the control of the acquiree on the acquisition date. Identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree acquired in a business combination not under common control that
meet the criteria for recognition are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. Where the cost of
combination is greater than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
acquired in the combination, the difference shall be recognised as goodwill. Where the cost of
combination is less than acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
acquired in the combination, the difference shall be recognised in the non-operating income for the
current period if confirmed after review.
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(VI) Preparation of consolidated financial statements
1. Scope of consolidated financial statements

The Company incorporated all of its subsidiaries (including the separate entities controlled by the
Company) into the scope of consolidated financial statements, including enterprises under control of
the Company, separable parts in the investees and structured entities.

2. Harmonisation of accounting policies, balance sheet date and accounting period between parent

company and its subsidiaries

In preparing consolidated financial statements, if the accounting policies or accounting periods
adopted by a subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the necessary adjustments are made
to the financial statements of the subsidiary in accordance with the Company's accounting policies and
accounting periods.

3. Offset matters in the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements shall be prepared on the basis of the financial statements of
the Company and subsidiaries, which offset the internal transactions incurred between the Company and
subsidiaries and between subsidiaries. The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to the
Company is treated as minority interests and presented as "minority interest” in the consolidated balance
sheet under shareholders' equity. Long-term equity investments in the Company held by the subsidiaries
are treated as treasury stock of the Company and presented in "Less: Treasury shares” as a deduction
from shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheet under shareholders’ equity.

4. Accounting treatment of subsidiaries acquired from business combination

For a subsidiary acquired in a business combination under common control, the assets, liabilities,
operating results and cash flows of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements
starting from the beginning of the period of the combination, as if the business combination had
occurred from the time the ultimate controlling party assumed effective control; For subsidiaries
acquired through business combination not under common control, in preparing the consolidated
financial statements, their individual financial statements are adjusted based on the fair value of
identifiable net assets as at the acquisition date.

5. Accounting treatment of disposal of subsidiaries

As for the difference between the disposal price received from the partial disposal of the long-
term equity investment in a subsidiary without loss of control and shares of the subsidiary's net
assets (which is calculated on an ongoing basis from the acquisition date or the combination date)
corresponding to the disposal of the long-term equity investment, it shall be adjusted against the
capital reserves (capital premium or equity premium) in the consolidated financial statements, and
adjusted against retained earnings if the capital reserves is insufficient.

Where control over an investee is lost due to partial disposal of the equity investment or any other
reasons, the remaining equity shall be remeasured at fair value on the date in which control is lost
when preparing consolidated financial statements. The difference between the sum of the
consideration received from disposal of equity interest and the fair value of the remaining equity
interest, and the net assets of the former subsidiary attributable to the Company calculated on a
continuous basis since the acquisition date or the combination date, is recognised as the investment
income for the period when the control is lost and offset against goodwill. Other comprehensive
income related to equity investments in former subsidiaries, among others, is transferred to investment
income for the period when the control is lost.

(VII) Recognition criteria for cash and cash equivalents

Cash determined in the preparation of statements of cash flows by the Company represents
the cash on hand and deposits readily available for payment of the Company. Cash equivalents
determined in the preparation of statements of cash flows refer to short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(VIII) Financial instruments

1. Classification and reclassification of financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one party and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another party.

(1) Financial assets

The Company classifies a financial asset as a financial asset measured at amortised cost if it also meets
the following criteria: (1) The Company's business model for managing this financial asset is to collect
contractual cash flows; (2) The contractual terms of the financial asset provide that the cash flow arising on a
particular date is solely the repayment of the principal and the payment of interest on the outstanding principal.

The Company classifies financial assets as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if they also meet the following criteria: (1) The Company's business model for
managing this financial assets is to both receive its contractual cash flows and sell this financial asset; (2) The
contractual terms of the financial asset provide that the cash flow arising on a particular date is solely the
repayment of the principal and the payment of interest on the outstanding principal.

For investments in non-trading equity instruments, the Company may irrevocably designate them as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Such designation is
made on individual basis and underlying investment meets the definition of an equity instrument from the
issuer's perspective.

Financial assets other than those classified as financial assets at amortised cost and those at fair value
through other comprehensive income are classified by the Company as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset as at fair value
through profit or loss if it can eliminate or reduce accounting mismatches.

When the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all
affected underlying financial assets at the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model and applies the related accounting treatment from the date of reclassification on
aprospective basis without retrospective adjustment to previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment losses or gains) or interest.

(2) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified on initial recognition as: Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss; Financial liabilities arising when the transfer of financial assets do not qualify for
derecognition or involve financial liabilities transfered; Financial liabilities at amortised cost. All
financial liabilities are not reclassified.

2. Measurement of financial instruments

The Company measures its financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, related transaction costs are charged directly to
profit or loss for the period. For other types of financial assets or financial liabilities, related transaction costs
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are included in initially recognised amounts. Accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from sales of
goods or rendering services, without significant financing component, are initially recognised based on the
transaction price expected to be entitled by the Company. Subsequent measurement of financial instruments
depends on their classifications.

(1) Financial assets

(DFinancial assets at amortised cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses arising from financial assets at amortised
cost that are not the subject of any hedging relationship are recognised in profit or loss for the period when
derecognised, reclassified, amortised under the effective interest method or impaired.

(2Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets in this category (except for the portion of financial assets that is part of a hedging relationship)
are subsequently measured at fair value, with the resulting gain or loss (including interest and dividend
income) recognised in profit or loss for the period.

(3Debt instrument investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest, impairment loss or gain and
exchange gain and loss calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss for the period
when they incur, and other gains or losses are all recognised in other comprehensive income. When derecognised,
the accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred out
from other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss for the period when they incur.

(2) Financial liabilities

@ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such financial liabilities comprise
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial liabilities
are subsequently measured at fair value and gains or losses (including interest expense) arising from changes
in the fair value of financial liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss for the period, except
when they relate to hedge accounting. Where a financial liability is designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, the amount of change in the fair value of that financial liability arising from changes in the
Company's own credit risk is recognised in other comprehensive income and other changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss for the period. If the effect of changes in the financial liability's own credit risk
included in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss,
the Company includes all gains or losses on the financial liability in profit or loss for the period.

(2 Financial liabilities at amortised cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3. How the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments

Where there is an active market for a financial instrument, the Company uses quoted prices in the active
market to determine its fair value; Valuation techniques are adopted to determine the fair value of a financial
instrument for which there is no active market. Valuation techniques mainly include market method, income
method and cost method. In limited cases, if the short-term information used to determine fair value is
insufficient, or if the possible estimated amount of fair value is widely distributed, and the cost represents the
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best estimate of fair value in the range, the cost can represent its proper estimate of fair value in the range of
distribution. The Company uses all information available after initial recognition regarding the investee's
results and operations to determine whether the cost is representative of fair value.

4.Basis for recognition and method for measurement of transfers of financial asset and financial liabilities

(1) Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met: (1) the
contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is terminated; (2) the financial asset has been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; (3) the financial asset has been transferred, where the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the reward on the ownership of the financial asset, but doesn’t retain the control over
the financial asset.

Where the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the rewards on ownership of a financial
asset and retains control over the financial asset, it recognises the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset, and recognises the liability accordingly.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety satisfies the derecognition criteria, the Company
recognises the difference between the following two amounts in profit or loss for the period: (D the
carrying amount of the transferred financial assets on the date of derecognition; (2) the sum of the
consideration received for the transfer of the financial asset and the amount corresponding to the
derecognised portion of the cumulative amount of changes in fair value that would otherwise be included
directly in other comprehensive income (financial assets involved in the transfer are classified as financial
asset at fair value through other comprehensive income).

When the partial transfer of a financial asset satisfies the derecognition criteria, the overall carrying
amount of the financial asset transferred is allocated between the derecognised portion and not
derecognised portion by their respective fair values on the date of transfer first, and the difference between
the two amounts below is then recognised in profit or loss for the period: (D) the carrying amount of the
derecognised portion at the date of derecognition; (2) the sum of the consideration received for the
derecognised part and the amount corresponding to the derecognised portion of the cumulative amount of
changes in fair value that would otherwise be included in other comprehensive income (financial assets
involved in the transfer are classified as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income).

(2) Financial liabilities

If the current obligation of the financial liability has been discharged in whole or in part, the
Company shall derecognise the financial liability (or its corresponding part).

If a financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised, the Company records the difference
between its carrying amount and the consideration paid (including non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed) in profit or loss for the period.

(IX)  Method for determination of expected credit losses and accounting treatment

1. Method for determination of expected credit losses

The Company accounts for financial assets (including receivables) measured at amortised cost, financial
assets (including receivables financing) classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
lease receivables, on the basis of expected credit losses, and recognises a provision for impairment.

74

- II-30 -



APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

The Company assesses on each balance sheet date whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk of the underlying financial instruments since initial recognition, dividing the process of
credit impairment of financial instruments into three stages, with different accounting treatment for
different stages of impairment of financial instruments: (1) In the first stage, if the credit risk of a
financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the
provision for losses based on the expected credit loss of the financial instrument over the next 12
months and calculates interest income based on its carrying amount (i.e. before provision for
impairment being made) and the effective interest rate; (2) In the second stage, if the credit risk of a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition but no credit impairment has
occurred, the Company measures the provision for losses based on the expected credit loss over the
entire life of the financial instrument and calculates interest income based on its carrying amount and the
effective interest rate; (3) In the third stage, if a credit impairment occurs after initial recognition, the
Company measures the provision for loss based on the expected credit loss over the entire life of the
financial instrument and calculates interest income based on its amortised cost (carrying amount less
provision for impairment) and the effective interest rate.

(1) Method for measuring loss provision of financial instruments with lower credit risk

For financial instruments with lower credit risk at the balance sheet date, the Company can directly
make the assumption that the credit risk of the instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition without comparing with the credit risk at the time of initial recognition.

A financial instrument is considered to have low credit risk if the risk of default is low, the
debtor's ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the short term is strong and, even if
there are adverse changes in economic conditions and operating environment in the longer term, this
may not necessarily reduce the debtor's ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.

(2) Method of measuring loss provision for accounts receivable

@ For trade receivables (whether or not containing significant financing components) resulting
from transactions subject to ASBE 14 - Revenue, the Company applies a simplified approach whereby the
provision for losses is always measured on the basis of expected credit losses over the entire life of the
receivable.

Based on the nature of financial instruments, the Company assesses whether the credit risk has
increased significantly on the basis of a single financial asset or a group of financial assets. The Company
divides trade receivables into certain portfolios based on credit risk characteristic while measuring
expected credit loss based on portfolio. The basis to determine the portfolio is as follows:

Trade receivables Group 1: trade receivables other than in Group 2

Trade receivables Group 2: related party-based grouping in the scope of the consolidation

For the trade receivables classified as a group, the Company refers to the historical credit loss
experience, combined with the current situation and forecast of the future economic conditions, to prepare
a comparison table of the ageing of trade receivables and the lifetime expected credit loss rate to calculate
the expected credit loss.

(A)  Groups are determined based on the following basis:

Item Basis for determining the groups

In addition to the trade receivables that are individually assessed for impairment,
Group 1: trade provision for bad debts shall be made by the Company to various receivables on the
receivables other

) percentage determined based on the actual loss of identical or similar trade receivables
than in Group 2

for previous years with similar credit risk characteristics as well as their current
situation.

Group 2: related party- | Receivables from related party in the scope of the consolidation
based grouping in the
scope of the
consolidation
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(B> Method for making bad debt provision for different groups:

Item Method for making provision

Group 1: trade

receivables other than Ageing analysis

in Group 2

Group 2: related
party-based grouping
in the scope of the
consolidation

(C) Within the group, for the trade receivables classified as Group 1, the Company refers to the
historical credit loss experience, combined with the current condition and forecast of the future
economic condition to calculate the expected credit loss according to the account receivable age and
expected credit loss rate through full lifetime in reference:

No bad debt provision provided

Ageing Provision ratio for accounts
receivable (%)

Within 1 year (inclusive, the same below) 3.00

1 to 2 years 10.00
2 to 3 years 20.00
3 to 4 years 30.00
4 to 5 years 50.00
More than 5 years 100.00

(3) Method of measuring loss provision for other financial assets

For financial assets other than those mentioned above, such as: debt investments, other debt
investments, other receivables, and long-term receivables other than lease receivables among
others, the Company measures their provision for losses in accordance with the general method,
i.e. the "three-stage" model.

The Company divides other receivable into certain portfolios based on their nature while
measuring expected credit loss based on portfolio. For the grouping basis and measurement of
impairment loss of other receivables, it is treated in accordance with the measurement method of
impairment loss of the aforementioned accounts receivable.

2. Accounting method for expected credit loss

To reflect changes in the credit risk of a financial instrument since initial recognition, the
Company re-measures the expected credit losses on each balance sheet date. The resulting
increase or reversal in the provision for losses is recognised as an impairment loss or gain in profit
or loss for the period and is offset against the carrying amount of the financial asset as shown in
the balance sheet, or included in the expected liabilities (loan commitments or financial guarantee
contracts) or in other comprehensive income (debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), depending on the type of financial instrument.

(X) Inventories

1.Classification of inventories

Inventories means, among others, finished goods or merchandise held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, work in process in the process of production, materials or supplies used in the
process of production or rendering of services. These include, among others, reusable material and
low value consumables.
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2. Accounting method for dispatching inventories

When inventories are dispatched, the weighted-average method is used to determine the actual
cost of the dispatch.

3.Method of provision for decline in value of inventories

On the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an item-by-item basis. The provision for
decline in the value of inventories with large quantity and of low unit cost is made according to their
inventory category.

4.Inventory system

The Company adopts a perpetual inventory system.

5. Amortisation of low value consumables and packaging materials

Low-value consumables and packaging materials are amortised using one-off method.

(XI) Contractual assets and contractual liabilities

1.Contractual Assets

The Company presents as contractual assets rights to receive consideration for goods or
services that have been transferred to customers (and that are dependent on factors other than the
passage of time). Provision for impairment of contractual assets is made based on the expected
credit loss method for financial instruments. For contractual assets that do not contain or have a
significant financing component, the Company uses the simplified method to measure the provision
for losses. For contractual assets that contain a significant financing component, the Company
measures the provision for losses using the general method.

An impairment loss on a contractual asset is debited to "Impairment loss on assets" and is
credited to “provision for impairment of contractual assets” according to the amount written down.
Reverse entries are made upon reversing a provision for impairment of an asset that has been
made.

2. Contractual liabilities

The Company presents obligations to transfer goods or provide services to customers for
consideration received or receivable as contractual liabilities.

A contract asset and a contract liability under the same contract are presented on a net basis.

(XII) Long-term equity investments
1. Determination of initial investment cost

For long-term equity investment acquired through business combination, if under common
control, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment represents the proportion of the
carrying value of the acquiree’s equity in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate
controlling party on the date of acquisition; if not under common control, the initial investment cost of
long-term equity investment represents the combination cost determined on the date of acquisition; For
long-term equity investments acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost represents the
purchase price actually paid; For long-term equity investments acquired through the issue of equity
securities, the initial investment cost represents the fair value of the equity securities issued; For the
long-term equity investment acquired through debt restructuring, the initial investment cost of the long-
term equity investment is determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of ASBE No. 12 -
Debt Restructuring; For long-term equity investments acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets,
the initial investment cost is determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of ASBE No. 7 -
Non-monetary Asset Exchanges.
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2. Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

Where the Company has control over an investee, the long-term equity investment in such
investee is measured using the cost method. Long-term equity investments in associates and joint
ventures shall be measured using the equity method. If a portion of the Company's equity investment in
an associate is held indirectly through a venture capital entity, mutual fund, trust company or similar
entity (including an investment-linked insurance fund), the Company shall, regardless of whether the
above entities have significant influence over this portion of the investment, treat them in accordance
with the relevant provisions of ASBE 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments,
with the remainder accounted for using the equity method.

3.Basis for determination of common control and significant influence over an investee

Common control over an investee means that decisions on activities that materially affect the
return on an arrangement must be made with the unanimous consent of the participants sharing control,
including the sale and purchase of goods or services, the management of financial assets, the purchase
and disposal of assets, research and development activities and financing activities; significant
influence over an investee refers to the following circumstances: when holding more than 20% but less
than 50% of the capital with voting rights in the investee; or even if below 20%, there is still significant
influence if any of the following conditions is met: be represented the board of directors or similar
governing body of the investee; participate in the policy development process of the investee; assign
management personnel to the investee; the investee relies on the technology or technical information of
the investor; there are major transactions with the investee.

(XTIT) Fixed assets

1.Criteria for recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets held for producing goods, rendering of services, leasing out to
other parties or administrative purposes, with useful life more than one accounting year. Fixed assets
are recognised when the following criteria are all met: it is likely that the economic benefits associated
with the fixed asset will flow to the Company; the cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably.

2.Classification and depreciation of fixed assets

The Company's fixed assets are mainly classified as: buildings and structures, machinery and
equipment, electronic equipment, transportation equipment among others; the fixed assets are
depreciated using the straight-line method. The useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed
asset are determined according to the nature and use pattern of the fixed asset. At the end of each year,
the useful life, estimated net residual value and the method of depreciation of the fixed asset will be
reviewed, and shall be adjusted accordingly if they differ from previous estimates. The Company
makes provision for depreciation for all of its fixed assets other than fully depreciated fixed assets that
are still in use and lands accounted for on an individual basis.

Categories of Assets Estimated useful life Estimated net residual  [Annual depreciation rate (%)
(years) value rate (%)
Electronic equipment 2-5 5.00 19.00—47.50
Means of transportation 5-10 5.00 9.50—19.00
Furniture and others 5 5.00 19.00
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(XIV) Construction in progress

There are two types of construction in progress for the Company: self-construction and sub-contracting construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the project is completed and ready for its intended use. A
fixed asset is ready for intended use if any of the following criteria is met: the construction (including installation)
work of the fixed assets has been completed or substantially completed; the fixed asset has been put into trial
production or trial operation and it is evidenced that the asset can operate ordinarily or produce steadily qualified
products; or the result of trial operation proves that it can run or operate normally; little or no expenditure will be
incurred for construction of the fixed asset; or the fixed asset constructed has achieved or almost achieved, or is
complied with the requirement of design or contract.

(XV) Intangible assets

1. Measurement method of intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Company are initially measured at cost. The actual cost of a purchased intangible asset
includes the considerations and relevant expenses paid. The actual cost of an intangible asset contributed by investors
is the price contained in the investment contract or agreement. If the price contained in the investment contract or
agreement is not a fair value, the fair value of the intangible asset is regarded as the actual cost. The cost of a self-
developed intangible asset is the total expenditures incurred in bringing the asset to its intended use.

Subsequent measurement of the Company’s intangible assets: intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the intangible assets; at the end of each year, the useful lives and
amortization policy are reviewed, and adjusted accordingly if there are variance with original estimates; intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised and the useful lives are reviewed at the end of each year. If there
is objective evidence that the useful life of an intangible asset is finite, the intangible asset is amortised using the
straight line method according to the estimated useful life.

The amortisation methods for the intangible assets with finite useful life are as follows:

Type of assets Useful life (year) Method of amortisation
Land use rights 50 Straight-line method
Software 3-10 Straight-line method

2. Determination basis of infinite useful life

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the Company or it has no definite useful life. The
judgment basis of intangible assets with indefinite useful life: derived from the contractual rights or other legal rights
but the contract or the law does not specify certain useful life; in light of the conditions of the competitors and the
opinions of relevant experts, the specific period that intangible asset generating economic benefits to the Company
still cannot be determined.

At the end of each year, the useful life shall be reviewed for those intangible assets with indefinite useful life by mainly
using the bottom-up method. The relevant department that uses intangible asset will perform the basic review and
evaluate whether there are changes in the basis for judgments of the indefinite useful life, etc.

(XVI) Impairment of long-term assets

Long-term assets such as long-term equity investments, investment properties measured under the cost
model, fixed assets, construction in progress, productive biological assets measured under the cost model,
oil and gas assets and intangible assets are tested for impairment if there is any indication that such assets
may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result of the impairment test indicates that the
recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment and an
impairment loss are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset
impairment is determined and recognised on an individual asset basis. If it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs is determined. A group of assets is the smallest group of assets
that is able to generate independent cash inflows.

Goodwill separately presented on the financial statements is tested for impairment at least every
year, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to asset groups or sets
of asset groups expected to benefit from the synergy of business combination. The testing result
shows that, where the recoverable amount of the asset group or the set of asset groups allocated
with goodwill is lower than the carrying amount, impairment loss is recognised accordingly. The
amount of impairment loss is first reduced against the carrying amount of the goodwill allocated
to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then reduced against the carrying amounts of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset groups on pro rata basis.

Once the impairment loss of such assets is recognised, the reversible part will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

(XVII) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses of the Company are expenses which have been paid but the benefit
period is over one year (not inclusive). Long-term deferred expenses are amortised over the
benefit period. If a long-term deferred expenses cannot bring benefit in future accounting periods,
its residue value not yet amortised shall be transferred in full to current profit or loss.

Item Useful life (year)

Storage fence fee 3-5

(XVIII) Employee remuneration

Employee remuneration are all forms of rewards or compensation provided by the Company in
exchange for services rendered by employees or for the termination of employment. Employee
remuneration mainly include short-term benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits
and other long-term employee benefits.

L. Short-term benefits

In the accounting period in which employees provide service for the Company, short-term
benefits actually incurred are recognised as liabilities and charged to current profit or loss, or if
otherwise required or permitted by ASBEs to costs of assets. At the time of actual occurrence, the
Company’s employee benefits are recorded in the current profit or loss or costs of relevant assets
as incurred. The non-monetary employee welfare expenses are measured at fair value. With
regard to the medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and other
social insurance and housing provident fund contributed and labour union expenses and employee
education expenses paid as required by regulations, the Company should calculate and recognise
the corresponding employees benefits payables according to the appropriation basis and
proportion as stipulated by relevant requirements, recognise the corresponding liabilities in the
accounting period in which employees provide service, and record the same in current profit or
loss or costs of relevant assets.
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2. Post-employment benefits

During the accounting period in which an employee provides service, the amount payable calculated under
defined contribution scheme shall be recognised as a liability and recorded in current profit or loss or in costs
of related assets. In respect of the defined benefit scheme, the Company shall attribute the welfare obligations
under the defined benefit scheme in accordance with the estimated accrued benefit method to the service
period of relevant employee, and record the obligation in current profit loss or costs of relevant assets.

3. Termination benefits

Termination benefits provided to employees by the Company are included as an employee remuneration
liability arising from termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to current profit or loss at the earlier of
the following dates: when the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination benefits because
of an employment termination plan or a curtailment proposal; when the Company recognises cost or expenses
related to a restructuring that involves the payment of termination benefits.

4. Other long-term employee benefits

When other long-term employee benefits provided to the employees by the Company satisfied the conditions
of defined contribution plans, those benefits shall be accounted for in accordance with the requirements
relating to defined contribution plans. In addition, the Company recognises and measures the net liabilities or
net assets of other long-term employee benefits according to relevant requirements of the defined benefit
scheme.

(XIX) Revenue

The Company recognises revenue based on the transaction price allocated to such performance
obligation when a performance obligation in the contract is satisfied, i.e. when customer obtained the
right to control the relevant goods. Obtaining the right to control the relevant goods means that it is able
to dominate the use of the goods and derive almost all economic benefits therefrom. A performance
obligation represents the contractual commitment that a distinct good shall be transferred by the Company
to the customer. Transaction price refers to the consideration that the Company is expected to receive due
to the transfer of goods to customer, but it does not include payments received on behalf of third parties
and amounts that the Company expects to return to the customer.

Whether the performance obligation is to be fulfilled within a specified period of time or at a particular
point of time depends on the terms of the contract and the relevant legal provisions. If the performance
obligation is performed within a specified period of time, the Company recognizes revenue in accordance
with the progress of performance. Otherwise, the Company recognizes revenue at a particular point of
time when the client obtains control of the underlying assets.

The Company's revenue recognition methodology

The Company's service revenue is mainly for the transportation and warehousing of goods.
Revenue recognition principle for the transportation of goods: revenue is recognized for the
provision of transportation services confirmed by the reconciliation of the parties after the contract
of transportation has been entered into, the goods have been delivered to the consignee, and the
transportation task has been completed. Revenue recognition principle for warehousing services:
revenue is recognized for the provision of warehousing services confirmed by the reconciliation of
the parties after the contract of warehousing services has been entered into and the provision of
warehousing services has been completed.

(XX) Contract costs

Contract cost of the Company includes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the cost to
fulfill a contract. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract (“costs of obtaining a contract™)
represents costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not have
incurred if the contract had not been obtained. The Group recognises the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer as an asset if it expects to recover those costs.

If the costs to fulfill a contract with a customer are not within the scope of inventories or other
accounting standards, the Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfill a contract
only if those costs meet all of the following criteria:
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1. the costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated contract,
including direct labour, direct materials, allocations of overheads (or similar costs), costs that are
explicitly chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred only because the Group entered
into the contract;

2. the costs enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance obligations in the
future;

3. the costs are expected to be recovered.

The costs to fulfill a contract that Company will recognize as assets are included in the “inventory” item
on the balance sheet if the amortisation period does not exceed one year or a normal business cycle at the
initial recognition; and shall be included in “other non-current assets” item in the balance sheet if the
amortization period is over one year or the normal business cycle at the initial recognition.

The costs to obtain a contract that Company will recognize as assets are included in the “other current
assets” item on the balance sheet if the amortisation period does not exceed one year or a normal business
cycle at the initial recognition; and shall be included in “other non-current assets™ item in the balance
sheet if the amortization period is over one year or the normal business cycle at the initial recognition.

Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and assets recognised for the costs to
fulfill a contract (the “assets related to contract costs™) are amortised on the same basis as the revenue
recognition of the goods related to the assets and are included in the current profit and loss. The
Company recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when incurred if the
amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is one year or less.

The Company recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount
of an asset related to contract costs exceeds:

1. remaining amount of consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for the goods or services
to which the asset relates; less

2. the costs to be incurred that relate to providing those goods or services expenses.

If the depreciation factors in the previous period change subsequently, and the difference between the
aforementioned two items is higher than the book value of the asset, the original provision for
impairment of the asset should be reversed and included in the current profit and loss, provided that the
book value of the asset after the reversal shall not exceed the book value of the asset on the date of
reversal under the assumption that no impairment provision is made.

(XXI) Government grants

1. Types of government grants and accounting treatment

Government grants are monetary assets or non-monetary assets (excluding the capital invested by the
government as the owner) obtained by the Company from the government for free. A government
grant in monetary asset shall be recognised at the amount received or to be received. A government
grant in non-monetary asset shall be recognised at its fair value; if the fair value is not reliably
measured, the grant is measured at nominal amount.

The government grants related to business activities are recognised as other income in the light of the nature of
such business. The government grants non-related to business activities are recognised as non-operating
income or expense.

The government grants which are clearly defined in the government documents to be used for acquisition,
construction or other project that forms a long-term asset are recognised as asset-related government grants.
Regarding the government grant not clearly defined in the official documents, the government grants related
to assets are recognised as deferred income, the amount of which shall be recorded in the current profit or
loss in installments with a reasonable and systematic method over the useful lives of relevant assets.
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The government grants other than those related to assets are recognised as government grants related to
income. The income-related government grants used to compensate relevant expenses or losses to be
incurred by the enterprise in subsequent periods are recognised as deferred income and recorded in profit and
loss for the current period when such expenses are recognised while those used to compensate relevant
expenses or losses that have been incurred by the enterprise are recorded directly in profit or loss for the
current period.

The Company has obtained policy-related loan interest discounts. Where the finance function allocates the
interest discount funds to the lending bank, and the lending bank offers loans for the Company at a policy-
related interest rate, the actual borrowing amount received is recognised as the value of borrowing and the
relevant borrowing expenses are measured in accordance with the principal amount of the borrowing and
such policy-related interest rate discount; Where the finance directly allocates the interest discount funds to
the Company, the corresponding loan interest will be used to offset the relevant borrowing expenses.

2. Timing for recognition of governmental grants

A government grants shall be recognised when the enterprise fulfills the conditions attaching to the grant
and the enterprise can receive the grant. The governmental grants measured at the amount receivable will
be recognised when there is unambiguous evidence suggesting the conformance to related conditions as
provided in financial support policies and financial support fund is expected to be received. Other
government grants other than those measured at the amount receivable will be recognised at the actual
time of receiving such grants.

(XXII) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

1. Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities are calculated and recognised based on the
difference between the carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities (for items not recognised as assets
and liabilities but with their tax base being able to be determined according to tax laws, tax base is recognised as
the difference) and in accordance with the tax rate applicable to the period during which the assets are expected
to be recovered or the liabilities are expected to be settled.

2. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent of the amount of the taxable income, which it
is most likely to obtain to deduct from the deductible temporary difference. At the balance sheet date, if
there is any exact evidence that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilized, the deferred tax assets unrecognised in prior periods
are recognised. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the benefit of the deferred tax asset to
be utilized.

3. As for taxable temporary difference related to the investments of subsidiaries and associated enterprises, the
deferred income tax liabilities shall be recognised unless the Company can control the time for the reversal of
temporary differences and such differences are very unlikely to be reversed in the foreseeable future. As for the
deductible temporary difference related to investments of subsidiaries and associated enterprises, the deferred
income tax assets shall be recognised when such temporary differences are much likely to be reversed in the
foreseeable future and the taxable profit are available against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilized.

(XXIIT) Lease

1 Accounting treatment of operating leases: Rental expenses under operating leases are charged to
the cost of the related assets or to current profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2 Accounting treatment of financing leases: the lower of the fair value of the leased asset or the present
value of the minimum lease payments is used as the carrying value of the leased asset, and the
difference between the carrying value of the leased asset and the minimum lease payments is recorded
as the unrecognized financing fee, which is amortised using the effective interest method over the lease
term. The balance derived from deducting the unrecognized financing fee from the minimum lease
payments shall be presented as long-term payables.

(XXIV) Explanation of changes in critical accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
1. Changes in accounting policies and their basis
The Ministry of Finance issued the revised Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises 14 -
Revenue (the "new revenue standards") in 2017. The Company implemented the new revenue
standards as well as the circular on 1 January 2020 to adjust the relevant part of its accounting
policies.

The new revenue standards replaced Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises 14 -
Revenue, and Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises 15 - Construction Contracts issued by
the Ministry of Finance in 2006 (collectively, the "previous revenue standards"). Under the previous
revenue standards, the Company used risk-reward transfers as the standard for determining the point
of revenue recognition. The new revenue standards introduced a "five-step approach" to revenue
recognition and measurement and provided more guidance on specific transactions or events. Under
the new revenue standards, the Company used the transfer of control as the criteria for determining
the point of revenue recognition. For particulars of the accounting policies for revenue recognition
and measurement, please refer to Note III. (XIX).

The Company has adjusted the related accounting policies in accordance with the specific
provisions of the new revenue standards regarding specific events or transactions. In accordance
with the new revenue standards, contractual assets or contractual liabilities were presented in the
balance sheet based on relationship between performance of obligation and customer payment.
Meanwhile, the Company provided more disclosures in accordance with requirements of the new
revenue standards on information disclosures in relation to revenue, such as information related to
important contracts or businesses and performance obligations, as well as information related to
transaction prices allocated to remaining performance obligations, including the general
performance time of performing obligations, important payment terms, the nature of commodities
which the Company undertook to transfer, similar obligations such as payment borne by the
Company which expected to be refunded to the customers, types of quality assurance and relevant
obligations.

The Company conducted a review of revenue streams and customer contract processes to
assess the impact of the new revenue standards on the financial statements. The revenue of the
Company mainly included the revenue from providing transportation services and storage services
to customers, and the revenue generated from the service contracts entered into with customers with
verified prices, and revenue remained be recognized at the point of time when services were
completed for and recognized by customers. The adoption of the new revenue standards had no
material impact on the Company except the presentation of the financial statements.

The Company adjusted the retained profits and the amounts of other relevant items in the
financial statement as of 1 January 2020 based on the cumulative effect of the first implementation
of the new revenue standards. No adjustment to the information of the comparable period was
required, and the Company only adjusted the cumulative effect of contracts that have not been
completed on the first implementation date.

2. Impacts of changes in accounting policies

There were no impacts of the implementation of the new revenue standards on the consolidated
balance sheet and parent company balance sheet items as of 1 January 2020.

IV. TAXATION

(I) Major taxes and tax rates
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Taxes Tax bases Tax rates
Value-added tax (VAT) | Taxable income 9% ~ 6%
Urban maintenance and | Turnover tax payable 7%
construction tax
Education surcharge Turnover tax payable 3%
Local education Turnover tax payable 2%
surcharge
Enterprise income tax Taxable income 15% ~ 25%

Enterprise income tax rates of the Company and its subsidiaries

Name of Income tax

Taxable Entity rates
The Company 15%
Jiangmen Jiasijie Painting Engineering Co., 25%
Litd.* G154 AR TREA IR A )
Zhuhai Ruiyuan Supply Chain Management 25%
Co., Ltd. * (i i BLU5 B 55 A PR A 7))
Jiangmen Xinglian International Logistics Co., 25%
Ltd. * (LI TR E B A R A =)
Sichuan Dingjie Supply Chain Management 25%
Co., Ltd. * (VU )1] S 7 LA R 24 1)

Note: The Company is a high and new technology enterprise and the applicable enterprise income tax
rates during the current period was 15%

(IT) Significant preferential tax and official approval

The Company obtained the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificate (Certificate No.
GR201844008990) approved by the Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong Province, the
Department of Finance of Guangdong Province, the Guangdong Provincial Tax Service and the Provincial
Tax Bureau of Guangdong (}g_ KA MRS )5 |, which is valid for three years. The Company is
subject to the preferential tax rate of 15% from 2018 to 2020.

V.NOTES TO SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

(I) Monetary Funds
Type Closing balance Opening balance
Cash 67,027.00 67,027.00
Cash in bank 22,078,274.57 15,699,967.59
Other monetary funds 850,000.00
Total 22,145,301.57 16,616,994.59

(IT) Financial assets held for trading

Type Closing balance Opening balance
Bank wealth management products 7,800,000.00
Total 7,800,000.00

(IIT) Accounts receivable

1. Disclosure of accounts receivable by category
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Closing balance

Type Book balance Bad debt provision
Proportion Provision ratio
Amount Amount
(%) (%)
Accounts receivable with provision assessed for
bad debts on an individual basis
Accounts receivable with provision made for 59,518,534.58 100.00 2,005,716.91 3.37
bad debts using portfolios
Including: Group 1: accounts receivable other
than Group 2 59,518,534.58 100.00 2,005,716.91 3.37
Group 2: portfolio of related parties within the
scope of consolidation
Total 59,518,534.58 2,005,716.91 3.37
Opening balance
Type Book balance Bad debt provision
Amount Proportion Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
Accounts receivable with provision assessed for
bad debts on an individual basis
Accounts receivable with provision made for bad|  27,175,425.48 100.00 872,714.18 3.21
debts using portfolios
Including: Group 1: accounts receivable other
than Group 2 27,175,425.48 100.00 872,714.18 321
Group 2: portfolio of related parties within the
scope of consolidation
Total 27,175,425.48 872,714.18
(1) Accounts receivable with provision made for bad debts using portfolios
@  Group 1:
Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Expected Expected credit
Book balance credit loss rate| ~ Bad fiébt Book balance | | cc 1ate Bad fie_bt
(%) provision (%) provision
W;t:;? ! 57,013,946.26 3.00 1,710,418.39 26,546,107.33 3.00 796,383.23
1-2 years 2,185,310.77 10.00 218,531.08 495,326.85 10.00 49,532.69
2-3 years 190,158.25 20.00 38,031.65 133,991.30 20.00 26,798.26
3-4 years 129,119.30 30.00 38,735.79
Total 59,518,534.58 2,005,716.91 27,175,425.48 872,714.18

2. Provision for bad debts made, recovered or reversed during the reporting period

The amount of provision for bad debts in this period is RMBI1,133,002.73; the amount of provision for bad debts

recovered or reversed in this period is RMBO.

3. Details of the top 5 accounts receivable by closing balance of debtors

] . Proportion to total .
Name of entity Closing balance accounts receivable Balance of provision
o for bad debts
(%)
Tiandi Yihao Beverage Co., Ltd. (K 8,237,890.51 13.84 247,136.72
HF S YR A B A
Jiangmen Toyo Ink Co., Ltd. (7I]] 6,223,569.42 10.46 186,707.08
AR EA R AF)D
Jiangmen Qing Hong Science and 5,788,019.50 9.72 173,640.59
Techology Industry Co., Ltd. (Y[
RSOV AR AT
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X . Proportion to total .
Name of entity Closing balance accounts receivable Balance of provision
(%) for bad debts
Guangdong Jiantong Pipe Products 3,383,000.00 5.68 101,490.00
Co., Ltd. (J" AR & T vt A
R
Jiangmen Pengjiang Haojue
Commercial Co., Ltd. (VL[] 2,742,366.39 461 82,210.07
VLI 5E B 7 55 A PR D
Total 26,374,845.82 44.31 791,184.46
(IV) Prepayments
1. Prepayments shown by ages
Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Proportion (%)
Within 1 year 3,149,547.09 86.19 3,288,426.63 9989
1-2 years 504.714.32 13.81 3,750.00 0.1
Total 3,654,261.41 100.00 3,292,176.63 100.00

Large-amount prepayments with an age of over 1 year: nil

2. Details of the top 5 entities with largest prepayment balances

P rtion to total 1!
Name of entity Closing balance roportion fo fofat prepayments
(%)
Sinopec Marketing Co., Ltd. Guangdong Jiangmen 993.767.34
Branch (H A7 (L4 85 B A IR A R AR 1A 4 R
Al 27.19
Huaian Ruihai Transport Co., Ltd. (¥ 225z bR 435,699.31 11.92
A :
Guangdong United Electronic Services Co., Ltd.(J"~ Z< ik 388,302.80 10.63
£ HL T RS A R )
GuangDong Hengxinyuan Intelligent Equipment Co., 210,000.00 575
Ltd. () ARIEEERE e & A IR A ) i
Guangdong Hongming Intelligent Equipment Co., Ltd. 175,000.00 4.79
U RS RE R R A TR A7) i
Total 2,202,769.45 60.28
(V) Other receivables
Type Closing balance Opening balance
Other receivables 8,001,969.61 8,415,373.59
Less: bad debt provision 2,021,253.60 395,489.57
Total 5,980,716.01 8,019,884.02
1. Other receivables categorized by nature
Nature of the amount Closing balance Opening balance
Deposits and guarantee deposits 7476.278.47 7393.960.67
Petty cash, withholding payment and others 50569114 1.021.412.92
Bad debt provision 2,021,253.60 395,489.57
Total 5,980,716.01 8,019,884.02

2. Aging analysis of other receivables
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Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Book balance Proportion Book balance P ropoortlon
(%) %)
Within 1 year 3,745,961.90 46.81 7938.209.92 94.33
(inclusive) e i
1 -2 years 3,878,881.24 48.47 185.280.00 220
2 - 3 years 85,242.80 1.07 73.208.00 0.87
3 -4 years 73,208.00 0.91 127 860.00 152
4 -5 years 127,860.00 1.60 10.000.00 012
Over 5 years 90,815.67 1.13 80 815.67 0.96
Total 8,001,969.61 100.00 8415.373.59 100.00
3. Provisions made for bad debts
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Bad debt provision . Lifetime expected Lifetime expected Total
Expected credit loss credit loss — not credit loss — credit-
over the next 12 credit-impaired impaired
months
Opening balance 395,489.57 395,489.57
Opening balance in the|
current period after 395,489.57 395,489.57
assessment
Provision for the 151,064.03 1,474,700.00 1,625,764.03
current period
Closing balance 546,553.60 1,474,700.00 2,021,253.60

4. Details of the top 5 other receivables by closing balance of debtors

Proportion
Name of debtors Nature of Closing Age to the closing Balance of
receivables balance balance bad debt
of other provision
receivables
(%)
Jiangmen Xinyu i
Motorcycle Parts Co., |~ Deposits and 1,474,700.00 1-2 years 18.43 1,474,700.00
Lid. (V11 I 8 AT guarantee
TR IR ) deposits
Changzhou Haojue . o
Commercial Trade Deposits and 1,000,000.00 |  Within I year 12.50 30,000.00
Co., Ltd. Cii N5 guarantee (inclusive)
R ATIR 2 D deposits
Jiangmen Shuangying . .
Supply Chain Deposits and 800,000.00 Within 1 year 10.00 24,000.00
Management Co., Ltd. guarantee (inclusive)
(/II]X)"(mH R4k deposits
BT IR A A])
Carpoly Chemical _ .
Group Co., Ltd. (35 |  Deposits and 550,000.00 1-2 years 6.87 55,000.00
i ﬂ:T%EHﬁHﬁBE guarantee
) deposits
Jiangmen Pengjiang . L
Haojue Commercial Deposits and 500,000.00 | Within 1 year 6.25 15,000.00
Co., Ltd. (JLI']Ti%E guarantee (inclusive)
J_[: RS ERA deposits
Lip)
Total 4,324,700.00 54.05 1,598,700.00

Note: Deposit of Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., Ltd. (YL 1717781 7% B & 4= i 1 4 BR A 7] ) amounted to
RMB1,474,700.00. Such deposit was expected to be difficult to recover due to the poor operation of the counterparty and the
current lack of business cooperation between the two parties, a full provision for impairment has been made.

(V1) Other current assets

Item Closing balance Opening balance
Credit tax available for deduction 27,466.78 647,662.58
Total 27,466.78 647,662.58
(VII) Fixed assets
88

~ 1144 —



APPENDIX II

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

Type Closing balance Opening balance
Fixed assets 11,842,546.67 8,665,872.32
Less: Provision for impairment

Total 11,842,546.67 8,665,872.32

Details of fixed assets
Ttem Electronic Transport Furniture and Total
device facilities others
1. Original carrying amount
1.Opening balance 1,095,032.74 12,622,406.27 6,193,467.21 19,910,906.22
2. Increase in the current period 33,968.60 1,318,621.01 4,352,620.78 5,705,210.39
(1) Acquisition 33,968.60 1,318,621.01 4,352,620.78 5,705,210.39
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal or retirement
4. Closing balance 1,129,001.34 13,041,027.28 10,546,087.99 25,616,116.61
II. Accumulated depreciation
1.Opening balance 436,513.51 8,493,312.49 2,315,207.90 11,245,033.90
2. Increase in the current period 184,285.05 1,143,310.54 1,200,940.45 2,528,536.04
(1) Provision 184,285.05 1,143,310.54 1,200,940.45 2,528,536.04
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal or retirement
4. Closing balance 620,798.56 9,636,623.03 3,516,148.35 13,773,569.94
II1. Provision for impairment
1.Opening balance
2. Increase in the current period
(1) Provision
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal or retirement
4. Closing balance
IV. Carrying amount
1. Closing carrying amount 508,202.78 4,304,404.25 7,029,939.64 11,842,546.67
2. Opening carrying amount 658,519.23 4,129,093.78 3,878,259.31 8,665,872.32
(VIII) Construction in progress

Item Closing balance Opening balance
Projects of construction in progress 20,996,342.98 4,429,841.33
Less: Provision for impairment

Total 20,996,342.98 4,429,841.33

1. Projects of construction in progress

(1)Basic situation of projects of construction in progress
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Closing ;
Item balance %gliﬁllgeg
Book balance |  Provision for Carrying Book balance |  Provision for Carrying
impairment amount impairment amount
Plant 20,996,342.98 20,996,342.98 4,429,841.33 4,429,841.33
construction
Total 20,996,342.98 20,996,342.98 4,429,841.33 4,429,841.33
(2) Changes in significant projects of construction in progress
Budget:
Name of udgets Opening Increase in Transferred to Other Closing
project (0°000) balance ]t)}ée;izlérrent fixed assets decrease balance
Plant 8351 4,429,841.33] 16,566,501.65 20 996.342.98
construction
Total 8351 4,429,841.33] 16,566,501.65 20 996.342.98
Changes in significant projects of construction in progress (continue)
Investment . Accumulated Including: Interest
Name of to budget of Completion amount of Amount capitalisation Source of
project construction —— interest of interest rate in the funding
(%) prog capitalisation capitalisation in | current period
(%) current period (%)
Plant 2517 2517 Self-
construction generated
funds
Total 2517 25.17
(IX) Intangible assets
1. Intangible assets
Item Land use rights Software Total
I. Original carrying amount
1.Opening balance 21,114,950.00 4,292219.61 25,407,169.61
2. Increase in the current period
(1) Acquisition
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal
4. Closing balance 21,114,950.00 4,292,219.61 25 407.169.61
II. Accumulated amortization
1.Opening balance 950,172.66 1,308,660.08 2,258,832.74
2. Increase in the current period 422,298.96 415,326.45 837.625.41
(1) Provision 422,298.96 415,326.45 837,625.41
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal
4. Closing balance 1,372,471.62 1,723,986.53 3.096.458.15
II1. Provision for impairment
1. Opening balance
2. Increase in the current period
3. Decrease in the current period
4. Closing balance
IV. Carrying amount
1. Closing carrying amount 19,742,478.38 2,568,233.08 22310.711.46
2. Opening carrying amount 20,164,777.34 2,983,559.53 23,148,336.87
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(X) Goodwill

1. Original carrying amount of goodwill

Project

Opening balance

Increase in the
current period

Decrease in the
current period

Closing balance

Jiangmen Jiasijie

Painting Engineering 14,361.58 14,361.58
Co., Ltd.* (YL 15
PR TREAR A
)
Total 14,361.58 14,361.58

2. Impairment provision for goodwill

Project

Opening balance

Provision for the
current period

Decrease in the
current period

Closing balance

Jiangmen Jiasijie

Painting Engineering 14,361.58 14,361.58
Co., Ltd.* (L1328
R TREGRAR)

Total 14,361.58 14,361.58

(XI) Long term deferred expenses

Type Opening Increase in the Amortization in Other decrease Closing balance
balance current period the current
period
78,386.86 23,516.04 54,870.82
Storage fence fee
78,386.86
Total 23,516.04 54,870.82

(XII) Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

1. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are not presented in the net value after offset

Closing Opening
Item balance balance
Deferred income | Deductible Taxable| Deferred income | Deductible Taxable
tax temporary tax temporary
assets/liabilities difference assets/liabilities difference
Deferred income tax
assets:
Provision for impairment of 610,286.11 4,026,970.51 196,625.46 1,268,203.75
assets
Subtotal 610,286.11 4,026,970.51 196,625 46 1,268,203.75
2. Breakdown of unrecognized deferred income tax assets
Item Closing Opening balance
balance
Deductible loss 234,830.96 14,358.72
Total 234,830.96 14,358.72

3. Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred income tax assets will expire in the following years

Year Closing balance Opening balance Remarks
2020 794.00

2021 7,541.67 7,541.67

2022 3,012.49 3,012.49

2023 1,611.51 1,611.51

2024 1,399.05 1,399.05

2025 221,266.24

Total 234,830.96 14,358.72
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(XIII) Short-term borrowings

1. Classification of short-term borrowings

Borrowing Closing Opening balance
conditions balance
Mortgaged and guaranteed borrowings 17,000,000.00
Pledged, mortgaged and guaranteed 5,500,000.00
borrowings
19,833.33
Interest payable on short-term
borrowings
Total 17,019,833.33 5,500,000.00
(XIV) Accounts payable
Item Closing Opening balance
balance
Within 1 year (inclusive) 38,842,409.85 9.860.205.66
Over 1 year 573,370.34 573.370.34
Total 39.415,780.19 10,433,576.00
(XV) Employee remuneration payable
1. Employee remuneration payable shown by category
Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
_ balance current period current period balance
L. Short-term remuneration 1,437,926.69 16,572,371.24 16,739,284.75 1,271,013.18
II. Post-employment benefits-
defined contribution plan 117,302.38 117,302.38
Total 1,437,926.69 16,689,673.62 16,856,587.13 1,271,013.18
2. Remuneration of short-term employees
Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing balance
balance current period current period
imfsvijigycs bonus, allowance and 1370,972.29 15,044,290.04 15,187,139.53 1,228,122.80
2. Employee welfare premium 563.352.09 563.352.09
3. Social welfare premium 394.106.80 394.106.80
Including: Medicare premium 353,295.44 353,295.44
Occupational injuries 1,193.56 1,193.56
premium
Maternity premium 39,617.80 39,617.80
4. Housing provident funds 294.111.34 294.111.34
3. Labor union fund and 66,954.40 276,510.97 300,574.99 42,890.38
employee education fund
Total 1,437,926.69 16,572,371.24 16,739,284.75 1,271,013.18
3. Defined contribution plan
Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
balance current period current period balance
Basic endowment insurance 115,898.08 115,898.08
premium
Unemployment insurance 1,404.30 1.404.30
premium
Total 117,302.38 117,302.38
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(XVI) Taxes payable

Taxes Closing Opening
balance balance
VAT 761,631.44
Urban maintenance and construction 117,942.31
tax
Education surcharge 84,248.23
Enterprise income tax 807,051.65 250.367.79
Individual income tax 72.222.11 72,493.46
Others 20,114.00 7,614.91
Total 1863,209.74 330,476.16
(XVII) Other payables
Type C-losing Opening balance
balance
Interest payable 31,782.30
Other payables 3,832,244.12 1,266,160.05
Total 3,832,244.12 1,297,942.35
1. Interest payable
Type Closing Opening balance
balance
Interest on long-term borrowings with 22,469.97
interest payments by installment and
principal payments at due
Interest payable on short-term 9.312.33
borrowings :
Total 31,782.30
2. Other payables
Nature Closing Opening balance
balance
Deposits and guarantee deposits 3,635,000.00 1,102,700.00
Current accounts and others 197,244 .12 163,460.05
Total 3,832,244.12 1,266,160.05
(XVIII) Non-current liabilities due within one year
Item Closing Opening
balance balance
Long-term borrowings due within one 3,720,000.00
year
Total 3,720,000.00
(XIX) Long-term borrowings
Borrowing Closing balance Opening balance Range of the
conditions interest rates (%)
Mortgaged and guaranteed 2,049,200.00 8,000,000.00 46
borrowings )
Pledged borrowings 1,560,000.00 46
Interest payable on long-term 2,618.42
borrowings
Total 2,051,818.42 9,560,000.00
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(XX) Deferred income

1. Deferred income shown by category

Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing Reasons
balance current period current period balance
354,308.19 7,509,042.41 .
G"Vergfr‘;‘l‘; 1,263,350.60 6,600,000.00 project grants
Total 354,308.19 7,509,042.41
1,263,350.60 6,600,000.00
2. Items of government grants
Amount
Item Balance at the Amount of included in profit{Other changes Closing Related to
beginning of | grants or loss for the balance assets/related
the year increased for period to income
the period
Guide funds for
the development 852,594.57 191,469.64 661,124.93|  Related to
of provincial assets
modern service
industry in 2014
Guide funds for
the development 100,285.72 100,285.72 Related to
of provincial assets
service industry
in 2015
Guide funds for
the development 310,470.31 62,552.83 Related to
of provincial 247,917.48 assets
modern service
industry in 2015
Construction
project of 6,600,000.00 6,600,000.00[  Related to
agricultural assets
product chain
distribution
center
Total 1,263,350.60 6,600,000.00 354,308.19 7,509,042.41
(XXT) Share capital
. Movements (+, —) for the period .
Item Opening Closing
1 R
balance Issue of Bonus traissefgvneesd Others Subtotal balance
new shares shares to shares
Total shares 42,600,000.00 42,600,000.00

(XXII) Capital reserve

Type Opening balance Increase in the Decrease in the Closing balance
current period current period
Capital premium 3,143,108.23 3,143,108.23
Total 3,143,108.23 3,143,108.23
(XXIII) Surplus reserve
Type Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing balance
balance current period current period
Statutory surplus 3,806,036.48 1,653,826.84 5,459,863.32
reserve
Total 3,806,036.48 1,653,826.84 5,459,863.32
(XXIV) Undistributed profits
Item baimnes
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Amount

Proportion of appropriation or
distribution

Undistributed profits before adjustment at the end of preceding period

16,120,437.03

Adjustments to total undistributed profits at the beginning of the period

(increase+, decrease-)

Undistributed profits after adjustment at the beginning of the period

16,120,437.03

Add: Net profit attributable to owners of the parent company for the 16,300,798.35
current period
Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve 1,653,826.84 10%
Distribution to shareholders 9,798,000.00
Undistributed profits at the end of the period 20 969.408.54
(XXV) Operating revenue and operating cost
Amount for Amount for
Item current period previous
period
Revenue Cost Revenue Cost

Main operation 192,190,801.37 157,265,851.50 146,726,800.19 124,548,506.26
Other operation 691,943.61 208,906.48 702,002.89 191,406.48

Total 192,882,744.98 157,474,757.98 147,428,803.08 124,739,912.74

(XXVI) Taxes and surcharges

Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Stamp duty 97,809.50 85,614.11
Urban maintenance and construction tax 121,30046 82,306.21
Education surcharge and local education surcharge 86,643.19 58,790.16
Total 305,753.15 226,710.48
(XXVID) Selling expenses
Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Employee remuneration 1,192,028.53 1,179,715.25
Business entertainment expenses 80,535.72 68,271.56
Travel expenses 705.50 6,143.20
Others 11,338.88 18,624.59
Total 1,284,608.63 1,272,754.60
(XXVIII) Administrative expenses
Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Office expenses 130,988.46 75,678.07
Employee remuneration 2,253,500.35 2,256,992.36
Vehicle usage expenses 53,075.33 53,544.32
Amortization of intangible assets 422,298.96 422,298.96
Communication expenses 110,270.22 96,317.49
Depreciation of fixed assets 428,624.98 390,117.35
Intermediate fee 302,708.76 291,509.44
Business entertainment expenses 208,040.50 281,399.66
Travel expenses 7,857.50 27,935.45
Others 498,658.83 315,714.75
Total 4,416,023.89 4,211,507.85
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(XXIX) Research and development expenses

Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Employee remuneration 6,025,663.00 4,363,507.59
Depreciation and amortization 577,823.63 620,640.80
Testing expenses and other research and 1,540,103.54 763,255.20
development expenses
Total 8,143,590.17 5,747,403.59
(XXX) Financial expenses
Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Interest expenses 849,740.22 1,215,057.37
Less: Interest income 12,576.06 25,879.41
Add: Commission expenses and 5,255.59 15,432.58
others
Total 842,419.75 1,204,610.54
(XXXI) Other income
Item Amount for current period Amount for previous
period
Guide funds for the development of 191,469.64 191.469.64
provincial modern service industry in 09
2014
Guide funds for the development of 100,285.72 137 428.57
provincial production service industry 37,428.
in 2015
Guide funds for the development of 62,552.83 6255283
provincial modern service industry in 552,
2015
Total 354,308.19 391,451.04
(XXXII) Investment income
Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Gains on wealth management products 237,566.82 222,601.61
Total 237,566.82 222,601.61

(XXXIII) Credit impairment loss

Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Credit impairment loss of accounts -1,133,002.73 799,711.38
receivable
Credit impairment loss of other -1,625,764.03 116,121.23
receivables

Total -2,758,766.76 915,832.61

(XXXIV) Assets impairment losses

Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Impairment loss on goodwill -14,361.58
Total -14,361.58

(XXXYV) Non-operating income

1. Non-operating income is presented separately
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Item

Amount for current

Amount for previous

Amount charged
to the current

period period non-recurring
profit or loss
Government grant 3,000.00 450,000.00 3,000.00
Others 1,546.76 2,800.00 1,546.76
Total 4,546.76 452,800.00 4,546.76
2. Government grants included in non-operating income
. Related to
Item Amount for current Amount for previous assets/related
period period to income
High-tech enterprise 450,000.00 Related
incentives to income
Theme education subsidy
carried out by the Party 1,000.00 Related
branch of the "two new (% to ﬁlgoeme
)" organizations of
Jiangmen City Pengjiang
District Duran Town ‘
People's Government (VL]
VT XA BTN FSBURT)
Price and cost survey team 2,000.00 Related
to income
Total 3,000.00 450,000.00

(XXXVI) Non-operating expenses

Item

Amount for current

Amount for previous

Amount charged
to the current

period period non-recurring

profit or loss
External donations 70,000.00 70,000.00 70,000.00
Others 6,094.55 48,700.00 6,094.55
Total 76,094.55 118,700.00 76,094.55

(XXXVII) Income tax expenses

1. Details of income tax expenses

Item IAmount for the current period I[Amount for the previous period
Income tax expenses for the current
period calculated according to tax laws 2,275,662.59 918,821.05
and relevant requirements
Deferred income tax expenses -413,660.65 151,324.13
Differences in income tax settlement -6,619.32

Total 1,861,991.94 1,063,525.86

2. Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expenses
Item Amount

Total profit 18,162,790.29
Income tax expenses based on statutory/applicable tax rate 2724 418.54
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries -22,272.26
Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and losses 20682.99
Effect of additional deductions of research and development expenses -916,153.89
Effect of using the deductible losses of previously unrecognized deferred income tax assets 339118
Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible losses unrecognized as deferred income tax —
assets in current period 58,707.74
Income tax expenses 1.861.991.94
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(XXXVIII) Cash flow statement

1. Other cash receipts or payments related to operating activities

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Other cash receipts related to operating

activities 12,313,110.87 11,784,416.07
Including: Recovery of margin deposit 5,695,988.05 11,305,736.66
and advance
Interest Income 12,576.06 25,879.41
Government grants 6,600,000.00 450,000.00
Others 4,546.76 2,800.00
Oth h t related t ti
actiSirtic:ss payment related to operating 7.585,592.42 13,907.702.01
Including: Payment of margin deposit 4,716,500.00
and advance 12,644,529.29
Administrative expenses, research and
development expenses, and selling 2,787,742.28 1,129,040.14
expenses
Handling fee and other 11,350.14 64,132.58
expenses
External donations 70,000.00 70,000.00

2. Other cash receipts or payment related to fundraising activities

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Other cash receipts related to

fundraising activities 850,000.00 600,000.00
Including: Recovery of bank loan 850,000.00 600,000.00
deposits

Rndraisimg scivines 550,000.00
Including: Payment of bank loan 550,000.00

deposits

Payment of issuance costs

(XXXIX) Supplemental information to the cash flow statement

1. Supplemental information to the cash flow statement

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash
flow from operating

activities

Net profit 16,300,798.35 10,826,362.68

Add: Credit impairment loss 2,758,766.76 -915,832.61
Provision for assets impairment 14,361.58

Depreciation of fixed assets, oil and gas

assets, productive biological assets 2,528,536.04 2,408,414.47
Amortization of intangible assets 837,625.41 881,609.11
Amortization of long term 23,516.04 144,987.70

prepayments

Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets

and other long term assets (Gain
represented

by *)

Fixed assets retirement loss (Gain
represented by “—7)
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Item Amount for the Amount for the previous
current period period

Net loss on hedging exposure (Gain
represented by “—7)

Losses on changes in fair value (Gain

represented

by “)

Financial expenses (Gain represented by “—) 849.740.22 1.215.057.37
Investments losses (Gain represented by “—") 237 566.82 229 601.61
Decrease of deferred income tax assets 413.660.65 15132413

(Increase represented by “~)

Increase of deferred income tax liabilities
(Decrease

represented by “-7)

Decrease in inventories (Increase represented
by “)

Decrease in operating receivables (Increase 3128650410 77 13863058
represented by “~”) ,£00,094. 138,639,

Increase of operating payables (Decrease 37.159.800.14 17729 529 12
represented by “—7) Y T

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities 28,535,322.97 23,898,431.65

2.Significant investing and financing activities not
related to cash receipts and payments

Conversion of debt into share capital

Convertible corporate bonds due within one year

Fixed assets rented under leases

3. Net changes in cash and cash equivalents

Closing balance of cash 22,145,301.57 15,766,994.59

Less: Opening balance of cash 15,766,994.59 22,333,923.01

Add: Closing balance of cash equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash equivalents

Net increase of cash and cash equivalents 6,378,306.98 -6,566,928.42

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Item Amount for the current period Amount for the previous period

I. Cash 22,145,301.57 15,766,994.59
Including: Cash on hand 67,027.00 67,027.00
Cash in bank on d d fc t

ash in bank on demand for paymen 22,078,27457 15,699,967.59
1. Cash equivalents
Including: Bond investment with
maturity within 3 months
1II. Closing balance of cash and cash 22,145,301.57 15,766,994.59
equivalents
Including:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents
used by the Parent Company or
subsidiaries within the Group

(XL) Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or rights of use
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Item Closing carrying amount Reason for such
restrictions
Intangible assets-Land Use Rights 10,742 478.38, Pledge of Land Use
T Rights
Total 19,742,478.38|

VI. CHANGE IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

On 2 December 2020, a subsidiary, Sichuan Dingjie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. " (VU ) 1| S 58 {1k 87 55 55 H A5 BR A7) was
established, in which the Company holds 55% of the shares, and has been included in the scope of consolidation since its

establishment.
VIL. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

Interest in subsidiaries

Name of Nature of ;
subsidiaries Pk_“’e of Principal business Eng;r;ﬁ?n()f(o/) Acquisition
registration|  place of g (/o method
operation Directly Indirectly
Undertaking construction and decoration
works, transport of dangerous goods (Class 3),
Jiangmen general cargo transport (operating with valid
Jiasijie Jiangmen | Jiangmen “road transport operation licences”); domestic 100.00 Merger and
Painting land freight forwarding (The items that acquisition
Engineering requires approval by law can only be dealt in
Co., Ltd.* (L. after being approved by the relevant
I3 BAE % departments).
L RA R
AH])
Enterprise management consulting; supply
chain management and related ancillary
Zhuhai services; computer software and hardware 100.00
Ruiyuan Zhuhai Zhuhai development; wholesale and sales of Establishment
Supply Chain prepackaged food (The items that requires
Management approval by law can only be dealt in after
Co., Ltd. * (& being approved by the relevant departments).
i T B YR ik
IS B B A
YA
International freight forwarding, domestic
freight forwarding; warehousing services
Jiangmen (excluding hazardous chemicals); customs 51.00
Xinglian Jiangmen | Jiangmen and inspection services; import and export of Establishment
International goods; import and export of technology.
Logistics Co., (The items that requires approval by law can
Ltd. * (ILT] only be dealt in after being approved by the
SEIK [ BR relevant departments)
WA R A )
General: supply chain management
services; software development; software
sales; domestic freight forwarding; general
cargo warehousing services (excluding
hazardous chemicals and other projects that
require approval); cryogenic warehousing
(excluding hazardous chemicals and other
Sichuan projects that require approval); information
Dingjie Sichuan Sichuan consulting services (excluding licensing 55.00 Establishment
Supply Chain information consulting services); loading
Management and unloading (except for projects subject
Co., Ltd. * (/4 to approval according to law, independently
MR X9 carry out business activities according to
B LA R law with business license). Approved
] project: road freight transport (excluding
dangerous goods) (The items that requires
approval by law can only be dealt in after
being approved by the relevant
departments, specific business projects are
subject to the approval documents or
licences of the relevant departments)
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Note: As at the end of the period, Jiangmen Xinglian International Logistics Co., Ltd. * GLI 2B ER M AR A E) and
Sichuan Dingjie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. * ([4)|| 523 it 57 5 & ¥2 A PR /2 B]) had not yet commenced business.

VIII. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS

(I) De facto controllers of the Company

The de facto controllers of the Company are Zhang Yan (5K#£) and Yang Yongming (#77KFB). Zhang Yan (5K3&) and Yang
Yongming (#7KHB) are in a spousal relationship. As of the end of the reporting period, Zhang Yan (5K¥£) held 63.04% of the
Company's shares and Yang Yongming (#7KBH) held 2.05% of the Company's shares. They jointly held 65.09% of the Company's

shares.

(I) Subsidiaries of the Company

Please refer to Note “VII. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES” for details.

(IIT) Other related party of the Company

Name of other
related party

Relationships of other related party with
the Company

Jiangmen Yingjiang Group Co., Ltd. (LI IR ILEHFH
FRAT])

Legal person shareholder holding more than 5% of
shares

Jiangmen Yingjiang Technology Co., Ltd. (VL[ 11T
FLA A A A

A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Yingkang Oil Sales Co., Ltd. (VL7777 % HEii
AR R A

A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Hinno-tech Co., Ltd. (VL[] 3G RHEA
fRAFED

A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Guangdong Hinno-tech Co., Ltd. () =& IEH R R
HARARD

A company controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Yingkang Technology Co., Ltd. (VL[ ] &5
ﬂffﬁ FRAFD  (formerly known as "Guangzhou
Kangfei Lubricating Oil Co., Ltd. (J AR BEIRIEIE A
FRAFD "™

A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Yingjieda Ink Jet Co.,Ltd. (L[ J3EHEAmiR
HEAFD

A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder
holding more than 5% of the shares

Guangzhou Dingyi Food Co.,Ltd. (J M —& AR
AEID!

Holding 45% of the shares of Sichuan Dingjie Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd. * (JU) ||h%i%ﬁtﬁﬁ%§ﬁ}§i
H R/ ]), a controlling subsidiary of the Company

Jia Liping (BTALHE)

Shareholder and senior manangement of the Company

(IV) Related party transactions

1. Related party transactions for sale and purchase of goods and rendering and acceptance of

Services
Amount for Amount for
Name of related Clomfims of the current the previous
party related party period period
transactions Percentage of | Pricing policy Percentage of | Pricing policy
Amount sales in the| and Amount sales in the| and
same decision- same decision-
category making category making
process process
Sale of goods and
rendering of
services:
Jiangmen Yingjiang Provision of . .
Technology Co., Ltd. transport 17,076.38 0.01% Market prices
LI TH &R services
FRAED
Jiangmen Yingkang Provision of . .
Technology Co., Ltd. transport 8,954.32 0.01% Market prices
G R services
ENEID)
2. Related party guarantees
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Guarantor Guaranteed party |Guarantee amount|  Start date of End date of Guarat:)tre fl(ﬁﬂﬁued
guarantee guarantee
%él;m\%azg" ok The 30,000,000.00 2017-9-4 2023-9-3 No
Yongming (17K Company
), Jia Liping
CBUAL )
Zhang Yan (5K The 15,000,000.00 2018-1-16 2028-12-31 No
##), Yang . Company
Yongming (7K
)

IX. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(I) Commitments

As of 31 December 2020, the Company has no commitments that should be disclosed.
(II) Contingencies

As of 31 December 2020, the Company has no pending litigation, external guarantees and other contingencies that should be
disclosed.

X. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As of the date of this report, the Company has no events after the balance sheet date that should be disclosed.
XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

As of 31 December 2020, the Company has no other material matters that should be disclosed.

XII. NOTES TO MAJOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ITEMS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

(I) Accounts receivable

1. Disclosure of accounts receivable by the category

Closing
Cat balance
ategory Book Provision
balance for bad
debts
Amount Proportion (%) Amount Provision ratio

(%)

Accounts receivable with provision
assessed for bad debts on an
individual basis

Accounts receivable with provision 58,570,891.15 100.00 1,953,382.31 3.34
for bad debts by combination

fwhich: I: receivables ofh
gaygfouf;’“v recelvables other | oo 7089115 | 10000 1,953,382.31 334

Group 2: related parties within
the scope of consolidation

Total 58,570,891.15 100.00 1,953,382.31 3.34
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Opening balance
Category Book balance Provision for bad debts
Amount Proportion (%) [Amount Provision ratio (%)
Accounts receivable with provision
assessed for bad debts on an individual
basis
Accounts receivable with provision for bad 26,180,147.87 100.00 818,950.57 3.13
debts by combination
Of which: Group I: receivables other
than Group 2 26,180,147.87 100.00 818,950.57 3.13
Group 2: related parties within the
scope of consolidation
Total 26,180,147.87 100.00 818,950.57 3.13

Group 1:
Closing Opening
Ages balance balance
Book balance | Provision ratio Provision for Book balance | Provision ratio Provision for
(%) bad debts (%) bad debts
Within 1 year
(inclusive) 56,407,807.04 3.00 1,692,234.22 25,892,333.72 3.00 776,770.03
1 to 2 years 1,843,806.56 10.00 184,380.66 153,822.85 10.00 15,382.29
2 to 3 years 190,158.25 20.00 38,031.65 133,991.30 20.00 26,798.26
3 to 4 years 129,119.30 30.00 38,735.79
Total 58,570,891.15 1,953,382.31 26,180,147.87 818,950.57

2. Provision for bad debts made, recovered or reversed during the reporting period

The amount of provision for bad debts in this period is RMB1,134,431.74; the amount of provision for bad debts recovered or

reversed in this period is RMBO.

3. Details of the top 5 accounts receivable by closing balance of debtors

Closing bal P i 1 L
Company names osing batance mpor}g;gi?a{ﬁ;a((%coums Balance of provision for bad
debts

Tiandi Yihao Beverage Co., Ltd. (Kb
EORM I 1 B A 7 8,237,890.51 14.06 247,136.72
Jiangmen Toyo Ink Co., Ltd. (VL['JZ<¥ 6,223,569.42 10.63 186,707.08
AT PR D
Jiangmen Qing Hong Science and
Techology Industry Co., Lid. T % 5,788,019.50 9.88 173,640.59
FERHE SN AR AR
Guangdong Jiantong Pipe Products Co.,
Lid. O AR g PRA ) 3,383,000.00 578 101,490.00
Jiangmen Pengjiang Haojue Commercial
Co. Ltd. LI HBESAR | 274236039 408 82,210.07
A

Total 26,374,845.82 45.03 791,184.46

(IT) Other receivables
Category Closing Opening balance
balance
Other receivables 7,926,639.49 8,332,722.23
Less: Provision for bad debts 2,011,182.89 385,304.22
Total 5,915,456.60 7,947,418.01

1. Other receivables categorised by nature
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Nature of receivables Closing balance Opening balance
Deposits and guarantee deposits 7.376.278.47 7.293,960.67
Reserves, withholding payments and others 550,361.02 1,038,761.56
Less: Provision for bad debts 2,011,182.89 385,304.22

Total 3,915,456.60 7,947,418.01
2. Aging analysis of other receivables
Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Book balance Proportion (%) Book balance Proportion (%)
Within 1 year 3,747,104.78 47.27 7,932,031.56 95.19
1to 2 years 3,778,881.24 47.67 85,280.00 1.02
2to 3 years 85,242.80 1.08 83,208.00 1.00
3 to 4 years 83,208.00 1.05 141,387.00 1.70
4to 5 years 141,387.00 1.78 10,000.00 0.12
Over 5 years 90,815.67 115 80,815.67 0.97
Total 7,926,639.49 100.00 8,332,722.23 100.00
3. Bad debt provision
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Provision for bad debts Expected credit loss Lifetime expected Lifetime expected Total
over the next 12 credit loss — not credit-|  credit loss — credit-
months impaired impaired
Opening balance 385,304.22 385,304.22
Opening balance after
reassessment for the 385,304.22 385,304.22
current period
Provision for the 151,178.67 1,474,700.00 1,625,878.67
current period
Closing balance 536,482.89 1,474,700.00 2,011,182.89
4. Details of the top 5 other receivables by closing balance of debtors
Name of debtors Nature of Closing |Ages Proportionto  [Balance of bad
receivables [balance the total debt provision
closing
balance of
lother
receivables
(%)
Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., .
Ltd. G B AR PR A Deposits and 1,474,700.00 lto2 18.60 1,474,700.00
=] guarantee years
deposits
Changzhou Haojue Commercial Trade Deposits and 1,000,000.00 Within 1 12.62 30,000.00
Co., Ltd. CHMZEE R A IRAH)D guarantee year
deposits
Jiangmen Shuangying Supply Chain Deposits and 800,000.00 Within 1 10.09 24,000.00
Management Co., Ltd. (VL[] X2 fiE N guarantee year
BEEHARARD deposits
Carpoly Chemical Group Co., Ltd. (5 Deposits and 550,000.00 | 1to 2 years 6.94 55,000.00
FAME TR AT A BR A AT guarantee
deposits
Jiangmen Pengjiang Haojue . s
Commercial Co., Ltd. (VLI'JH%{L X Deposits and 500,000.00 | Within 1 6.31 15,000.00
S A5 IRA T guarantee year
deposits
Total 4,324,700.00 54.56 1,598,700.00

Note: Deposit of Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., Ltd. (VLI 117 7 5 BEFE 4= HC A4 FR 24 7)) amounted to
RMB1,474,700.00. Such deposit was expected to be difficult to recover due to the poor operation of the counterparty and the
current lack of business cooperation between the two parties, a full provision for impairment has been made.
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(IIT) Long-term equity investments

Closing balance Opening balance
Items
IBook balance Provision for] Carrying amount| Book balance] Provision for|Carrying amount
impairment] impairment]
Investment in 268,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00
subsidiaries
Total 268,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00
1. Investment in subsidiaries
i X IProvision  [Closing
Investee Opening balance Increase for the Decrease for the (Closing balance for balance of
period period limpairment [provision
madein  for
lcurrent impairment
period
Jiangmen Jiasijie
Painting Engineering 268,000.00 268,000.00
Co,, Ltd.* (VL[ 15818
R TRA R A
)
Total 268,000.00 268,000.00
(IV) Operating revenue and operating cost
e Amount for the current period Amount for the previous period
ms
Revenue Costs Revenue Costs
Main operation 188,238,421.33 153,235,085.47 136,351,726.92 114,748,841.70
Other operation 691,943.61 208,906.48 702,002.89 191,406.48
Total 188,930,364.94 153,443,991.95 137,053,729.81 114,940,248.18

(V) Investment income

Type Amount for the current period Amount for the previous period
Investment income from wealth 205 182.95 174.646.55
management products T T
Total 205,182.95 174,646.55
XIII. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(I) Breakdown of non-recurring profit or loss for the current period
Items |[Amount Remarks
1. Government grants included in profit or loss for the current period (exclusive of those 357,308.19
that are closely related to the enterprise business and received in a
certain amount or fixed quantity according to the State standards)
2. The profit or loss of entrusting others to invest or manage assets 237,566.82
3. Other non-operating income and expenses other than aforesaid items -74,5471.79
4. Impact of income tax -75,724.88
Total 444,602.34
(II) RONA and EPS
EPS
Weighted average RONA (%)
Basic EPS

Profit of the reporting period

Amount for the
current period

Amount for the
previous period

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Net profit attributable to
shareholders of ordinary shares

22.33

16.89

0.38

0.25
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Net profit attributable to
shareholders of ordinary shares 21712 1564 037 023
after deducting non-recurring
profit or loss

An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
30 April 2021
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SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

L. AUDITOR’S REPORT
Audited or not Yes
Auditor’s opinion Unmodified opinion

VNil

oEmphasized matter paragraph

Special paragraphs in the auditor’s report DOtber matters paragra?ph .
0Going concern material uncertainty paragraph

oOther information paragraph containing explanations

on uncorrected material misstatement of other

information
Auditor’s report number [2022] No. 22-00027
Name of audit institution WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP
Address of audit institution Room 1504, Xueyuan International Tower, No. 1 Zhichun Road,
Haidian District, Beijing
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Name of the certified public accountant who
. . - 2 years 4 years
signed and consecutive years of signing
Any change in the accounting firm No

Consecutive service years of the accounting firm | 5 years

Audit remuneration for the accounting firm RMB150,000

AUDITOR’S REPORT

Da Xin Shen Zi [2022] No. 22-00027

To all the members of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd:

1. Auditor’s Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as the “Company”’), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet of the parent
company as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated income statement and income statement of the parent
company, the consolidated cash flow statement and cash flow statement of the parent company, and the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of
the parent company for the year 2021, and the notes to these financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in all material aspects, give a fair view of the Company’s consolidated
financial position and financial position of the parent company as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
operating results and cash flows of the parent company for the year 2021.

11. Basis for the Auditor’s Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for PRC Certified Public
Accountants. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Certified Public
Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements™ section of the auditor’s report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public
Accountants, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
audit opinion.

II1. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

(D) Revenue recognition

1. Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (XXVIII) to the financial statements of the Company, in 2021, the Company
recognised revenue from principal activities of RMB237,704,174.37, which was mainly attributable to
revenue from the provision of transportation and storage and logistics services. We identified revenue from
principal activities as a key audit matter because the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the
recognition of revenue from principal activities has a greater impact on the Company's profit, and
considering that revenue is one of the Company's key performance indicators, which results in the inherent
risk that revenue may be recognized in an incorrect period or be manipulated to achieve target or expected
levels.

2. Audit response

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue included:

(1) obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design and operating effectiveness of management’s
key internal controls relating to revenue recognition;

(2) inspecting service contracts on a sample basis, identifying contract terms and conditions and assessing
whether the timing of revenue recognition was in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises;

(3) selecting samples of service revenue transactions recorded during the year, checking invoices,
contracts, receipt records and reconciliation records, and evaluating whether the related revenue recognition was
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies for revenue recognition;

(4) selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded before and after the balance sheet date, checking the
confirmation documents for the provision of services and other supporting documents to evaluate whether the
revenue was recorded in the appropriate accounting period;

(5) issuing confirmations to major customers and performing background check procedures to verify
whether the operating income was true and recorded in the correct period.

(IT) Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable

1.Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (III) to the financial statements of the Company, as of 31 December 2021, the book
balance of the Company’s accounts receivable was RMB81,342,004.51 with provision for bad debts of
RMB3,226,872.70 and carrying amount of RMB78,115,131.81 . We identified the provision for bad debts of
accounts receivable as a key audit matter due to the significant accounting estimates and judgements involved
in the determination of provision for bad debts by the management and the significance of the provision for bad

debts of accounts receivable to the financial statements.
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2. Audit response

The main audit procedures we implemented for the provision for bad debts of receivables included:

(1) obtaining an understanding of the key internal controls related to the impairment of accounts receivable,
evaluating the design of these controls, determining whether they have been implemented, and testing the
effectiveness of the operation of relevant internal controls;

(2) reviewing the relevant consideration and objective evidence of the management’s credit risk assessment
or impairment test on accounts receivable, and evaluating whether the management appropriately identified the
credit risk characteristics of accounts receivable or impaired accounts receivable;

(3) for accounts receivable with expected credit losses measured on a collective basis, evaluating the
rationality of the management’s grouping based on credit risk characteristics; evaluating the reasonableness of the
comparison table of the ageing of accounts receivable against the expected credit loss rates determined by the
management based on historical credit loss experience and forward-looking estimates; testing the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by management and the accuracy of the calculation of the provision for bad debts;

(4) selecting samples to confirm the large accounts receivable or a portion of accounts receivable with small
amount but with large occurrences at the end of the period,

(5) checking whether the information related to the impairment of accounts receivable has been properly
presented in the financial statements.

IV. Other Information

The management of the Company (the “Management”) are responsible for the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the 2021 annual report of the Company, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read other information and, in
doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work so performed, we shall report any material misstatement as contained in other information
that we ascertain. In this aspect, we have no such matter to be reported.

V. Responsibilities of the Management and Governing Bodies for the Financial
Statements

The Management is responsible for preparing and presenting fairly the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, as well as designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and use the going concern
assumption unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The governing bodies are responsible for supervising the financial reporting processes of the Company.

VI. Certified Public Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we performed the following tasks:

(I) identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. As fraud could involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omission, false statements or overriding internal controls, thus risks of inability
to discover major misrepresentation are more severe than risks of inability to spot misrepresentation due to
mistake.

(IT) understanding the audit related internal controls in order to design appropriate audit procedures,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the internal control’s effectiveness.

(TIT) evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

(TV) concluding on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern assumption. And
based on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required by the Auditing Standards to draw attention to
users of financial statements in our auditor’s report on the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the information obtained
up to the date of the auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease
to continue as a going concern.

(V) evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a fair manner.

(V1) obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidences regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express audit opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit and remain solely responsibility for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the governing bodies regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including deficiencies worth of attention in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the governing bodies with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the governing bodies, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or regulations prohibited public disclosure about
the matter or when, in rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
auditor’s report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP PRC certified public accountant: Xia Ling
(Engagement Partner)

China - Beijing PRC certified public accountant: Gong Fuguo

25 April 2022
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I1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(I) Consolidated Balance Sheet

Unit: RMB

Item

Note

31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Current assets:

Monetary funds

V(1)

14,371,554.73

22,145,301.57

Settlement reserve

Placements with financial
institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable

V(D)

2,145,683.20

Trade receivables

V(III)

78,115,131.81

57,512,817.67

Receivables financing

Prepayments

V(IV)

4,964,762.10

3,654,261.41

Premium receivables

Reinsurance accounts receivable

Reserves for reinsurance contract
receivable

Other receivables

V(V)

5,376,178.68

5,980,716.01

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell

Inventories

Contract assets

Assets held for sales

Non-current assets due within one
year

Other current assets

V(VI)

471,350.89

27,466.78

Total current assets

105,444,661.41

89,320,563.44

Non-current assets:

Loans and advances to customers

Debt investment

Other debt investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

Other equity instrument investments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties

Fixed assets

V(VID)

44,374,663.06

11,842,546.67

Construction in progress

V(VIII)

2,212,389.50

20,996,342.98

Productive biological assets
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Oil and gas assets

Right-of-use assets

V(IX)

676,408.48

Intangible assets

V(X)

23,515,668.46

22,310,711.46

Development expenses

Goodwill

V(XI)

Long-term deferred expenses

V(XII)

521,453.76

54,870.82

Deferred income tax assets

V(XIII)

806,901.07

610,286.11

Other non-current assets

V(XIV)

1,776,207.00

Total non-current assets

73,883,691.33

55,814,758.04

Total assets

179,328,352.74

145,135,321.48

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

V(XV)

18,751,953.20

17,019,833.33

Borrowings from central bank

Placements from financial institution

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Trade payables

V(XVI)

41,480,010.26

39,415,780.19

Advance receipts

Contract liabilities

Financial assets sold under
agreements to repurchase

Deposits from customers and others

Brokerage for securities trading

Brokerage for underwriting
securities

Employee benefits payable

V(XVII)

1,569,653.22

1,271,013.18

Taxes payable

V(XVIII)

1,371,696.32

1,863,209.74

Other payables

V(XIX)

6,726,885.78

3,832,244.12

Including: Interest payable

Dividend payable

Fees and commissions payable

Reinsurance accounts payable

Liabilities held for sales

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

V(XX)

807,711.99

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

70,707,910.77

63,402,080.56

Non-current liabilities:

Reserves for insurance contracts

Long-term borrowings

V(XXI)

8,317,909.39

2,051,818.42

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities
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Long-term payables

Long-term employee remuneration
payables

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income

V(XXIII)

6,377,192.74

7,509,042.41

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

14,695,102.13

9,560,860.83

Total liabilities

85,403,012.90

72,962,941.39

Owners’ equity (or shareholders’
equity):

Share capital

V(XXIV)

42,600,000.00

42,600,000.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

V(XXV)

3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

Less: Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

V(XXVI)

7,702,217.29

5,459,863.32

General risk provisions

Retained earnings

V(XXVII)

40,480,272.89

20,969,408.54

Total owners’ equity (or
sharcholders’ equity) attributable to
the parent company

93,925,598.41

72,172,380.09

Minority interest

-258.57

Total owners’ equity (or
shareholders’ equity)

93,925,339.84

72,172,380.09

Total liabilities and owners’ equity
(or shareholders’ equity)

179,328,352.74

145,135,321.48

Legal representative: Zhang Yan

Principal in charge of accounting: Jia Liping

Head of accounting department: Zhao Shufen

(IT) Parent Company Balance Sheet

Unit: RMB

Item

Note 31 December 2021

31 December 2020

Current assets:

Monetary funds

11,660,195.51

19,645,632.07

Financial assets held for trading

Derivative financial assets

Bill receivables

2,145,683.20

Trade receivables

XII(T)

77,340,353.34

56,617,508.84
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Receivables financing

Prepayments

4,911,836.62

3,596,890.75

Other receivables

XII(1T))

5,309,797.41

5,915,456.60

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell

Inventories

Contract assets

Assets held for sales

Non-current assets due within one
year

Other current assets

439,220.56

Total current assets

101,807,086.64

85,775,488.26

Non-current assets:

Debt investment

Other debt investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

XII(TIT)

5,768,000.00

268,000.00

Other equity instrument investments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties

Fixed assets

44,265,823.65

11,713,749.96

Construction in progress

2,212,389.50

20,996,342.98

Productive biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Right-of-use assets

676,408.48

Intangible assets

23,515,668.46

22,310,711.46

Development expenses

Goodwill

Long-term deferred expenses

521,453.76

54,870.82

Deferred income tax assets

792,242.34

594,684.78

Other non-current assets

1,776,207.00

Total non-current assets

79,528,193.19

55,938,360.00

Total assets

181,335,279.83

141,713,848.26

Current liabilities:

Short-term borrowings

18,751,953.20

17,019,833.33

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Accounts payable

40,025,749.42

38,181,407.63

Advance receipts

Financial assets sold under
agreements to repurchase

Employee remuneration payable

1,557,196.69

1,246,241.58

Taxes payable

1,371,361.01

1,862,909.08
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Other payables

12,226,091.78

3,719,150.24

Including: Interest payable

Dividend payable

Contract liabilities

Liabilities held for sales

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

807,711.99

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

74,740,064.09

62,029,541.86

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term borrowings

8,317,909.39

2,051,818.42

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

Long-term payables

Long-term employee remuneration
payables

Estimated liabilities

Deferred revenue

6,377,192.74

7,509,042.41

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

14,695,102.13

9,560,860.83

Total liabilities

89,435,166.22

71,590,402.69

Owners’ equity (or shareholders’
equity):

Share capital

42,600,000.00

42,600,000.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

Less: Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

7,702,217.29

5,459,863.32

General risk provisions

Retained earnings

38,454,788.09

18,920,474.02

Total owners’ equity (or
shareholders’ equity)

91,900,113.61

70,123,445.57

Total liabilities and owners’ equity
(or shareholders’ equity)

181,335,279.83

141,713,848.26

(IIT) Consolidated Income Statement
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Unit: RMB
Item Note 2021 2020
I. Total operating income V(XXVIII) 238,021,155.45 192,882,744.98
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Including: Operating income V(XXVIID) 238,021,155.45 192,882,744.98
Interest income
Premiums earned
Fee and commission income
I1. Total operating costs 212,673,156.73 172,467,153.57
Including: Operating costs V(XXVIID) 196,518,941.71 157,474,757.98
Interest expense
Fee and commission expenses
Surrender payment
Net expenses of claim settlement
Net provision for insurance contracts
Expenditures for policy dividend
Reinsurance expenditures
Tax and surcharges V(XXIX) 685,655.97 305,753.15
Selling expenses V(XXX) 1,682,133.68 1,284,608.63
Administrative expenses V(XXXI) 5,528,268.39 4,416,023.89
R&D expenses V (XXXII) 7,189,449.82 8,143,590.17
Financial expenses V(XXXIIT) 1,068,707.16 842,419.75
Including: Interest expenses V(XXXIID) 1,068,641.69 849,740.22
Interest income V(XXXIII) 10,818.19 12,576.06
Add: Other revenue V(XXXIV) 1,131,849.67 354,308.19
Investment income (loss represented by V(XXXV) 88,305.89 237,566.82
“_”)
Including: Gains from investment in
associates and joint ventures (loss represented
by ‘6_’7)
Gains on derecognition of
financial assets at amortized cost (loss
represented by “-”)
Exchange gain (loss represented by “-””) 0 0
Net exposure hedging income (loss
represented by “-”)
Gains on changes in fair value (loss 0 0
represented by “-”)
Credit impairment losses (loss represented V(XXXVI) -1,313,280.01 -2,758,766.76
by 64_9’)
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Assets impairment losses (loss represented by “-”) V (XXXVII) 0 -14,361.58
. . V (XXXVIIT) -223,377.90 0

Gains on disposals of assets (loss represented by “-”)
II1. Operating profit (loss represented by “-”) 25,031,496.37 18,234,338.08
Add: Non-operating income V (XXXIX) 152,915.94 4,546.76
Less: Non-operating expenses V (XL) 56,165.87 76,094.55
IV. Total profit (total loss represented by “-” 25,128,246.44 18,162,790.29
Less: Income tax expense V (XLI) 3,051,850.84 1,861,991.94
V. Net profit (net loss represented by “-”) 22,076,395.60 16,300,798.35

Including: Net profit achieved by the acquiree prior to the
acquisition
(I) By continuity of operations: - - -

1. Net profit from continuing operations (net loss represented by 22,076,395.60 16,300,798.35
)

2. Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss represented
by “-7)
(IT) By ownership: - - -

1. Profits or losses attributable to minority shareholders (net -258.57
loss represented by “-”)
2. Net profit attributable to owners of the parent company 22,076,654.17 16,300,798.35
(net loss represented by “-)

VI. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(I) Other comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
parent company, net of tax

1. Other comprehensive income that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss
(1) Changes arising from the re-measurement of defined
benefit plan
(2) Other comprehensive income that may not be reclassified|
to profit or loss under the equity method
(3) Change in fair value of investments in other equity
instruments
(4) Change in fair value of credit risk of corporate

(5) Others

2. Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss
(1) Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss under the equity method
(2) Changes in fair value of other debt investments

(3) Financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive
income

(4) Provision for credit impairment of other debt investments

(5) Cash flow hedge reserve

(6) Exchange differences on translation of financial
statements in foreign currency
(7) Others

(IT) Other comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders, net of tax

VII. Total comprehensive income 22,076,395.60 16,300,798.35

(I) Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the 22,076,654.17 16,300,798.35
parent company
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(II) Total comprehensive income attributable to minority -258.57
shareholders
VIIL Earnings per share:
(I) Basic earnings per share (RMB/share) 0.52 0.38
(IT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)
Legal representative: Zhang Yan Principal in charge of accounting: Jia Liping
Head of accounting department: Zhao Shufen
(IV) Parent Company Income Statement
Unit: RMB
Item Note 2021 2020
L. Operating Income XII(IV) 233,885,594.95 188,930,364.94
Less: Operating costs XII(IV) 192,450,682.81 153,443,991.95
Tax and surcharges 683,588.07 303,776.75
Selling expenses 1,554,481.12 1,118,381.16
Administrative expenses 5,397,387.03 4,410,363.49
R&D expenses 7,189,449.82 8,143,590.17
Financial expenses 1,065,934.85 839,475.77
Including: Interest expenses 1,068,641.69 849,740.22
Interest income 9,739.43 11,323.84
Add: Other gains 1,131,849.67 354,308.19
XII(V) 35,600.78 205,182.95
Investment income (loss represented by “-”)
Including: Gains from investment in associates and joint
ventures (loss represented by “-”)
Gains on derecognition of financial assets at
amortized cost (loss represented by “-”)
Exchange gain (loss represented by “-”)
Net exposure hedging income (loss represented by “-”)
Gains on changes in fair value (loss represented by “-”
Credit impairment losses (loss represented by “-”") -1,317,050.40 -2,760,310.41
Assets impairment losses (loss represented by “-”)
Gains on disposals of assets (loss represented by “-) -223,377.90
II. Operating profit (loss represented by “-” 25,171,093.40 18,469,966.38
Add: Non-operating income 36,084.60 3,002.63
Less: Non-operating expenses 56,165.87 73,094.55
II1. Total profit (total loss represented by “-) 25,151,012.13 18,399,874.46
Less: Income tax expense 3,050,908.24 1,861,606.03
IV. Net profit (net loss represented by “-”) 22,100,103.89 16,538,268.43
](JI) ygt profit from continuing operations (net loss represented 22,100,103.89 16,538,268.43
y o
(II) Net profit from discontinued operations (net loss
represented by “-)
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V. Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(I) Other comprehensive income that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss

1i Changes arising from the re-measurement of defined benefit
plan

2. Other comprehensive income that may not be reclassified to
profit or loss under the equity method

_3. Change in fair value of investments in other equity
instruments

4. Change in fair value of credit risk of corporate

5. Others

(IT) Other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to
profit or loss

1. Other comprehensive income that may be reclassified to
profit or loss under the equity method

2. Changes in fair value of other debt investments

3. Financial assets reclassified into other comprehensive income

4. Provision for credit impairment of other debt investments

5. Cash flow hedge reserve

6. Exchange differences on translation of financial statements in
foreign currency
7. Others

VI. Total comprehensive income 22,100,103.89 16,538,268.43

VIL Earnings per share:

(I) Basic earnings per share (RMB/share)

(IT) Diluted earnings per share (RMB/share)

(V) Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Unit: RMB

Ttem Note 2021 2020

L. Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services 234,060,283.71 177,463,757.19

Net increase in deposits from customer and interbank

Net increase in borrowings from central bank

Net increase in placements from other financial institutions

Cash received from premiums under original insurance
contracts

Net cash received from reinsurance business

Net increase in deposits and investments from policyholders

Cash received from interest, fee and commission

Net increase in placements

Net increase in capital from repurchase business

Net cash from brokerage for trading securities

Refund of taxes and surcharges

. . L V(XLII) 5,163,734.13 12,313,110.87
Cash received from other operation related activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 239,224,017.84 189,776,868.06
Cash paid for purchase of goods and receipt of services 198,627,494.45 134,266,362.48

Net increase in loans and advances to customers
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Net increase in deposits with central bank and other banks

Cash paid for compensation payments under original insurance
contracts

Net increase in financial assets held for trading

Net increase in placements with banks

Cash paid for interest, fee and commission

Cash paid for policyholder dividends

Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 19,452,265.24 16,856,858.48
Tax and charges paid 6,891,447.18 2,532,731.71
V(XLIT) 5,962,612.97 7,585,592.42

Cash paid for other operation related activities

Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 230,933,819.84 161,241,545.09

V(XLIII) 8,290,198.00 28,535,322.97
Net cash flows from operating activities

I1. Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from disposal of investments 41,100,000.00 59,700,000.00
Cash received from investment income 36,595.79 237,566.82
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible 16,910.00

assets and other long-term assets

Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units

Cash received from other investment related activities

Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 41,153,505.79 59,937,566.82

Cash paid for purchasing and constructing fixed assets, 22,177,287.39 20,656,712.04
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Cash paid for investment 41,100,000.00 51,900,000.00

Net increase in pledged loans

Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business units

Cash paid for other investment related activities

63,277,287.39 72,556,712.04
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities
Net cash flows from investing activities -22,123,781.60 -12,619,145.22
1. Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from capital contribution
Including: Cash received from capital contributions by minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
Cash received from borrowings 25,848,153.47 19,180,000.00
Cash received from issuance of bonds
Cash received from other financing related activities V(XLII) 850,000.00
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities 25,848,153.47 20,030,000.00
Cash repayments of borrowings 17,764,400.00 18,910,800.00
Cash payments for distribution of dividends, profits or interest 966,716.71 10,657,070.77
expenses
Including: Cash payments for dividends or profit to minority
shareholders of subsidiaries
V(XLIT) 1,057,200.00
Cash paid for other financing related activities
19,788,316.71 29,567,870.77

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing activities
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V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Net cash flows from financing activities 6,059,836.76 -9,537,870.77
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents
-7,773,746.84 6,378,306.98

Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the period

V(XLIIT)

22,145,301.57

15,766,994.59

VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
period

V(XLIIT)

14,371,554.73

22,145,301.57

Legal representative: Zhang Yan
Head of accounting department: Zhao Shufen

(VI) Cash Flows Statement of the Parent Company

Principal in charge of accounting: Jia Liping

- II-77 -

Unit: RMB
Item Note 2021 2020
1. Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sale of goods and rendering of services 229,428,262.37 173,108,028.76
Refund of taxes and surcharges
Cash received from other operation related activities 5,045,824.03 12,052,993.28
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 234,474,086.40 185,161,022.04
Cash paid for purchase of goods and receipt of services 194,601,084.52 130,937,456.79
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 19,071,787.03 16,126,784.07
Tax and charges paid 6,889,352.48 2,530,911.51
Cash paid for other operation related activities 5,832,359.08 7,168,117.78
226,394,583.11 156,763,270.15
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities
8,079,503.29 28,397,751.89
Net cash flows from operating activities
II. Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash received from disposal of investments 40,700,000.00 48,100,000.00
Cash received from investment income 35,600.78 205,182.95
Net cash received from disposal of fixed assets, intangible 16,910.00 0.00
assets and other long-term assets
Net cash received from disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units
Cash received from other investment related activities
40,752,510.78 48,305,182.95
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchasing and constructing fixed assets, 22,177,287.39 20,563,112.04
intangible assets and other long-term assets
Cash paid for investment 40,700,000.00 42,600,000.00
Net cash paid to acquire subsidiaries and other business units
Cash paid for other investment related activities
62,877,287.39 63,163,112.04
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities
-22,124,776.61 -14,857,929.09
Net cash flows from investing activities
I11. Cash flows from financing activities:
58
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Cash received from capital contribution

Cash received from borrowings

25,848,153.47

19,180,000.00

Cash received from issuance of bonds

Cash received from other financing related
activities

850,000.00

Sub-total of cash inflows from financing
activities

25,848,153.47

20,030,000.00

Cash repayments of borrowings

17,764,400.00

18,910,800.00

Cash payments for distribution of dividends, 966,716.71 10,657,070.77
profits or interest expenses
Cash paid for other financing related activities 1,057,200.00 0.00

Sub-total of cash outflows from financing
activities

19,788,316.71

29,567,870.77

Net cash flows from financing activities 6,059,836.76 -9,537,870.77
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
on cash and cash equivalents
V. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents -7,985,436.56 4,001,952.03

Add: Balance of cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of the period

19,645,632.07

15,643,680.04

VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents at
the end of the period

11,660,195.51

19,645,632.07
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Notes to Financial Statements of
An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.

(Expressed in RMB in these notes, unless otherwise stated)

I. Basic Corporate Information

(I) Place of registration, type of organization and address of headquarter.

An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (the "Company") was established on 17 June 2016 after
the completion of the financial restructuring of Jiangmen An Jie Logistics Co., Ltd. and has obtained the
business licence from Jiangmen City Industrial and Commercial Administrative Bureau. The Company’s
Uniform Social Credit Code is 91440703760601562R.

Form of the corporate organisation: joint stock company.

Registered address: Room 202, No. 13 Jiantang Road, Tangxia Town, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen
City; No. 98 Hongxing Road, Pengjiang District, Jiangmen City.

(IT) The business nature of the Company and its main business activities.

The industry in which the Company operates: roads and transportation businesses.

Scope of business of the Company: dangerous cargo transport, general cargo transport (operating with
valid “road transport operation licences”); warehouse management, transit, division or merge of cargo in
container, warechousing and delivery, uploading and unloading of cargo; domestic airline sales agency; sales
of motorcycle components; development and sales of software. (The items that requires approval by law
can only be dealt in after being approved by the relevant departments.)

(ITI) Approver of the financial report and the date of approval.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors of the Company on 25 April 2022.

(IV) The scope of consolidation of the Company’s financial statements for the year

As of 31 December 2021, the scope of consolidation of the Company’s financial statements covers An Jie Supply
Chain Management Co., Ltd., Jiangmen Jiasijie Coating Engineering Co., Ltd. (JT.[ 15 B 542 TREH R A ),
Jiangmen Ruiyuan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (VL[] i 845 {3 8% A PR A7) and Sichuan
Dingjie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (PY)!|$HEBLRFEE#E AR A ). For changes in the scope of
consolidation during the reporting period and the Company’s interests in other entities, please refer to Notes
"VI. Change in Scope of Consolidation" and "VII. Interest in Other Entities", respectively.

I1. Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

(I) Basis of Preparation: The Company prepares its financial statements on a going concern basis,
based on actual transactions and events, in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises - Basic Standards and specific accounting standards issued by the Ministry of Finance
(collectively the "ASBEs"), and on the basis of the significant accounting policies and accounting estimates
described below.
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(IT) Going Concern: The Company has had the ability to continue as a going concern for 12 months
from the end of the reporting period.

I11. Significant Accounting Policies and Estimates
(D) Statement of compliance with corporate accounting standards

The financial statements prepared by the Company conform to the requirements of the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises and reflect truthfully and completely the Company's financial position
as at 31 December 2021, and operating results and cash flows in 2021, as well as other relevant information.

(I) Accounting period
The accounting year of the Company is the calendar year, i.e. from 1 January to 31 December.
(ITI) Operating cycle

The Company takes one year or 12 months as its normal operating cycle that serves as the
division standard for the liquidity of assets and liabilities.
(IV) Reporting currency

The Company uses Renminbi as its reporting currency.

(V) Business combinations
1. Business combination under common control

For long-term equity investments resulting from a business combination under common control
where the acquirer pays cash, transfers non-cash assets or assumes debts as consideration for the
combination, the Company's share of the carrying value of the acquiree’s equity in the consolidated
financial statements of the ultimate controlling party acquired at the date of the combination is used
as the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment. In case the acquirer pays the
consideration for the combination by issuing equity instruments, the aggregate nominal value of shares
issued will be recognised as share capital. The difference between the initial investment cost of long-
term equity investments and the carrying amount of combination consideration (or aggregate nominal
value of shares issued) shall be adjusted under capital reserve; or against the retained earnings of the
Company in case of insufficient capital reserve.

2. Business combination not under common control

For a business combination not under common control, the combination cost is the aggregate fair
value of assets paid, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity securities issued by the acquirer in exchange
for the control of the acquiree on the acquisition date. Identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquiree acquired in a business combination not under common control that meet the criteria for
recognition are measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. Where the cost of combination is greater
than the acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets acquired in the
combination, the difference shall be recognised as goodwill. Where the cost of combination is less than
acquirer’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets acquired in the combination, the
difference shall be recognised in the non-operating income for the current period if confirmed after review.
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(VI) Preparation of consolidated financial statements
1. Scope of consolidated financial statements

The Company incorporated all of its subsidiaries (including the separate entities controlled by the
Company) into the scope of consolidated financial statements, including enterprises under control of the
Company, separable parts in the investees and structured entities.

2. Harmonisation of accounting policies, balance sheet date and accounting period between parent

company and its subsidiaries

In preparing consolidated financial statements, if the accounting policies or accounting periods
adopted by a subsidiary are different from those of the Company, the necessary adjustments are made to
the financial statements of the subsidiary in accordance with the Company's accounting policies and
accounting periods.

3. Offset matters in the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements shall be prepared on the basis of the financial statements of
the Company and subsidiaries, which offset the internal transactions incurred between the Company and
subsidiaries and between subsidiaries. The portion of a subsidiary’s equity that is not attributable to the
Company is treated as minority interests and presented as "minority interest”" in the consolidated balance
sheet under sharcholders' equity. Long-term equity investments in the Company held by the subsidiaries
are treated as treasury stock of the Company and presented in "Less: Treasury shares” as a deduction from
shareholders' equity in the consolidated balance sheet under shareholders’ equity.

4. Accounting treatment of subsidiaries acquired from business combination

For a subsidiary acquired in a business combination under common control, the assets, liabilities,
operating results and cash flows of the subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements
starting from the beginning of the period of the combination, as if the business combination had occurred
from the time the ultimate controlling party assumed effective control; For subsidiaries acquired through
business combination not under common control, in preparing the consolidated financial statements,
their individual financial statements are adjusted based on the fair value of identifiable net assets as at
the acquisition date.

5. Accounting treatment of disposal of subsidiaries

As for the difference between the disposal price received from the partial disposal of the long-
term equity investment in a subsidiary without loss of control and shares of the subsidiary's net assets
(which is calculated on an ongoing basis from the acquisition date or the combination date)
corresponding to the disposal of the long-term equity investment, it shall be adjusted against the
capital reserves (capital premium or equity premium) in the consolidated financial statements, and
adjusted against retained earnings if the capital reserves is insufficient.

Where control over an investee is lost due to partial disposal of the equity investment or any other
reasons, the remaining equity shall be remeasured at fair value on the date in which control is lost when
preparing consolidated financial statements. The difference between the sum of the consideration
received from disposal of equity interest and the fair value of the remaining equity interest, and the net
assets of the former subsidiary attributable to the Company calculated on a continuous basis since the
acquisition date or the combination date, is recognised as the investment income for the period when the
control is lost and offset against goodwill. Other comprehensive income related to equity investments in
former subsidiaries, among others, is transferred to investment income for the period when the control
is lost.

(VII) Recognition criteria for cash and cash equivalents

Cash determined in the preparation of statements of cash flows by the Company represents the cash
on hand and deposits readily available for payment of the Company. Cash equivalents determined in the
preparation of statements of cash flows refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
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(VII) Financial instruments
1. Classification and reclassification of financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one party and a financial
liability or equity instrument of another party.

(1) Financial assets

The Company classifies a financial asset as a financial asset measured at amortised cost if it also meets the
following criteria: (1) The Company's business model for managing this financial asset is to collect contractual
cash flows; (2) The contractual terms of the financial asset provide that the cash flow arising on a particular date
is solely the repayment of the principal and the payment of interest on the outstanding principal.

The Company classifies financial assets as financial assets measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if they also meet the following criteria: (1) The Company's business model for
managing this financial assets is to both receive its contractual cash flows and sell this financial asset; (2) The
contractual terms of the financial asset provide that the cash flow arising on a particular date is solely the
repayment of the principal and the payment of interest on the outstanding principal.

For investments in non-trading equity instruments, the Company may irrevocably designate them as
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income on initial recognition. Such designation is
made on individual basis and underlying investment meets the definition of an equity instrument from the
issuer's perspective.

Financial assets other than those classified as financial assets at amortised cost and those at fair value
through other comprehensive income are classified by the Company as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset as at fair value
through profit or loss if it can eliminate or reduce accounting mismatches.

When the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets, it reclassifies all
affected underlying financial assets at the first day of the first reporting period following the change in
business model and applies the related accounting treatment from the date of reclassification on
aprospective basis without retrospective adjustment to previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment losses or gains) or interest.

(2) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified on initial recognition as: Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss; Financial liabilities arising when the transfer of financial assets do not qualify for
derecognition or involve financial liabilities transfered; Financial liabilities at amortised cost. All financial
liabilities are not reclassified.

2. Measurement of financial instruments

The Company measures its financial instruments at fair value on initial recognition. For financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, related transaction costs are charged directly to profit
or loss for the period. For other types of financial assets or financial liabilities, related transaction costs are
included in initially recognised amounts. Accounts receivable or notes receivable arising from sales of goods
or rendering services, without significant financing component, are initially recognised based on the transaction
price expected to be entitled by the Company. Subsequent measurement of financial instruments depends on
their classifications.
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(1) Financial assets

(DFinancial assets at amortised cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial assets are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses arising from financial assets at amortised
cost that are not the subject of any hedging relationship are recognised in profit or loss for the period when
derecognised, reclassified, amortised under the effective interest method or impaired.

(2Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets in this category (except for the portion of financial assets that is part of a hedging relationship) are
subsequently measured at fair value, with the resulting gain or loss (including interest and dividend
income) recognised in profit or loss for the period.

(3 Debt instrument investment at fair value through other comprehensive income. Subsequent to initial
recognition, such financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest, impairment loss or gain and
exchange gain and loss calculated using the effective interest method are recognised in profit or loss for the period
when they incur, and other gains or losses are all recognised in other comprehensive income. When derecognised, the
accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred out from
other comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss for the period when they incur.

(2) Financial liabilities

@ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Such financial liabilities comprise
financial liabilities held for trading (including derivatives that are financial liabilities) and financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at fair value and gains or losses (including interest expense) arising from changes in
the fair value of financial liabilities held for trading are recognised in profit or loss for the period, except when
they relate to hedge accounting. Where a financial liability is designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
the amount of change in the fair value of that financial liability arising from changes in the Company's own
credit risk is recognised in other comprehensive income and other changes in fair value are recognised in profit
or loss for the period. If the effect of changes in the financial liability's own credit risk included in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss, the Company includes
all gains or losses on the financial liability in profit or loss for the period.

(2Financial liabilities at amortised cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, such financial liabilities are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

3. How the Company determines the fair value of financial instruments

Where there is an active market for a financial instrument, the Company uses quoted prices in the active
market to determine its fair value; Valuation techniques are adopted to determine the fair value of a financial
instrument for which there is no active market. Valuation techniques mainly include market method, income
method and cost method. In limited cases, if the short-term information used to determine fair value is
insufficient, or if the possible estimated amount of fair value is widely distributed, and the cost represents the
best estimate of fair value in the range, the cost can represent its proper estimate of fair value in the range of
distribution. The Company uses all information available after initial recognition regarding the investee's
results and operations to determine whether the cost is representative of fair value.
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4.Basis for recognition and method for measurement of transfers of financial asset and financial liabilities
(1) Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met: (1) the
contractual right to receive cash flows from the financial asset is terminated; (2) the financial asset has been
transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset; (3) the financial asset has been transferred, where the Company has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the reward on the ownership of the financial asset, but doesn’t retain the control over the
financial asset.

Where the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the rewards on ownership of a financial
asset and retains control over the financial asset, it recognises the financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement in the transferred financial asset, and recognises the liability accordingly.

Where a transfer of a financial asset in its entirety satisfies the derecognition criteria, the Company
recognises the difference between the following two amounts in profit or loss for the period: (D) the carrying
amount of the transferred financial assets on the date of derecognition; (2) the sum of the consideration
received for the transfer of the financial asset and the amount corresponding to the derecognised portion of
the cumulative amount of changes in fair value that would otherwise be included directly in other
comprehensive income (financial assets involved in the transfer are classified as financial asset at fair value
through other comprehensive income).

When the partial transfer of a financial asset satisfies the derecognition criteria, the overall carrying
amount of the financial asset transferred is allocated between the derecognised portion and not derecognised
portion by their respective fair values on the date of transfer first, and the difference between the two
amounts below is then recognised in profit or loss for the period: (D) the carrying amount of the derecognised
portion at the date of derecognition; 2) the sum of the consideration received for the derecognised part and
the amount corresponding to the derecognised portion of the cumulative amount of changes in fair value
that would otherwise be included in other comprehensive income (financial assets involved in the transfer
are classified as financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income).

(2) Financial liabilities

If the current obligation of the financial liability has been discharged in whole or in part, the
Company shall derecognise the financial liability (or its corresponding part).

If a financial liability (or part thereof) is derecognised, the Company records the difference between
its carrying amount and the consideration paid (including non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) in profit or loss for the period.

(IX)  Method for determination of expected credit losses and accounting treatment

1. Method for determination of expected credit losses

The Company accounts for financial assets (including receivables) measured at amortised cost, financial
assets (including receivables financing) classified as at fair value through other comprehensive income, and
lease receivables, on the basis of expected credit losses, and recognises a provision for impairment.
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The Company assesses on each balance sheet date whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk of the underlying financial instruments since initial recognition, dividing the process of
credit impairment of financial instruments into three stages, with different accounting treatment for
different stages of impairment of financial instruments: (1) In the first stage, if the credit risk of a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the provision
for losses based on the expected credit loss of the financial instrument over the next 12 months and
calculates interest income based on its carrying amount (i.e. before provision for impairment being made)
and the effective interest rate; (2) In the second stage, if the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition but no credit impairment has occurred, the Company
measures the provision for losses based on the expected credit loss over the entire life of the financial
instrument and calculates interest income based on its carrying amount and the effective interest rate; (3)
In the third stage, if a credit impairment occurs after initial recognition, the Company measures the
provision for loss based on the expected credit loss over the entire life of the financial instrument and
calculates interest income based on its amortised cost (carrying amount less provision for impairment)
and the effective interest rate.

(1) Method for measuring loss provision of financial instruments with lower credit risk

For financial instruments with lower credit risk at the balance sheet date, the Company can directly
make the assumption that the credit risk of the instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition without comparing with the credit risk at the time of initial recognition.

A financial instrument is considered to have low credit risk if the risk of default is low, the
debtor's ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the short term is strong and, even if
there are adverse changes in economic conditions and operating environment in the longer term, this
may not necessarily reduce the debtor's ability to meet its contractual cash flow obligations.

(2) Method of measuring loss provision for accounts receivable

@ For trade receivables (whether or not containing significant financing components) resulting
from transactions subject to ASBE 14 - Revenue, the Company applies a simplified approach whereby the
provision for losses is always measured on the basis of expected credit losses over the entire life of the
receivable.

Based on the nature of financial instruments, the Company assesses whether the credit risk has
increased significantly on the basis of a single financial asset or a group of financial assets. The Company
divides trade receivables into certain portfolios based on credit risk characteristic while measuring expected
credit loss based on portfolio. The basis to determine the portfolio is as follows:

Trade receivables Group 1: trade receivables other than in Group 2

Trade receivables Group 2: related party-based grouping in the scope of the consolidation

For the trade receivables classified as a group, the Company refers to the historical credit loss
experience, combined with the current situation and forecast of the future economic conditions, to prepare a
comparison table of the ageing of trade receivables and the lifetime expected credit loss rate to calculate the
expected credit loss.

(A)  Groups are determined based on the following basis:

Item Basis for determining the groups

In addition to the trade receivables that are individually assessed for impairment,

Group 1: trade provision for bad debts shall be made by the Company to various receivables on the

receivables other

) percentage determined based on the actual loss of identical or similar trade receivables
than in Group 2

for previous years with similar credit risk characteristics as well as their current situation.

Group 2: related party- | Receivables from related party in the scope of the consolidation
based grouping in the
scope of the

consolidation
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(B> Method for making bad debt provision for different groups:

Item Method for making provision

Group 1: trade

receivables other than Ageing analysis

in Group 2

Group 2: related

party-based grouping

in the scope of the

consolidation

(C) Within the group, for the trade receivables classified as Group 1, the Company refers to the

historical credit loss experience, combined with the current condition and forecast of the
future economic condition to calculate the expected credit loss according to the account
receivable age and expected credit loss rate through full lifetime in reference:

No bad debt provision provided

Ageing Provision ratio for accounts
receivable (%)

Within 1 year (inclusive, the same below) 3.00

1 to 2 years 10.00
2 to 3 years 20.00
3 to 4 years 30.00
4 to 5 years 50.00
More than 5 years 100.00

(3) Method of measuring loss provision for other financial assets

For financial assets other than those mentioned above, such as: debt investments, other debt
investments, other receivables, and long-term receivables other than lease receivables among others,
the Company measures their provision for losses in accordance with the general method, i.e. the
"three-stage" model.

The Company divides other receivable into certain portfolios based on their nature while
measuring expected credit loss based on portfolio. For the grouping basis and measurement of
impairment loss of other receivables, it is treated in accordance with the measurement method of
impairment loss of the aforementioned accounts receivable.

2. Accounting method for expected credit loss

To reflect changes in the credit risk of a financial instrument since initial recognition, the
Company re-measures the expected credit losses on each balance sheet date. The resulting increase
or reversal in the provision for losses is recognised as an impairment loss or gain in profit or loss
for the period and is offset against the carrying amount of the financial asset as shown in the balance
sheet, or included in the expected liabilities (loan commitments or financial guarantee contracts) or
in other comprehensive income (debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income), depending on the type of financial instrument.

(X) Inventories

1.Classification of inventories

Inventories means, among others, finished goods or merchandise held for sale in the ordinary
course of business, work in process in the process of production, materials or supplies used in the
process of production or rendering of services. These include, among others, reusable material and
low value consumables.
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2. Accounting method for dispatching inventories

When inventories are dispatched, the weighted-average method is used to determine the actual
cost of the dispatch.

3.Method of provision for decline in value of inventories

On the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
The provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an item-by-item basis. The provision for
decline in the value of inventories with large quantity and of low unit cost is made according to their
inventory category.

4.Inventory system

The Company adopts a perpetual inventory system.

5. Amortisation of low value consumables and packaging materials

Low-value consumables and packaging materials are amortised using one-off method.

(XI) Contractual assets and contractual liabilities

1.Contractual Assets

The Company presents as contractual assets rights to receive consideration for goods or services
that have been transferred to customers (and that are dependent on factors other than the passage of
time). Provision for impairment of contractual assets is made based on the expected credit loss
method for financial instruments. For contractual assets that do not contain or have a significant
financing component, the Company uses the simplified method to measure the provision for losses.
For contractual assets that contain a significant financing component, the Company measures the
provision for losses using the general method.

An impairment loss on a contractual asset is debited to "Impairment loss on assets" and is
credited to “provision for impairment of contractual assets” according to the amount written down.
Reverse entries are made upon reversing a provision for impairment of an asset that has been made.

2. Contractual liabilities

The Company presents obligations to transfer goods or provide services to customers for
consideration received or receivable as contractual liabilities.

A contract asset and a contract liability under the same contract are presented on a net basis.

(XII) Long-term equity investments
1. Determination of initial investment cost

For long-term equity investment acquired through business combination, if under common control,
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment represents the proportion of the carrying
value of the acquiree’s equity in the consolidated financial statements of the ultimate controlling party
on the date of acquisition; if not under common control, the initial investment cost of long-term equity
investment represents the combination cost determined on the date of acquisition; For long-term equity
investments acquired by payment in cash, the initial investment cost represents the purchase price
actually paid; For long-term equity investments acquired through the issue of equity securities, the initial
investment cost represents the fair value of the equity securities issued; For the long-term equity
investment acquired through debt restructuring, the initial investment cost of the long-term equity
investment is determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of ASBE No. 12 - Debt
Restructuring; For long-term equity investments acquired in exchange for non-monetary assets, the
initial investment cost is determined in accordance with the relevant provisions of ASBE No. 7 - Non-
monetary Asset Exchanges.
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2. Subsequent measurement and recognition of profit or loss

Where the Company has control over an investee, the long-term equity investment in such investee
is measured using the cost method. Long-term equity investments in associates and joint ventures shall
be measured using the equity method. If a portion of the Company's equity investment in an associate is
held indirectly through a venture capital entity, mutual fund, trust company or similar entity (including
an investment-linked insurance fund), the Company shall, regardless of whether the above entities have
significant influence over this portion of the investment, treat them in accordance with the relevant
provisions of ASBE 22 - Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments, with the remainder
accounted for using the equity method.

3.Basis for determination of common control and significant influence over an investee

Common control over an investee means that decisions on activities that materially affect the return
on an arrangement must be made with the unanimous consent of the participants sharing control,
including the sale and purchase of goods or services, the management of financial assets, the purchase
and disposal of assets, research and development activities and financing activities; significant influence
over an investee refers to the following circumstances: when holding more than 20% but less than 50%
of the capital with voting rights in the investee; or even if below 20%, there is still significant influence
if any of the following conditions is met: be represented the board of directors or similar governing body
of the investee; participate in the policy development process of the investee; assign management
personnel to the investee; the investee relies on the technology or technical information of the investor;
there are major transactions with the investee.

(XTIT) Fixed assets

1.Criteria for recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets held for producing goods, rendering of services, leasing out to other
parties or administrative purposes, with useful life more than one accounting year. Fixed assets are
recognised when the following criteria are all met: it is likely that the economic benefits associated with
the fixed asset will flow to the Company; the cost of the fixed asset can be measured reliably.

2.Classification and depreciation of fixed assets

The Company's fixed assets are mainly classified as: buildings and structures, machinery and
equipment, electronic equipment and transportation equipment, etc.; the fixed assets are depreciated
using the straight-line method. The useful life and estimated net residual value of a fixed asset are
determined according to the nature and use pattern of the fixed asset. At the end of each year, the useful
life, estimated net residual value and the method of depreciation of the fixed asset will be reviewed, and
shall be adjusted accordingly if they differ from previous estimates. The Company makes provision for
depreciation for all of its fixed assets other than fully depreciated fixed assets that are still in use and
lands accounted for on an individual basis.

Categories of Assets Estimated useful life Estimated net residual | Annual depreciation rate
(years) value rate (%) (%)
Buildings and structures 40 5.00 2.375
Electronic equipment 2-5 5.00 19.00—47.50
Means of transportation 5-10 5.00 9.50—19.00
Furniture and others 5 5.00 19.00
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(XIV) Construction in progress

There are two types of construction in progress for the Company: self-construction and sub-contracting
construction. Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when the project is completed and ready for
its intended use. A fixed asset is ready for intended use if any of the following criteria is met: the construction
(including installation) work of the fixed assets has been completed or substantially completed; the fixed asset has
been put into trial production or trial operation and it is evidenced that the asset can operate ordinarily or produce
steadily qualified products; or the result of trial operation proves that it can run or operate normally; little or no
expenditure will be incurred for construction of the fixed asset; or the fixed asset constructed has achieved or
almost achieved, or is complied with the requirement of design or contract.

(XV) Intangible assets

1. Measurement method of intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Company are initially measured at cost. The actual cost of a purchased intangible asset
includes the considerations and relevant expenses paid. The actual cost of an intangible asset contributed by
investors is the price contained in the investment contract or agreement. If the price contained in the investment
contract or agreement is not a fair value, the fair value of the intangible asset is regarded as the actual cost. The
cost of a self-developed intangible asset is the total expenditures incurred in bringing the asset to its intended use.

Subsequent measurement of the Company’s intangible assets: intangible assets with finite useful lives are
amortised on a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the intangible assets; at the end of each year, the
useful lives and amortization policy are reviewed, and adjusted accordingly if there are variance with original
estimates; intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised and the useful lives are reviewed at
the end of each year. If there is objective evidence that the useful life of an intangible asset is finite, the
intangible asset is amortised using the straight line method according to the estimated useful life.

The amortisation methods for the intangible assets with finite useful life are as follows:

Type of assets Useful life (year) Method of amortisation
Land use rights 50 Straight-line method
Software 3-10 Straight-line method

2. Determination basis of infinite useful life

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period
over which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the Company or it has no definite useful life.
The judgment basis of intangible assets with indefinite useful life: derived from the contractual rights or other
legal rights but the contract or the law does not specify certain useful life; in light of the conditions of the
competitors and the opinions of relevant experts, the specific period that intangible asset generating economic
benefits to the Company still cannot be determined.

At the end of each year, the useful life shall be reviewed for those intangible assets with indefinite useful life by
mainly using the bottom-up method. The relevant department that uses intangible asset will perform the basic
review and evaluate whether there are changes in the basis for judgments of the indefinite useful life, etc.

(XVI) Impairment of long-term assets

Long-term assets such as long-term equity investments, investment properties measured under the
cost model, fixed assets, construction in progress, productive biological assets measured under the
cost model, oil and gas assets and intangible assets are tested for impairment if there is any indication
that such assets may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result of the impairment test indicates
that the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for impairment
and an impairment loss are recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount.
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The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognised on an individual asset basis. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of assets to which the asset belongs is determined.
A group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able to generate independent cash inflows.

Goodwill separately presented on the financial statements is tested for impairment at least every year,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset may be impaired. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to asset groups or sets of asset groups expected to benefit
from the synergy of business combination. The testing result shows that, where the recoverable amount of the
asset group or the set of asset groups allocated with goodwill is lower than the carrying amount, impairment
loss is recognised accordingly. The amount of impairment loss is first reduced against the carrying amount of
the goodwill allocated to the asset group or set of asset groups, and then reduced against the carrying amounts
of other assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset groups on pro rata basis.

Once the impairment loss of such assets is recognised, the reversible part will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

(XVII) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses of the Company are expenses which have been paid but the benefit period
is over one year (not including one year). Long-term deferred expenses are amortised over the benefit
period. If a long-term deferred expenses cannot bring benefit in future accounting periods, its residue
value not yet amortised shall be transferred in full to current profit or loss.

Item Useful life (year)
Storage fence fee 3-5
E-commerce technical services As agreed in the contract

(XVIII) Employee remuneration

Employee remuneration are all forms of rewards or compensation provided by the Company in
exchange for services rendered by employees or for the termination of employment. Employee
remuneration mainly include short-term benefits, post-employment benefits, termination benefits
and other long-term employee benefits.

1. Short-term benefits

In the accounting period in which employees provide service for the Company, short-term benefits actually
incurred are recognised as liabilities and charged to current profit or loss, or if otherwise required or permitted
by ASBE:s to costs of assets. At the time of actual occurrence, the Company’s employee benefits are recorded
in the current profit or loss or costs of relevant assets as incurred. The non-monetary employee welfare
expenses are measured at fair value. With regard to the medical insurance, work-related injury insurance,
maternity insurance and other social insurance and housing provident fund contributed and labour union
expenses and employee education expenses paid as required by regulations, the Company should calculate
and recognise the corresponding employees benefits payables according to the appropriation basis and
proportion as stipulated by relevant requirements, recognise the corresponding liabilities in the accounting
period in which employees provide service, and record the same in current profit or loss or costs of relevant
assets.
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2. Post-employment benefits

During the accounting period in which an employee provides service, the amount payable calculated
under defined contribution scheme shall be recognised as a liability and recorded in current profit or loss
or in costs of related assets. In respect of the defined benefit scheme, the Company shall attribute the
welfare obligations under the defined benefit scheme in accordance with the estimated accrued benefit
method to the service period of relevant employee, and record the obligation in current profit loss or
costs of relevant assets.

3. Termination benefits

Termination benefits provided to employees by the Company are included as an employee remuneration
liability arising from termination benefits, with a corresponding charge to current profit or loss at the
earlier of the following dates: when the Company cannot unilaterally withdraw the offer of termination
benefits because of an employment termination plan or a curtailment proposal; when the Company
recognises cost or expenses related to a restructuring that involves the payment of termination benefits.

4. Other long-term employee benefits

When other long-term employee benefits provided to the employees by the Company satisfied the
conditions of defined contribution plans, those benefits shall be accounted for in accordance with the
requirements relating to defined contribution plans. In addition, the Company recognises and measures
the net liabilities or net assets of other long-term employee benefits according to relevant requirements
of the defined benefit scheme.

(XIX) Revenue

The Company recognises revenue based on the transaction price allocated to such performance
obligation when a performance obligation in the contract is satisfied, i.e. when customer obtained
the right to control the relevant goods. Obtaining the right to control the relevant goods means that
it is able to dominate the use of the goods and derive almost all economic benefits therefrom. A
performance obligation represents the contractual commitment that a distinct good shall be
transferred by the Company to the customer. Transaction price refers to the consideration that the
Company is expected to receive due to the transfer of goods to customer, but it does not include
payments received on behalf of third parties and amounts that the Company expects to return to the
customer.

Whether the performance obligation is to be fulfilled within a specified period of time or at a
particular point of time depends on the terms of the contract and the relevant legal provisions. If the
performance obligation is performed within a specified period of time, the Company recognizes
revenue in accordance with the progress of performance. Otherwise, the Company recognizes
revenue at a particular point of time when the client obtains control of the underlying assets.

The Company's revenue recognition methodology

The Company's service revenue is mainly for the transportation and warehousing of goods.
Revenue recognition principle for the transportation of goods: revenue is recognized for the
provision of transportation services confirmed by the reconciliation of the parties after the
contract of transportation has been entered into, the goods have been delivered to the
consignee, and the transportation task has been completed. Revenue recognition principle for
warehousing services: revenue is recognized for the provision of warehousing services
confirmed by the reconciliation of the parties after the contract of warehousing services has
been entered into and the provision of warehousing services has been completed.

(XX) Contract costs

Contract cost of the Company includes the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the
cost to fulfill a contract. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract (“costs of obtaining a
contract”) represents costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it
would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. The Group recognises the
incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer as an asset if it expects to recover
those costs.
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If the costs to fulfill a contract with a customer are not within the scope of inventories or other
accounting standards, the Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfill a
contract only if those costs meet all of the following criteria:

1. the costs relate directly to an existing contract or to a specifically identifiable anticipated
contract, including direct labour, direct materials, allocations of overheads (or similar costs), costs
that are explicitly chargeable to the customer and other costs that are incurred only because the
Group entered into the contract;

2. the costs enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying performance obligations in
the future;

3. the costs are expected to be recovered.

The costs to fulfill a contract that Company will recognize as assets are included in the “inventory”
item on the balance sheet if the amortisation period does not exceed one year or a normal business
cycle at the initial recognition; and shall be included in “other non-current assets” item in the
balance sheet if the amortization period is over one year or the normal business cycle at the initial
recognition.

The costs to obtain a contract that Company will recognize as assets are included in the “other
current assets” item on the balance sheet if the amortisation period does not exceed one year or a
normal business cycle at the initial recognition; and shall be included in “other non-current assets”
item in the balance sheet if the amortization period is over one year or the normal business cycle at
the initial recognition.

Assets recognised for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and assets recognised for the
costs to fulfill a contract (the “assets related to contract costs™) are amortised on the same basis as
the revenue recognition of the goods related to the assets and are included in the current profit and
loss. The Company recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when
incurred if the amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwise would have recognised is
one year or less.

The Company recognises an impairment loss in profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of an asset related to contract costs exceeds:

1. remaining amount of consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for the goods or
services to which the asset relates; less

2. the costs to be incurred that relate to providing those goods or services expenses.

If the depreciation factors in the previous period change subsequently, and the difference between
the aforementioned two items is higher than the book value of the asset, the original provision for
impairment of the asset should be reversed and included in the current profit and loss, provided that
the book value of the asset after the reversal shall not exceed the book value of the asset on the date
of reversal under the assumption that no impairment provision is made.

(XXI) Government grants

1. Types of government grants and accounting treatment

Government grants are monetary assets or non-monetary assets (excluding the capital invested
by the government as the owner) obtained by the Company from the government for free. A
government grant in monetary asset shall be recognised at the amount received or to be
received. A government grant in non-monetary asset shall be recognised at its fair value; if the
fair value is not reliably measured, the grant is measured at nominal amount.

The government grants related to business activities are recognised as other income in the light of the
nature of such business. The government grants non-related to business activities are recognised as non-
operating income or expense.
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The government grants which are clearly defined in the government documents to be used for
acquisition, construction or other project that forms a long-term asset are recognised as asset-related
government grants. Regarding the government grant not clearly defined in the official documents, the
government grants related to assets are recognised as deferred income, the amount of which shall be
recorded in the current profit or loss in installments with a reasonable and systematic method over the
useful lives of relevant assets.

The government grants other than those related to assets are recognised as government grants related to
income. The income-related government grants used to compensate relevant expenses or losses to be
incurred by the enterprise in subsequent periods are recognised as deferred income and recorded in
profit and loss for the current period when such expenses are recognised while those used to
compensate relevant expenses or losses that have been incurred by the enterprise are recorded directly
in profit or loss for the current period.

The Company has obtained policy-related loan interest discounts. Where the finance function allocates
the interest discount funds to the lending bank, and the lending bank offers loans for the Company at a
policy-related interest rate, the actual borrowing amount received is recognised as the value of
borrowing and the relevant borrowing expenses are measured in accordance with the principal amount
of the borrowing and such policy-related interest rate discount; Where the finance directly allocates the
interest discount funds to the Company, the corresponding loan interest will be used to offset the
relevant borrowing expenses.

2. Timing for recognition of governmental grants

A government grants shall be recognised when the enterprise fulfills the conditions attaching to the
grant and the enterprise can receive the grant. The governmental grants measured at the amount
receivable will be recognised when there is unambiguous evidence suggesting the conformance to
related conditions as provided in financial support policies and financial support fund is expected to
be received. Other government grants other than those measured at the amount receivable will be
recognised at the actual time of receiving such grants.

(XXII) Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities

1. Deferred income tax assets or deferred income tax liabilities are calculated and recognised based on the
difference between the carrying amount and tax base of assets and liabilities (for items not recognised as
assets and liabilities but with their tax base being able to be determined according to tax laws, tax base is
recognised as the difference) and in accordance with the tax rate applicable to the period during which the
assets are expected to be recovered or the liabilities are expected to be settled.

2. A deferred income tax asset is recognised to the extent of the amount of the taxable income,
which it is most likely to obtain to deduct from the deductible temporary difference. At the
balance sheet date, if there is any exact evidence that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized, the deferred tax assets
unrecognised in prior periods are recognised. The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the benefit of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.

3. As for taxable temporary difference related to the investments of subsidiaries and associated
enterprises, the deferred income tax liabilities shall be recognised unless the Company can control the
time for the reversal of temporary differences and such differences are very unlikely to be reversed in the
foreseeable future. As for the deductible temporary difference related to investments of subsidiaries and
associated enterprises, the deferred income tax assets shall be recognised when such temporary
differences are much likely to be reversed in the foreseeable future and the taxable profit are available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.

(XXIII) Lease
1. The Company recognises the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases other than short-term leases

and low-value asset leases, and separately recognises the depreciation expense and interest expense over the
lease term.
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The Company adopts the straight-line method for each period of the lease term, and the lease
payments for short-term leases and low-value assets leases are included in the current expenses.

(1) Right-of-use assets

The right-of-use asset is defined as the right of underlying assets in the lease term for lessee.
At the commencement date, the right-of-use is initially measured at cost. The cost of the right-of —
use assets shall comprise: (D the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability; ) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives received; 3
any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and @) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the leased asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the leased asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated by categories using the straight-line method. If there is
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease
term, depreciation are provided by reference to categories of right-of-use assets and estimated
residual value rates over the estimated remaining useful life of leased asset; if there is no reasonable
certainty that the Group will obtain ownership of a leased asset at the end of the lease term,
depreciation are provided by reference to categories of right-of-use assets over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated remaining useful life.

The Company recognizes whether the right-of-use assets are impaired or not and accounts for
impairment under relevant regulations of the “Accounting Standard for Business Enterprises No. 8
— Impairment of Asset”.

(2) Lease liabilities

The lease liability is measured at the present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. Lease payments include: D fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable; ) variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate; @
amounts expected to be paid under residual value of the leasee’s guarantees; @) the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by leasee; &) payments of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate;

The Company adopts the interest rate implicit in the lease as the discount rate. If that rate cannot
be determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate is used. The Company shall calculate the
interest expenses of lease liabilities over the lease term at the fixed periodic interest rate, and include
it into financial expenses. The periodic interest rate refers to the discount rate adopted by the
Company or the revised discount rate.

Variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities are charged to profit
or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

When the Company’s evaluation results on extension, termination or purchase options change,
the lease liabilities are remeasured by the present value calculated from the changed lease payments
and revised discount rate and the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets will be adjusted
accordingly. When the in-substance leased payments, amounts expected to be payable under the
guaranteed residual value and the variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate change,
the lease liabilities are remeasured by the present value calculated from the changed lease payments
and original discount rate and the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets will be adjusted
accordingly.
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2. Accounting treatment of assets leased out
(1) Accounting treatment of operating leases

The Company recognizes the lease payments derived from operating leases as rental income
on a straight-line basis over the respective lease terms. Initial direct costs relating to operating leases
incurred by the Company shall be capitalized and then included in the current income by stages at
the same base as the recognition of rental income over the whole lease term.

(2) Accounting treatment of financing leases

At the commencement date of lease term, the Company recognizes the difference between the
sum of financing lease receivable and the unguaranteed residual value, and the present value thereof
as unrealized financing income, and recognizes the same as rental income over the periods when
rent is received in the future. The Company’s initial direct costs associated with rental transactions
shall be included in the initial measurement of the finance lease receivables.

(XXIV) Explanation of changes in critical accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
1. Changes in accounting policy and their basis

The Ministry of Finance issued the revised Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises 21 - Leases in December 2018. The Company has implemented the standards since 1
January 2021. For contracts that existed prior to the date of first implementation, the Company
elected not to reassess whether they were leases or included leases. The Company adjusted the
retained profits and the amounts of other relevant items in the financial statement at the beginning
of the year of first implementation based on the cumulative effect of the first implementation of
the standards, without adjusting the information for comparable periods.

2. Impact of changes in accounting policies

The impact of the Company's implementation of the new lease standards on the items in the
consolidated balance sheet and parent company balance sheet as of 1 January 2021 is summarized
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below:
Unit: RMB

Consolidated balance sheet 31 December 2020 Amount 1 January 2021

items affected
Right-of-use assets 1,488,098.65 1,488,098.65
Non-current liabilities due 989,866.69 989,866.69
within one year
Lease liabilities 821,667.81 821,667.81
Surplus reserves 5,459,863.32 32,343.58 5,492,206.90
Undistributed profits 20,969,408.54 -355,779.43 20,613,629.11

Parent company balance 31 December 2020 Amount 1 January 2021

sheet items affected
Right-of-use assets 1,488,098.65 1,488,098.65
Non-current liabilities due 989,866.69 989,866.69
within one year
Lease liabilities 821,667.81 821,667.81
Surplus reserves 5,459,863.32 32,343.58 5,492,206.90
Undistributed profits 20,969,408.54 -355,779.43 20,613,629.11

IV. TAXATION
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(I) Major taxes and tax rates

Taxes Tax bases Tax rates
Value-added tax (VAT) Taxable income 9%,6%,3%
Urban maintenance and | Turnover tax payable 7%
construction tax
Education surcharge Turnover tax payable 3%
Local education surcharge| Turnover tax payable 2%
Enterprise income tax Taxable income 15%.,25%

Enterprise income tax rates of the Company and its subsidiaries

Name of Income tax

Taxable Entity rates
The Company 15%
Jiangmen J igiiijaiae Pe}inting En%ineering Co., 25%
Ltd.* (L1 57 A RS TRAT IR A 7))
Jiangmen Ruiyuan Supply Chain Management 25%
Cou Ltd. * (VL)1 BAOR e o £ 58 1 A )
J iangmqn Xin lian I@erqational Logistics Co., 25%
Ltd. * (LI VEBE B A PR A =)
Sichuan Dingjie Supply Chain Management 25%
Co. Lid. * (1) o 3£ [ )

Note: The Company is a high and new technology enterprise and the applicable enterprise income tax rates during
the current period was 15%

(II) Significant preferential tax and official approval
On 31 December 2021, the Company obtained the High and New Technology Enterprise Certificate (Certificate
No. GR202144012172) approved by the Department of Science and Technology of Guangdong Province, the

Department of Finance of Guangdong Province and Guangdong Provincial Tax Service, which is valid for three
years. The Company is subject to the preferential tax rate of 15% from 2021 to 2023.

V.NOTES TO SIGNIFICANT ITEMS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(I) Monetary Funds
Type Closing Opening
balance balance
Cash 67,027.00 67,027.00
Cash in bank 14,304,527.73 22,078,274.57
Total 14,371,554.73 22,145,301.57

(II) Notes receivable

Type Closing Opening

balance balance
Bank acceptance bills 2,145,683.20
Total 2,145,683.20

Note: At the end of the period, there was no notes receivable pledged; no endorsed or discounted and undue
notes receivable at the balance sheet date; no bills transferred to accounts receivable due to the default of the drawer.

(III) Accounts receivable
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1. Accounts receivable by category

Closing
T balance
e
P Book Bad debt
balance provision
Amount Proportion Amount Provision
(%) ratio
(%)
Accounts receivable with
provision assessed for bad
debts on an individual basis
Accounts receivable with 81,342,004.51 100.00 3,226,872.70 3.97
provision made for bad
debts using portfolios
Including: Group 1: accounts receivable other
than Group 2 81,342,004.51 100.00 3,226,872.70 3.97
Group 2: portfolio of related parties within
the scope of consolidation
Total 81,342,004.51 100.00 3,226,872.70 3.97
Opening
T balance
pe Book Bad debt
balance provision
Amount Proportion Amou Provision ratio
(%) nt (%)
Accounts receivable with
provision assessed for bad
debts on an individual basis
Accounts receivable with 59,518,534.58 100.00 2,005,716.91 3.37
provision made for bad
debts using portfolios
Including: Group 1: accounts receivable other
than Group 2 59,518,534.58 100.00 2,005,716.91 3.37
Group 2: portfolio of related parties within
the scope of consolidation
Total 59,518,534.58 100.00 2,005,716.91 3.37
(1) Accounts receivable with provision made for bad debts using portfolios
@  Group 1:
Closing Opening
Ages balance balance
Expected credit Expected credit
Book balance | |oss rate Bad debt Book balance | |ogs rate Bad debt
(%) provision (%) provision
Within 1 171791444 3.00 2,151,537.39 57,013,946.26 3.00 1,710,418.39
year
1-2 years 8,797,435.04 10.00 879,743.51 2,185,310.77 10.00 218,531.08
2-3 years 692,663.73 20.00 138,532.75 190,158.25 20.00 38,031.65
3-4 years 49,683.00] 30.00 14,904.90 129,119.30 30.00 38,735.79
4- 5 years 84,308.30 50.00 42,154.15
Total 81,342,004.51 3.226,872.70 59,518,534.58 2,005.716.91

2. Provisions for bad debts that are made, recovered or reversed for the period

The amount of bad debt provision made during the period was RMB1,221,155.79; the amount of bad debt provision recovered or

reversed during the period was RMBO.

3. Details of the top 5 accounts receivable by closing balance of debtors
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. . Proportionto total .
Name of entity Closing balance Accounts receivable Balance of provision
(%) for bad debts
BYD (Shangluo) Industrial Co., 14,308,018.80 17.59 429,240.56
Ltd.
Tiandi Yihao Beverage Co., Ltd. 7,515,479.39 9.24 225,464.38
Guangzhou Zhuoyi Logistics Co., 6,413,258.00 7.88 192,397.74
Ltd. (B IR YA TR A )
Shanghai Yizhou Logistics Co., 5,478,627.33 6.74 164,358.82
Ltd. (B MPIR AR E])
Jiangmen Toyo Ink Co., Ltd. 4,450,798.43 5.47 133,523.95
Total 38,166,181.95 46.92 1,144,985.45
(IV) Prepayments
1. Prepayments shown by ages
Closing Opening
Ages balance balance
Amount Proportio Amou Proportion
n nt (%)
(%)
Within 1 year 4,849,374.19 97.68 3,149,547.09 86.19
1-2 years 115,387.91 2.32 504,714.32 13.81
Total 4,964,762.10 100.00 3,654,261.41 100.00

2. Details of the top 5 entities with largest prepayment balances
Name of entity Closing balance

Proportion to total prepayments
0,

Sinopec Marketing Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Jiangmen Branch( ' [ 47 2,020,857.40 40.70
WA BB A B TR A5
A7)
Huaian Ruihai Transportation Co., Ltd. 689,601.11 13.89
(2 S i A BR A 7))
Guangdong United Electronic Services
Co., Ltd. (J ZRIEE S LT IR R A 784,380.38 15.80
MR 2 al)
Wells (Guangzhou) Supply Chain Co.,
Lad. (AR ) GEI B R 24 ) 514,164.00 10.36
Jiangmen Fuheng Supply Chain 202,231.31 4.07
Management Co., Ltd. (VL[] & 8 {5
HEE A IR A A

Total 4211,234.20 84.82

(V) Other receivables

Type Closing Opening balance
balance
Other receivables 7,489,556.50 8,001,969.61
Less: bad debt provision 2,113,377.82 2,021,253.60
Total 5,376,178.68 5,980,716.01

1. Other receivables by nature

Nature of the amount Closing Opening balance
balance
Deposits and guarantee deposits 6.414.679.57 7.476.278.47
Petty cash, withholding payment and 1.074.876.93 525.691.14
others o .
Bad debt provision 2,113,377.82 2,021,253.60
Total 5,376,178.68 5,980,716.01
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2. Ageing analysis of other receivables

Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Book balance Percentage Book balance Percentage
(%) (%)

Within 1 year 3,680,821.59 49.15 3,745,961.90 46.81
(inclusive)
1-2 years 1,296,400.24 17.31 3,878,881.24 48.47
2-3 years 2,214,700.00 29.57 85,242.80 1.07
3-4 years 18,060.00 0.24 73,208.00 0.92
4- 5 years 68,759.00 0.92 127,860.00 1.60
Over 5 years 210,815.67 2.81 90,815.67 1.13

Total 7,489,556.50 100.00 8,001,969.61 100.00

3. Provisions made for bad debts

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Bad debt ] Lifetime Lifetime Total
provision Expected credit expected expected
credit loss — credit loss —
loss over the next not credit- credit-
12 months impaired impaired
Opening balance 546,553.60 1,474,700.00 2,021,253.60
Opening balance in the
current period after 546,553.60 1,474,700.00 2,021,253.60
assessment
Provision for the 92,124.22 92,124.22
current period
Closing balance 638,677.82 1,474,700.00 2,113,377.82

4. Details of the top 5 other receivables by closing balance of debtors

Proportion
Name of debtors Nature of Closing Age to the closing Balance of
receivables balance balance bad debt
of other provision
receivables
(%)
Jiangmen Xinyu .
Motorcycle Parts Co., Deposit 1,474,700.00 2-3 years 19.69 1,474,700.00
Ltd. (7L1 Jﬁiﬁﬂr%@ﬂ:
ERAEAH R 2
Carpoly Chem1cal .
Group Co,, Ltd Deposit 550,000.00 2-3 years 7.34 110,000.00
M&Iﬁlﬂxﬁz‘ﬁ FE
AT])
Xiang Piao Piao Food . o
Co., Ltd. (F&IAE0 & 5 Deposit 500,000.00 Within 1 year 6.68 15,000.00
B A A TR 2 )
Jiangmen Sonlink- .
motor Co., Ltd. ({I| ] Deposit 480,000.00 1-2 years 6.41 48,000.00
IS HLTEA IR A =)
Lee Kam Kee (China) . o
Trading Limited Deposit 200,000.00 Within 1 year 2.67 6,000.00
Total 3,204,700.00 42.79 1,653,700.00

Note: Deposit of Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., Ltd. (111117380 5 EEFC A AL 445 BR 22 7]) amounted to
RMB1,474,700.00. Such deposit was expected to be difficult to recover due to the poor operation of the counterparty and the
current lack of business cooperation between the two parties, a full provision for impairment has been made.

(VI) Other current assets

Item Closing Opening balance
balance
VAT before deduction 471,350.89 27,466.78
Total 471,350.89 27,466.78
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(VII) Fixed assets
Type Closing Opening balance
balance
Fixed assets 44,374,663.06 11,842,546.67
Less: Provision for impairment
Total 44,374,663.06 11,842,546.67
Details of fixed assets
Ttem Buildings and Electronic Means of Furniture and Total
structures device Transportation| others
1. Original carrying amount
1.0pening balance 1,129,001.34 13,941,027.28 10,546,087.99 25,616,116.61
2. Inerease in the current period 21,157,249.06 76,260.99 | 8,892,94531 | 7,183,259.40 | 37,309,714.76
(1) Acquisition 76260.99 |  8,892,94531 | 7,183,259.40 | 16,152,465.70
(2) Transferred from construction in 21,157,249.06 21,157,249.06
progress
3. Decrease in the current period 957,264.95 957.264.95
(1) Disposal or retirement 957,264.95 957,264.95
4. Closing balance 21,157,249.06 | 1,205,262.33 | 21,876,707.64 | 17,729.347.39 | 61,968,566.42
II. Accumulated depreciation
1.0pening balance 620,798.56 |  9.636,623.03 | 3,516,148.35 | 13,773,569.94
2. Increase in the current period 460,610.94 192,571.64 | 1,791,493.32 |  2,094,579.97 |  4,539,255.87
(1) Provision 460,610.94 192,571.64 | 1,791493.32 | 2,094,579.97 |  4,539,255.87
3. Decrease in the current period 718,922.45 718,922.45
(1) Disposal or retirement 718,922.45 718,922.45
4. Closing balance 460,610.94 813,370.20 | 10,709,193.90 | 5,610,72832 | 17,593,903.36
II1. Provision for impairment
1.Opening balance
2. Increase in the current period
(1) Provision
3. Decrease in the current period
(1) Disposal or retirement
4. Closing balance
1V. Carrying amount
1. Closing carrying amount 20,696,638.12 391,892.13 | 11,167,513.74 | 12,118,619.07 | 44,374,663.06
2. Opening carrying amount 508,202.78 | 430440425 | 7,029,939.64 | 11,842,546.67
(VIII) Construction in progress
Item Closing Opening balance
balance
Projects of construction in progress 2,212,389.50 20,996,342.98
Less: Provision for impairment
Total 2,212,389.50 20,996,342.98
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1. Projects of construction in progress

(1) Basic situation of projects of construction in progress

Closing Oneni
Item balance bzri)learillcrzleg
Book balance Provision for Carrying Book balance Provision for Carrying
impairment amount impairment amount
Plant construction 20,996,342.98 20,996,342.98
Cold storage 2,212,389.50 2,212,389.50
construction
project
Total 2,212,389.50 2212,389.50] 20:996,342.98 20,996,342.98
(2) Changes in significant projects of construction in progress
Budget:
Name of udeets Opening Increase in Transferred to| ~ Other Closing
ject > bal th t d bal
projec (0°000) alance peeric(:)l(ljrren fixed assets ecrease alance
Plant 20,996,342.98 160,906.08|  21,157,249.06
construction 8,351
Cold storage 2,212,389.50 2,212,389.50
construction
project
Total 20,996,342.98 2,373,295.58|  21,157,249.06 2,212,389.50
Changes in significant projects of construction in progress (continued)
Investment Completion Accumulated Including: Interest Source of
Name of to budget of progress amount of Amount capitalisation funding
project construction (%) interest of interest rate in the
(%) capitalisation capitalisation in | current period
current period (%)
Plant Self-generated
construction 27.98% 27.98% funds
Cold storage Self-generated
construction funds
project
Total
(IX) Right-of-use assets
Ttem Buildings and structures Total
1. Original carrying amount
1. Amount of end of last year before adjustment
2. Adjustment to amount at the beginning of the year 5,275,986.15 5,275,986.15
3. Amount at the beginning of the year after adjustment 5,275,986.15 5,275,986.15
4. Increase in the current period
5. Decrease in the current period
6. Closing balance 5,275,986.15 5,275,986.15
II. Accumulated depreciation
1. Amount of end of last year before adjustment
2. Adjustment to amount at the beginning of the year 3,787,887.50 3,787,887.50
3. Amount at the beginning of the year after adjustment 3,787,887.50 3,787,887.50
4. Increase in the current period 811,690.17 811,690.17
5. Decrease in the current period
6. Closing balance 4,599,577.67 4,599,577.67

I1I. Provision for impairment

1. Amount of end of last year before adjustment

2. Adjustment to amount at the beginning of the year

3. Amount at the beginning of the year after adjustment

4. Increase in the current period

5. Decrease in the current period

6. Closing balance
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IV. Carrying amount

1. Closing carrying amount

676,408.48

676,408.48

2. Amount at the beginning of the
year after adjustment

1,488,098.65

1,488,098.65

(X) Intangible assets

1. Intangible assets

Item

Land use rights

Software

Total

I. Original carrying amount

1.0pening balance

21,114,950.00

4,292,219.61

25,407,169.61

2. Increase in the current period 2,210,619.58 2,210,619.58
(1) Acquisition 2,210,619.58 2,210,619.58
3. Decrease in the current
period
(1) Disposal

4.Closing balance

21,114,950.00

6,502,839.19

27,617,789.19

II. Accumulated amortization

1.0pening balance

1,372,471.62

1,723,986.53

3,096,458.15

2. Increase in the current period

422,299.13

583,363.45

1,005,662.58

Provision

422,299.13

583,363.45

1,005,662.58

3. Decrease in the current
period

(1) Disposal

4.Closing balance

1,794,770.75

2,307,349.98

4,102,120.73

III. Provision for impairment

1.0pening balance

2. Increase in the current period

3. Decrease in the current
period

4.Closing balance

IV. Carrying amount

1. Closing carrying amount

19,320,179.25

4,195,489.21

23,515,668.46

2. Opening carrying amount

19,742,478.38

2,568,233.08

22,310,711.46

(XI) Goodwill

1. Original carrying amount of goodwill

Item Opening
balance

Increase in the
current period

Decrease in the
current period

Closing balance

Jiangmen Jiasijie Painting

Engincerin Co. Lid (7 14,361.58 14361.58
i ST T Ik
Total 14,361.58 14,361.58

2. Impairment provision for goodwill

Item Opening Provision for the Decrease in the Closing balance
balance current period current period
Jiangmen Jiasijie 14,361.58 14,361.58
Painting Englneerlng Co.,
Ltd.* (m? B A
LA IRA
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Total

14,361.58

14,361.58

(XIT) Long term deferred expenses

Type Opening Increase in the Amortization in Other decrease Closing balance
balance current period the current
period
Storage fence fee 54,870.82 23,516.04 31,354.78
E-commerce
technology services 980,198.06) 490,099.08 490,098.98
Total 54,870.82 980,198.06 513,615.12 521,453.76
(XMI) Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities
1. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are not presented in the net value after offset
Closing Opening balance
Item balance
Deferred Deductible Deferred Deductible
income tax Taxable income tax Taxable
assets/ temporary assets/ temporary
liabilities difference liabilities difference
Deferred income tax
assets:
Provision for impairment of 806,901.07 5,340,250.52 610,286.11 4,026,970.51
assets
Subtotal 806,901.07 5,340,250.52 610,286.11 4,026,970.51

2. Breakdown of unrecognized deferred income tax assets

Item Closing Opening balance
balance
Deductible loss 257,575.37 234,830.96
Total 257,575.37 234,830.96
3. Deductible losses of unrecognized deferred income tax assets will expire in the following years
Year Closing balance Opening balance Remarks
2021 7,541.67
2022 3,012.49 3,012.49
2023 1,611.51 1,611.51
2024 1,399.05 1,399.05
2025 221,266.24 221,266.24
2026 30,286.08
Total 257,575.37 234,830.96
(XIV) Other non-current assets
Item Closing Opening balance
balance
Prepayment for equipment 1.776.207.00
Total 1,776,207.00
(XV) Short-term borrowings
1. Classification of short-term borrowings
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Borrowing conditions

Closing balance

Opening balance

Mortgaged and guaranteed borrowings

18,727,919.04

17,000,000.00

Interest payable on short-term
borrowings

24,034.16

19,833.33

Total 18,751,953.20 17,019,833.33
(XVI) Accounts payable
Item Closing Opening balance
balance

Within 1 year (inclusive)

40,597,893.47

38,842,409.85

Over 1 year

882,116.79

573,370.34

Total

41,480,010.26

39,415,780.19

(XVII) Employee remuneration payable

1. Employee remuneration payable shown by category

Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
balance current period current period balance
1. Short-term remuneration 1,271,013.18 18,637,383.82 18,338,743.78 1,569,653.22
1I. Post-employment benefits- 1.116.221.93 1.116.221.93
defined contribution plan oo oo
Total 1,271,013.18 19,753,605.75 19,454,965.71 1,569,653.22

2. Remuneration of short-term employees

Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing balance
balance current period current period
1. Wage, bonus, allowance and 1,228,122.80 16.686.629.86 16.414.452.04 1.500.300.62
subsidy T T T
2. Employee welfare premium 936.006.85 936.006.85
3. Social welfare premium 422.064.78 422.264.78
Including: Medicare premium 375,406.50 375,406.50
Occupational injuries 16,619.03 16,619.03
premium
Maternity premium 30,239.25 30,239.25
4. Housing provident funds 269.598.74 269.598.74
5. Labor union fund and 42,890.38 322.883.59 206.421.37 69.352.60
employee education fund T T T
Total 1.271,013.18 18,637,383.82 18,338,743.78 1,569,653.22
3. Defined contribution plan
Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
balance current period current period balance
Basic endowment insurance 1.097.514.89 1.097.514.89
premium T T
Unemployment insurance 18.707.04 18.707.04
premium U T
Total 1,116,221.93 1,116,221.93
(XVIII) Taxes payable
Taxes Closing Opening
balance balance
VAT 761,631.44
Urban maintenance and construction 30.646.40 117.942.31
tax T T
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Taxes Closing Opening

balance balance
Education surcharge 13.136.41 84.248.23
Enterprise income tax 1.222.095.91 807.051.65
Individual income tax 74.922.58 7222211
Others 30,895.02 20,114.00
Total 1,371,696.32 1,863,209.74

(XIX) Other payables

Nature Closing Opening
balance balance
Borrowings from related parties 5.000.000.00
Deposits and guarantee deposits 1.469.255.61 3,635,000.00
Current accounts and others 257,630.17 197,244.12
Total 6,726,885.78 3,832,244.12

(XX) Non-current liabilities due within one year

Item Closing balance Opening balance Closing balance of
previous year
Lease liabilities due 807,711.99 989,866.69
within one year
Total 807,711.99 989,866.69

(XXTI) Long-term borrowings

Borrowing conditions Closing balance Opening balance Range of the interest
rates (%)

Mortgaged and guaranteed 8,306,085.00 2,049,200.00 4.60-4.70

borrowings

Interest payable on long-term 11,824.39 2,618.42

borrowings

Total 8,317,909.39 2,051,818.42

(XXII) Lease liabilities

Ttem Closing balance Opening balance Closing balance of
previous year
Lease payments 819,000.00 1,876,200.00
Less: unrecognised financing 11,288.01 64,665.50
fee ’
Less: lease liabilities due
within one year 807,711.99 989,866.69
Total 821,667.81

(XXIII) Deferred income

1. Deferred income shown by category

Item Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing balance Reasons
balance current period current period
Government 7,509,042.41 1,131,849.67 6,377,192.74 | Grants from the
grants Government
Total 7,509,042.41 1,131,849.67 6,377,192.74

2. Items of government grants
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Other

. Amount
Item Opening Amount of included in changes Closing Related to
balance grants rofit or loss balance assets/related
increased or the period to income
or
the period
Guide funds for the Related to
development of provincial | 661,124.93 254,022.48 407,102.45| assets
modern service industry in
2014
Guide funds for the Related to
development of provincial | 247,917.48 247,917.48| assets
modern service industry in
2015
Construction project of
agricultural product chain | 6,600,000.00 877,827.19 5,722,172.81| Related to
distribution center assets
Total 7,509,042.41 1,131,849.67 6,377,192.74
(XXIV) Share capital
M ts (+, —) for th iod
Item Opening ovements (, =) for the perio Closing
balance Reserves balance
Issue of Bonus transferred Others Subtotal
new shares shares to shares
Total shares 42,600,000.00 42,600,000.00

(XXV) Capital reserve

Type Opening balance

Increase in the
current period

Decrease in the
current period

Closing balance

Capital premium 3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

Total 3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

(XXVI) Surplus reserve

Closing balance | Adjustments at . . . .
Type of previous year | the beginning of Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
the year balance current period current period balance
Statutory
surplus teserve 5,459,863.32 32,343.58 5,492,206.90 2,210,010.39 7,702,217.29
Total 5,459,863.32 32,343.58 5,492,206.90 2,210,010.39 7,702,217.29
(XXVII) Undistributed profits
Ttem Closing balance
Amount Proportion of appropriation or
distribution
Undistributed profits before adjustment at the end of preceding period 20.969.408.54
Adjustments to total undistributed profits at the beginning of the period R
(increase+, decrease-) 355,779.43
Undistributed profits after adjustment at the beginning of the period 20.613.629.11
Add: Net profit attributable to owners of the parent company for the
current period 22,076,654.17
Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus reserve 2210.010.39 10%
Ordinary share dividend payable 40.480.272.89
(XXVIII) Operating revenue and operating cost
Amount for current period Amount for
Item previous
period
Reve Cost Reve Cost
nue nue

Main operation

237,704,174.37

196,327,535.23

192,190,801.37

157,265,851.50

Other operation

316,981.08

191,406.48

691,943.61

208,906.48

Total

238,021,155.45

196,518,941.71

192,882,744.98

157,474,757.98
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(XXIX) Taxes and surcharges

Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Urban maintenance and construction tax 169,977.91 121,300.46
Education surcharge 54,013.82 51,985.91
Local education surcharge 44,798.34 34,657.28
Stamp duty 147,001.52 97,809.50
Housing property tax 203,456.36
Land use tax 66,408.02
Total 685,655.97 305,753.15
(XXX) Selling expenses
Ttem Amount for Amount for
current period previous
i period
Employee remuneration 1,385,502.86 1,192,028.53
Business entertainment expenses 125,578.77 80,535.72
Others 171,052.05 12,044.38
Total 1,682,133.68 1,284,608.63
(XXXI) Administrative expenses
Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Office expenses 133,992.61 130,988.46
Employee remuneration 2,558,507.25 2,253,500.35
Vehicle usage expenses 129,921.77 53,075.33
Amortization of intangible assets 422,298.96 422.298.96
Communication expenses 170,443.54 110,270.22
Depreciation 475,664.31 428,624.98
Consultancy expenses 457,380.21 302,708.76
Business entertainment expenses 196,437.57 208,040.50
Travel expenses 26,785.14 7,857.50
Utility 364,265.88 71,462.38
Others 592,571.15 427,196.45
Total 5,528,268.39 4,416,023.89
(XXXII) Research and development expenses
Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Employee remuneration 4,916,150.43 6,025,663.00
Depreciation and amortization 1,187,540.75 577,823.63
Materials and testing expenses 1,032,758.00 1,030,956.42
Other research and development expenses 53,000.64 509,147.12
Total 7,189,449.82 8,143,590.17
(XXXIII) Financial expenses
Item Amount for Amount for
current period previous
period
Interest expenses 1,068,641.69 849,740.22
Less: Interest income 10,818.19 12,576.06
Add: Handling fee expenses and others 10,883.66 5,255.59
Total 1,068,707.16 842,419.75

(XXXIV) Other income
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Item

Amount for current period

Amount for previous period

Guide funds for the development of
provincial modern service industry in
2014

254,022.48

191,469.64

Guide funds for the development of
provincial production service industry
in 2015

100,285.72

Guide funds for the development of
provincial modern service industry in
2015

62,552.83

Funds for construction project of
agricultural product chain distribution
center

877,827.19

Total

1,131,849.67

354,308.19

(XXXV) Investment income

Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Gains on wealth management products 36,595.79 237,566.82
Investment income from equity transfer 51,710.10

Total 88,305.89 237,566.82

(XXXVI) Credit impairment loss

Item

Amount for current period

Amount for previous period

Credit impairment loss of accounts
receivable

-1,221,155.79

-1,133,002.73

Credit impairment loss of other
receivables

-92,124.22

-1,625,764.03

Total

-1,313,280.01

-2,758,766.76

(XXXVII) Asset impairment loss

Ttem Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Impairment losses on goodwill -14,361.58
Total -14,361.58

(XXXVIII) Gain from disposal of ass:

=

S

Item Amount for current period Amount for previous period
Gain from disposal of fixed assets -223,377.90
Total -223,377.90

(XXXIX) Non-operating income

1. Non-operating income is presented separately

Amount charged

Item Amount for current Amount for previous to the current

period period non-recurring

profit or loss
Government grant 34,581.84 3,000.00 34,581.84
Others 118,334.10 1,546.76 118,334.10
Total 152,915.94 4,546.76 152,915.94

2. Government grants included in non-operating income
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. Related to
Item Amount for current Amount for previous assets/related
period period to income
Refunds of individual 2,681.84 R§lated
income tax handling fees to mcome
Working subsidy 30,900.00 szlated
to income
Theme education subsidy
carried out by the Party 1,000.00 Related
branch of the “two new to income
(W3~ organizations
of Jiangmen City
Pengjiang District
Duran Town People’s
Government (71| JTiT3%T
DAL B N REBUR)
Subsidies of price and cost Related
survey team in national price 1,000.00 2,000.00
monitoring point of to income
Jiangmen
Total 34,581.84 3,000.00

(XL) Non-operating expenses

Amount charged

Item Amount for current Amount for previous to the current

period period non-recurring
profit or loss
External donations 50,000.00 70,000.00 50,000.00
Others 6,165.87 6,094.55 6,165.87
Total 56,165.87 76,094.55 56,165.87
(XLI) Income tax expenses
1. Details of income tax expenses
Item Amount for the current Amount for the previous
period period
Income tax expenses for the current
period calculated 3,239,645.80 2,275,652.59
according to tax laws and relevant
requirements
Deferred income tax expenses -196,614.96 -413,660.65
Differences in income tax settlement 8,820.00
Total 3,051,850.84 1,861,991.94
2. Reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expenses
Item Amount

Total profit

25,128,246.44

Income tax expenses based on statutory/applicable tax rate

3,769,236.97
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries -2,276.57
Effect of non-deductible costs, expenses and Tosses 77.312.03
Effect of differences in income tax settlement 8,820.00
Effect of additional deductions of research and development -808,813.11
expensess
Effect of using the deductible Tosses of
previously unrecognized deferred income tax assets
Effect of deductible temporary differences or deductible
losses unrecognized 7,571.52
as deferred income tax assets in current period
Income tax expenses 3.051.850.84

(XLII) Cash flow statement

1.Other cash receipts or payments related to operating activities
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Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Other cash receipts related to operating
activities

5,163,734.13

12,313,110.87

Including: Recovery of margin deposit
and advance

5,695,988.05

Borrowings from related parties

5,000,000.00

Interest Income 10,818.19 12,576.06
6,600,000.00
Government grants 34,581.84
Others 118.334.10 4,546.76
Other cash payment related to operating
activities 5,962,612.97 7,585,592.42
Including: Payment of margin deposit 4,716,500.00
and advance 1,743,095.56
Administrative expenses,
research and development expenses, 4,018,407.75 2,787,742.28
and selling expenses
Handling fee and other 151,109.66 11,350.14
expenses
External donations 50,000.00 70,000.00

2. Other cash receipts or payment related to fundraising activities

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Other cash receipts related to
fundraising activities

850,000.00

Including: Recovery of bank loan
deposits

850,000.00

Other cash payment related to
fundraising activities

1,057,200.00

Including: Payment of lease liabilities

1,057,200.00

(XLIII) Supplemental information to the cash flow statement

1. Supplemental information to the cash flow statement

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash
flow from operating
activities

Net profit

22,076,395.60

16,300,798.35

Add: Credit impairment loss

1,313,280.01

2,758,766.76

Provision for assets impairment 14,361.58
Depreciation of fixed assets, oil and gas
assets, productive biological assets 4,539,255.87 2,528,536.04
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 811,690.17
Amortization of intangible assets 1,005,662.58 837,625.41
Amortization of long term 513,615.12 23,516.04
prepayments
Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets 223,377.90

and other long term assets (Gain
represented
by “”)

Fixed assets retirement loss (Gain
represented by “—)

Net loss on hedging exposure (Gain
represented by “-)

99

- II-118 —



APPENDIX II

FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

Item

Amount for the current
period

Amount for the previous
period

Losses on changes in fair value
(Gain represented
by *7)

llj inanc)ial expenses (Gain represented
y

1,068,641.69 849,740.22
Investments Tosses (Gain represented by]|

“) -88,305.89 -237,566.82
Decrease of deferred income tax assets

(Increase represented by “—) -196,614.96 -413,660.65

Increase of deferred income tax
liabilities (Decrease
represented by “-)

Decrease in inventories (Increase

represented by “~)
Decrease in operating receivables
(Increase -25,303,284.28 -31,286,594.10

represented by “—”)

Increase of operating payables
(Decrease
represented by “-)

2,326,484.19

37,159,800.14

Others

Net cash flow from operating activities

8,290,198.00

28,535,322.97

2. Significant investing and financing
activities not related
to cash receipts and payments

Conversion of debt into share capital

Convertible corporate bonds due within
one year

Fixed assets rented under leases

3. Net changes in cash and cash
equivalents

Closing balance of cash

14,371,554.73

22,145,301.57

Less: Opening balance of cash

22,145,301.57

15,766,994.59

Add: Closing balance of cash
equivalents

Less: Opening balance of cash
equivalents

Net increase of cash and cash

equivalents

-7,773,746.84

6,378,306.98

2. Cash and cash equivalents

Item Amount for the current period Amount for the previous period
Cash 14,371,554.73 22,145,301.57
Including: Cash on hand 67,027.00 67,027.00
Cash in bank on demand for payment
14,304,527.73 22,078,274.57

II. Cash equivalents

Including: Bond investment with maturity within 3

months

II1. Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

14,371,554.73

22,145,301.57

Including:

Restricted cash and cash equivalents used by the

Parent Company or subsidiaries within the

roup

(XLIV) Assets subject to restrictions on ownership or rights of use

Item

Closing carrying amount

Reason for
such
restrictions

Intangible assets - Land Use Rights

19,320,179.25

Bank Borrowings-Pledge of Land Use
Rights

Fixed assets - Housing and Building
Structure

20,696,638.12

Bank Borrowing-Pledge of Housing and
Building Structure
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Total

‘ 40,016,817.37‘

VI. CHANGE IN SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

In June 2021, the Company transferred the equity interest of its subsidiary, Jiangmen Yongjie Technology Co., Ltd. (VL[]

i K FERHE A PR A 7)) to Shi Xuechen,;

¥

Yongjie Technology Co., Ltd. (YL.FI i Ak FERHL A PR A 7).

VIL. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES

Interest in subsidiaries

155 7). After the transfer, the Company no longer held equity interest in Jiangmen

Name of Nature of : ;
subsidiaries P1ace (?f Principal business f‘;opomon of sharcholding Acquisition
registration | place of o) method
operation Directly Indirectly
Jiangmen | Jiangmen | Undertaking construction and decoration Merger and
works, transport of dangerous goods acquisition
Jiangmen (Class 3), general cargo transport
Jiasijie Painting (operating with valid “road transport 100.00
Engineering operation licences”); domestic land freight
Co., Ltd.* (71.'] forwarding (The items that requires
SRR approval by law can only be dealt in after
BEARAH) being approved by the relevant
departments).
Supply chain management and related
Jiangmen | Jiangmen | ancillary services; computer software and Establishment
hardware development; enterprise
Jiangmen management consulting; wholesale and 100.00
Ruiyuan Supply sales of prepackaged food (The items that
Chain requires approval by law can only be dealt
Management in after being approved by the relevant
Co., Ltd. * (L[] departments).
7 B U It N B
BB A
General: supply chain management
services; software development; software
sales; domestic freight forwarding; general
cargo warehousing services (excluding
hazardous chemicals and other projects
that require approval); cryogenic
warehousing (excluding hazardous
Sichuan Dingjie chemicals and other projects that require
Supply  Chain |  Sichuan Sichuan | approval); information consulting services 55.00 Establishment
Management (excluding licensing information
Co., Ltd. * (P9 )1] consulting services); loading and
o B fE BB unloading (except for projects subject to
HATRAT) approval according to law, independently
carry out business activities according to
law with business license). Approved
project: road freight transport (excluding
dangerous goods) (The items that requires
approval by law can only be dealt in after
being approved by the relevant
departments, specific business projects are
subject to the approval documents or
licences of the relevant departments)

Note: On 24 December 2021, “Zhuhai Ruiyuan Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. * (Efkihj i i 5 it b 55

Ay,

as
Row])”.

=

VIII. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND TRANSACTIONS
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(I) De facto controllers of the Company

The de facto controllers of the Company are Zhang Yan (5K+f) and Yang Yongming (#7K #). Zhang Yan (7K#ft) and Yang
Yongming (#7k]) are in a spousal relationship. As of the end of the reporting period, Zhang Yan (5K f#) held 63.04% of the
Company's shares and Yang Yongming (# 7K #) held 2.05% of the Company's shares. They jointly held 65.09% of the Company's
shares.

(IT) Subsidiaries of the Company
Please refer to Note “VII. INTEREST IN OTHER ENTITIES” for details.

(IIT) Other related party of the Company

Name of other Relationships of other related party with the
related party Company

Jiangmen Yingjiang Group Co., Ltd. (V.| 1% {T4E 415 BR A A)| Legal person shareholder holding more than 5% of shares

Jiangmen Yingjiang Technology Co., Ltd. (VLI'JTiZ7TREHE | A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder holding

EE1 NG more than 5% of the shares
Jiangmen Yingkang Oil Sales Co., Ltd. (VL[ T & Heil 44| A subsidiary controlled by legal person sharcholder holding
H ]ﬁ’&ﬁj ) more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Hinno-tech Co., Ltd. (7T["]Z 5 OB A FRA A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder holding
D) more than 5% of the shares

Guangdong Hinno-tech Co., Ltd. (]~ ZR&HFEH A EIFHL A PR | A company controlled by legal person shareholder holding more

GID) than 5% of the shares
Jiangmen Yingkang Technology Co., Ltd. (VLI JTiZ HE%HE | A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder holding
AAFED more than 5% of the shares

Jiangmen Yingjieda Ink Jet Co.,Ltd. (VL[ JHHEAWTSEA PR | A subsidiary controlled by legal person shareholder holding
) more than 5% of the shares

Shi Xuecheng (5% %) Nephew of Zhang Yan (5K i), the de facto controller of the
Company

.li\an men Yongjie Technology Co., Ltd. (YL 1T K#ERHEHBR| A company held by Shi Xuecheng (5 55 i)

NGID)

Wu Yongxiong (57K i) A shareholder holding 2.6451% of the shares at the end of the
period

- S - — -
Guangzhou Dingyi Food Co.,Ltd. (]~ #&—&&ERA D Ed(;lrii;ggr;t:n? Co(f,_‘,hﬁjfaf iﬁﬂi%?i?ﬁ%lgf%g }%u Fﬁéy/g gj‘fa

controlling subsidiary of the Company

Jia Liping (P4 4L %) A shareholder and senior management of the Company

(IV) Related party transactions

1. Related party transactions for sale and purchase of goods and rendering and acceptance of services

Name of related party Type of related Content of related Amount for the Amount for the
party transaction party transaction current period previous period

Sale of goods and rendering of

services:
Guangzhou Dingyi Food Co.,Ltd. Rendering of Provision of 5,972,383.12
TN —BMARAFD services transportation
services
2. Borrowings from/to related parties
Related party Amount Start date End date Description
Borrowings from:
V\é’u Yongxiong 5,000,000.00 2021-11-11 2022-11-10
(K )
Borrowings to:

. B From March to May 2021. the Company lent
Jiangmen Yongjie 56,135.68 2021-6-1 2021-12-25  |[RMB56,135.68 to its wholly-owned subsidiary
Technology Co., Jiangmen Yongiie Technoloev Co.. Ltd. (V1.1 7k
Ltd GLI Jﬂ’;ﬂ(% BHZABR 2 A, which became a related party
FHEATRR 2 =) company after the sale of its equity in June 2021. The

amount was repaid on 25 December 2021.
102

- I-121 -



APPENDIX II FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE TARGET GROUP

1. Transfer of equity interests of related party

Related party Content of related party Transfer price Investment income
transaction

. N Transfer of t
Shi Xuecheng (5255 %) mrffﬁiﬁﬁ %f?ﬁgl y 0.00 51,710.10
subsidiary Jiangmen
Yongjie Technology Co.,
Ltd. (/Inﬂimi%%y%iﬁ
PR 2w\l

Note: In June 2021, the Company transferred all e ultzplnterests of Jiangmen Yong]le Technology Co.,
Ltd. (VL[ T AGERHCA B2 7]) to Shi Xuechen q( ata price of RMBO, As of the benchmark
date of the transfer, J1%men Yongjie Technolog Co., Ltd F] Tﬁﬂ@%ﬂﬁiﬁ[ﬁ/ i), had a
registered capital of RMBS5 million, a paid-in cap1ta1 of RMB , and a net asset of RMB-51,710.10.

4. Related party guarantees

Guarantor Guaranteed Guarantee Start date of End date of fu%lllfggrgre flOt
party amount guarantee guarantee
Zhang Yan (7k#t),| The Company 30,000,000.00 2020-5-20 2030-5-19 No
Yang Yongming
Bk H)
Zhang Yan (7K##),| The Company 15,000,000.00, 2018-1-16 2028-12-31 No
Yang Yongming
(F7K B
(V) Receivables and payables from/to related party
1. Payables
Item Related Closing balance Opening balance
party
Other payables Wu Yongxiong (57K i) 5,000,000.00
Total 5,000,000.00

IX. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(I) Commitments
As of 31 December 2021, the Company has no commitments that should be disclosed.
(IT) Contingencies

As of 31 December 2021, the Company has no pending litigation, external guarantees and other
contingencies that should be disclosed.

X. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As of the date of this report, the Company has no events after the balance sheet date that should be
disclosed.

XI. OTHER SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

As of 31 December 2021, the Company has no other material matters that should be disclosed.
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XII. NOTES TO MAJOR FINANCIAL STATEMENT ITEMS OF THE
PARENT COMPANY

(I) Accounts receivable

1. Disclosure of accounts receivable by category

Closing
Catesor balance
oty Book balance Provision
for bad
debts
Amount Proportion Amount Provision ratio
(%) (%)
Accounts receivable with provision
assessed for bad debts on an individual
basis
Accounts receivable with provision for 80,518,619.21 100.00 3,178,265.87 3.95
bad debts by combination
Of which: Group 1: receivables other than 80.518.619.21 100.00 3.178.265.87 3.95
Group 2 [ ) [ :
Group 2: related parties within
the scope of consolidation
Total 80,518,619.21 100.00 3,178,265.87 3.95
Opening
Catego balance
gory Book Provision
balance for bad
debts
Amount Proportio Amount Provision ratio
n (%) (%)
Accounts receivable with provision
assessed for bad debts on an individual
basis
Accounts receivable with provision for bad 58,570,891.15 100.00 1,953,382.31 3.34
debts by combination
Of which: Group 1: receivables other than 58.570.891.15 100.00 1.953.382.31 334
Group 2 R . TR ’
Group 2: related parties within the
scope of consolidation
Total 58,570,891.15 100.00 1,953,382.31 3.34
Group 1:
Closing Opening
Ages balance balance
Provision ratio . Provision ratio ..
Book balance (%) Provision for Book balance (%) Provision for
bad debts bad debts
Within 1 year
inclusive 71,236,033.35 3.00 2,137,080.98 56,407,807.04 3.00 1,692,234.22
( )
1 to 2 years 8,455,930.83 10.00 845,593.09 1,843,806.56 10.00 184,380.66
2 to 3 years 692,663.73 20.00 138,532.75 190,158.25 20.00 38,031.65
3 to 4 years 49,683.00 30.00 14,904.90 129,119.30 30.00 38,735.79
4 to 5 years 84,308.30 50.00 42,154.15
Total 80,518,619.21 3,178,265.87 58,570,891.15 1,953,382.31

2. Provision for bad debts made, recovered or reversed during the reporting period

The amount of provision for bad debts in this period is RMB1,224,883.56; the amount of provision for bad debts recovered or
reversed in this period is RMBO.

3. Details of the top 5 accounts receivable by closing balance of debtors
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Company names Closing balance Proportion to total accounts Balance of provision for
receivable (%) bad debts
BYD (Shan; nd
Co Ltd (ﬁ%tt]ﬁﬁ 14,308,018.80 17.77 429,240.56
Tlal’ldl Ylhao Be everage Co.,
Ltd J( S 5K H%z{ﬁ\ﬁ PR 7,515,479.39 9.33 225,464.38
23 H])
Guangzhou Zh i Logistics 6,413,258.00 7.96 192,397.74
o 0 R
Shan hai Yizhou Logistics 5,478,627.33 6.80 164,358.82
td (it NP A B

Jlangmen Toyo Ink Co., Ltd. 4,450,798.43 5.53 133,523.95

Total 38,166,181.95 47.39 1,144,985.45

(IT) Other receivables
Category Closing balance Opening balance
Other receivables 7,413,147.14 7,926,639.49
Less: Provision for bad debts 2,103,349.73 2,011,182.89
Total 5,309,797.41 5,915,456.60
. Other receivables categorised by nature
Nature of receivables Closing balance Opening balance

Deposits and guarantee deposits 6.314.679.57 7376.278.47

Reserves, withholding payments and
others 1,098,467.57 550,361.02

Less: Provision for bad debts 2,103,349.73 2,011,182.89
Total 5,309,797.41 5,915,456.60
2. Aging analysis of other receivables
Closing balance Opening balance
Ages
Book balance Proportion (%) Book balance Proportion (%)
Within 1 year 3,704,412.23 49.97 3,747,104.78 47.27
1 to 2 years 1,196,400.24 16.14 3,778,881.24 47.67
2 to 3 years 2,214,700.00 29.88 85,242.80 1.08
3 to 4 years 18,060.00 0.24 83,208.00 1.05
4 to 5 years 68,759.00 0.93 141,387.00 1.78
Over 5 years 210,815.67 2.84 90,815.67 1.15
Total 7,413,147.14 100.00 7,926,639.49 100.00
3. Bad debt provision
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Provision for bad debts Expected credit Toss Lifetime expected Lifetime expecied Total
over the next 12 credit loss — not credit-| credit loss — credit-
months impaired impaired
Opening balance 536,482.89 1,474,700.00 2,011,182.89
Opening balance after
reassessment for the 536,482.89 1,474,700.00 2,011,182.89
current period
Provision for the 92,166.84 92,166.84
current period
Closing balance 628,649.73 1,474,700.00 2,103,349.73
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4. Details of the top 5 other receivables by closing balance of debtors

Name of debtors Nature of Closing Ages Proportion to  [Balance of bad
receivables balance the total debt provision
closing
balance of
other
receivables
(%)
Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., i
Lid G [T IR PER RS (Guarantee deposits | 147470000 | 2103 19.89 1,474,700.00
Ei years
Qgrgply Chemical Group Co., Ltd. (335 [Guarantee deposits 550,000.00 | Within 1 year 7.42 110,000.00
FUL AR AR AT
Xiang Piao Piao, Food Co., Ltd. (5] Guarantee deposits 500,000.00 | Within 1 year 6.74 15,000.00
Bk (A IRAE)
Jiangmen Sonlink-motor Co., Ltd. CL.[] |Guarantee deposits 480,000.00 1to2 6.47 48,000.00
N RIRAED years
Lee Kam Kee (China) Trading Limited  (Guarantee deposits 200,000.00 Within 1 2.70 6,000.00
CERRE (D) B AR ) year
Total 3,204,700.00 43.22 1,653,700.00

Note: Jiangmen Xinyu Motorcycle Parts Co., Ltd.  (LITH i FEEASTAERAFA AR has a deposit of
RMB1.,474,700.00; due to its poor operation, the two parties have no business cooperation at present, and it is expected to be
difficult to recover, and the impairment provision is fully made.

(I1I) Long-term equity investments

Closing balance

Opening balance

Item
Book balance Provision for Carrying amount [Book balance  [Provision for (Carrying amount
limpairment impairment
Investment in
subsidiaries 5,768,000.00 5,768,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00
Total 5,768,000.00 5,768,000.00 268,000.00 268,000.00
1. Investment in subsidiaries
i . [Provision  |Closing
Investees Opening balance Increase for the Decrease for the  [Closing balance ifor balance of
period period impairment [provision
imade in or
lcurrent impairment
Iperiod
Jiangmen Jiasijie
Painting Engineerin 268,000.00 268,000.00
Co,, Ltd.* {il];\,ﬁ;,bﬁ
e LAEH PR A])
Sichuan Dingjie Supply
Chain 1}1a| er%e&rao., 5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00
Lid, * IR DA
AL O
Total 268,000.00 5,500,000.00 5,768,000.00
(IV) Operating revenue and operating cost
Amount for Amount for
Item the current the previous
period period
Revenue Costs Revenue Costs
Main operation 233,568,613.87 192,259,276.33 188,238,421.33 153,235,085.47
Other operation 316,981.08 191,406.48 691,943.61 208,906.48
Total 233,885,594.95 192,450,682.81 188,930,364.94 153,443,991.95

(V) Investment income
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Type Amount for Amount for
the current the previous
period period
Investment income from wealth 35.600.78 205.182.95
management products
Total 35,600.78 205,182.95
XIII. SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(I) Breakdown of non-recurring profit or loss for the current period
Item Amount [Remarks
1. Gain and loss from disposal of non-current assets, including write-off of -223,377.90
provision for asset impairment
2. Government grants included in profit or loss for the current period (exclusive
. . L 1,166,431.51
of those that are closely related to the enterprise business and received in a
certain amount or fixed quantity according to the State standards)
3. The profit or loss of entrusting others to invest or manage assets 36.595.79
4. Income from the transfer of equity investments 51.710.10
4. Other non-operating income and expenses other than aforesaid items 62,168.23
5. Impact of income tax -139,523.57
Total 954,004.16
(IT) RONA and EPS
Profit of the reporting period EPS
Weighted average RONA (%)
Basic EPS
Amount for Amount for Amount for Amount for
the current the previous the current the previous
period period period period
Net profit attributable to
. . 22. 52 .
shareholders of ordinary shares 26.63 33 03 0.38
N fi i 1
et profit attributable to 25.48 2172 0.50 037

shareholders of ordinary shares
after deducting non-recurring
profit or loss

An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.
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SECTION X FINANCIAL REPORT

I AUDITOR’S REPORT

Audited or not Yes

Auditor’s opinion Unmodified opinion
Nil oEmphasized matter paragraph
oOther matters paragraph oGoing

Special paragraphs in the auditor’s report concern material uncertainty paragraph
oOther information paragraph containing explanations
on uncorrected material misstatement of other
information

Auditor’s report number Da Xin Shen Zi [2023] No. 22-00032

Name of audit institution WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP

Address of audit institution Room 2206, 22/F, Xueyuan International Tower, No. 1 Zhichun
Road, Haidian District, Beijing

Date of the auditor’s report 27 April 2023

Name of the certified public accountant who Gong Fuguo (FEF ) He Xiaojuan (fI5E4R)

signed and consecutive years of signing 5 years 1 year

Any change in the accounting firm No

Consecutive service years of the accounting firm | 6 years

Audit remuneration for the accounting firm RMB150,000

Body text of the auditor’s report:
AUDITOR’S REPORT

Da Xin Shen Zi [2023] No. 22-00032

To all the members of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.:

1. Auditor’s Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of An Jie Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd. (hereinafter

referred to as the “Company”’), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet and balance sheet of the parent
company as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated income statement and income statement of the parent
company, the consolidated cash flow statement and cash flow statement of the parent company, and the
consolidated statement of changes in shareholders’ equity and statement of changes in shareholders’ equity of

the parent company for the year 2022, and the notes to these financial statements.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises in all material aspects, give a fair view of the Company’s consolidated
financial position and financial position of the parent company as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated

operating results and cash flows of the parent company for the year 2022.
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II. Basis for the Auditor’s Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards for PRC Certified Public Accountants.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Certified Public Accountant’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of the auditor’s report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the China Code of Ethics for Certified Public Accountants, and we have fulfilled

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

audit opinion.

III. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

(I) Revenue recognition

1.Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (XXX) to the financial statements of the Company, in 2022, the Company
recognised revenue from principal activities of RMB312,932,523.97, which was mainly attributable to
revenue from the provision of transportation and storage and logistics services. We identified revenue from
principal activities as a key audit matter because the authenticity, accuracy and completeness of the
recognition of revenue from principal activities has a greater impact on the Company's profit, and
considering that revenue is one of the Company's key performance indicators, which results in the inherent
risk that revenue may be recognized in an incorrect period or be manipulated to achieve target or expected
levels.

2. Audit response

Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of revenue mainly included:

(1) obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design and operating effectiveness of management’s

key internal controls relating to revenue recognition;
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(2) inspecting service contracts on a sample basis, identifying contract terms and conditions and assessing
whether the timing of revenue recognition was in accordance with the requirements of the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises;

(3) selecting samples of service revenue transactions recorded during the year, checking invoices,
contracts, receipt records and reconciliation records, and evaluating whether the related revenue recognition was
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policies for revenue recognition;

(4) selecting samples of revenue transactions recorded before and after the balance sheet date, checking the
confirmation documents for the provision of services and other supporting documents to evaluate whether the
revenue was recorded in the appropriate accounting period;

(5) issuing confirmations to major customers and performing background check procedures to verify
whether the operating income was true and recorded in the correct period.

(IT) Provision for bad debts of accounts receivable
1. Description of the matter

As stated in Note V. (III) to the financial statements of the Company, as of 31 December 2022, the book
balance of the Company’s accounts receivable was RMB114,742,795.66 with provision for bad debts of
RMB4,080,400.31 and carrying amount of RMB110,662,395.35. We identified the provision for bad debts of
accounts receivable as a key audit matter due to the significant accounting estimates and judgements involved
in the determination of provision for bad debts by the management and the significance of the provision for bad
debts of accounts receivable to the financial statements.

2. Audit response

The main audit procedures we implemented for the provision for bad debts of receivables included:

(1) obtaining an understanding of the key internal controls related to the impairment of accounts receivable,
evaluating the design of these controls, determining whether they have been implemented, and testing the
effectiveness of the operation of relevant internal controls;

(2) reviewing the relevant consideration and objective evidence of the management’s credit risk assessment
or impairment test on accounts receivable, and evaluating whether the management appropriately identified the
credit risk characteristics of accounts receivable or impaired accounts receivable;

(3) for accounts receivable with expected credit losses measured on a collective basis, evaluating the
rationality of the management’s grouping based on credit risk characteristics; evaluating the reasonableness of the
comparison table of the ageing of accounts receivable against the expected credit loss rates determined by the
management based on historical credit loss experience and forward-looking estimates; testing the accuracy and
completeness of the data used by management and the accuracy of the calculation of the provision for bad debts;

(4) selecting samples to confirm the large accounts receivable or a portion of accounts receivable with small
amount but with large occurrences at the end of the period;

(5) checking whether the information related to the impairment of accounts receivable has been properly
presented in the financial statements.

IV. Other Information

The management of the Company (the “Management”) are responsible for the other information. Other
information comprises the information included in the 2022 annual report of the Company, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our audit opinion on the financial statements does not cover other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read other information and, in
doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Based on the work so performed, we shall report any material misstatement as contained in other information
that we ascertain. In this aspect, we have no such matter to be reported.

V. Responsibilities of the Management and Governing Bodies for the Financial
Statements

The Management is responsible for preparing and presenting fairly the financial statements in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, as well as designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and use the going concern
assumption unless the Management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The governing bodies are responsible for supervising the financial reporting processes of the Company.
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VI. Certified Public Accountant’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
the Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are generally considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. In addition, we performed the following tasks:

(T) identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtaining audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. As fraud could involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omission, false statements or overriding internal controls, thus risks of inability to discover major
misrepresentation are more severe than risks of inability to spot misrepresentation due to mistake.

(IT) understanding the audit related internal controls in order to design appropriate audit procedures, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the internal control’s effectiveness.

(IIT) evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

(IV) concluding on the appropriateness of the Management’s use of the going concern assumption. And based
on the audit evidence obtained, concluding whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required by the Auditing Standards to draw attention to users of financial
statements in our auditor’s report on the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the information obtained up to the date of the
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

(V) evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a fair manner.

(VI) obtaining sufficient appropriate audit evidences regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express audit opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit and remain solely responsibility for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the governing bodies regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including deficiencies worth of attention in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the governing bodies with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may

reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the governing bodies, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We

describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless laws or regulations prohibited public disclosure about the matter

or when, in rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our auditor’s report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

WUYIGE Certified Public Accountants LLP

China - Beijing

PRC certified public accountant: He Xiaojuan
(Engagement Partner)

PRC certified public accountant: Gong Fuguo

27 April 2023
II. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(I) Consolidated Balance Sheet
Unit: RMB
Item Note 31 December 2022 31 December 2021

Current assets:

Monetary funds \%0))

15,260,060.97

14,371,554.73

Settlement reserve

Placements with financial
institutions

Financial assets held for trading

Derivative financial assets

Notes receivable v(I)

10,264,563.94

2,145,683.20

Trade receivables V(III)

110,662,395.35

78,115,131.81

Receivables financing

Prepayments V(v)

3,129,356.47

4,964,762.10

Premium receivables

Reinsurance accounts receivable

Reserves for reinsurance contract
receivable

Other receivables V(V)

6,960,902.64

5,376,178.68

Including: Interest receivable

Dividend receivable

Financial assets purchased under
agreements to resell

Inventories

Contract assets
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Assets held for sales

Non-current assets due within one year
Other current assets V(V]D 1,178,687.48 471,350.89
Total current assets 147,455,966.85 105,444,661.41

Non-current assets:
Loans and advances to customers

Debt investment

Other debt investments

Long-term receivables

Long-term equity investments

Other equity instrument investments

Other non-current financial assets

Investment properties
Fixed assets V(VII) 55,115,441.13 44,374,663.06
Construction in progress V(VII) 2,212,389.50

Productive biological assets

Oil and gas assets

Right-of-use assets V(IX) 3,764,353.84 676,408.48
Intangible assets V(X) 20,723,870.10 23,515,668.46
Development expenses
Goodwill V(XI)
Long-term deferred expenses V(XII) 975,264.79 521,453.76
Deferred income tax assets V(XIII) 972,526.42 806,901.07
Other non-current assets V(XIV) 175,000.00 1,776,207.00
Total non-current assets 81,726,456.28 73,883,691.33
Total assets 229,182,423.13 179,328,352.74

Current liabilities:
Short-term borrowings V(XV) 55,531,229.64 18,751,953.20

Borrowings from central bank

Placements from banks

Financial liabilities held for trading

Derivative financial liabilities

Notes payable

Trade payables V(XVI) 35,384,063.11 41,480,010.26
Advance receipts

Contract liabilities V(XVII) 53,229.48

Financial assets sold under agreements to
repurchase

Deposits from customers and other banks

Brokerage for securities trading

Brokerage for underwriting securities

Employee benefits payable V(XVIII) 1,902,126.18 1,569,653.22

Taxes payable V(XIX) 1,407,165.77 1,371,696.32

Other payables V(XX) 2,838,955.49 6,726,885.78
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Including: Interest payable

Dividend payable

Fees and commissions payable

Reinsurance accounts payable

Liabilities held for sales

Non-current liabilities due within
one year

V(XXI)

1,032,111.55

807,711.99

Other current liabilities

V(XXII)

4,790.66

Total current liabilities

98,153,671.88

70,707,910.77

Non-current liabilities:

Reserves for insurance contracts

Long-term borrowings

V(XXIII)

4,011,838.18

8,317,909.39

Bonds payable

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Lease liabilities

V(XXIV)

2,647,637.96

Long-term payables

Long-term employee remuneration
payables

Estimated liabilities

Deferred income

V(XXV)

3,223,726.18

6,377,192.74

Deferred income tax liabilities

Other non-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

9,883,202.32

14,695,102.13

Total liabilities

108,036,874.20

85,403,012.90

Owners’ equity (or shareholders’
equity):

Share capital

V(XXVI)

42,600,000

42,600,000.00

Other equity instruments

Including: Preference shares

Perpetual bonds

Capital reserves

V(XXVII)

3,143,108.23

3,143,108.23

Less: Treasury shares

Other comprehensive income

Special reserves

Surplus reserves

V(XXVII)

11,110,407.16

7